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Acknowledgment of country
Lotterywest acknowledges the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander People as the 
original custodians of this country, recognising their connection to land, waters and 
community. We respect their cultures and Elders, past and present.

Ngala kaaditj Whadjuk moort keyen kaadak nidja boodja - We acknowledge Whadjuk 
Noongar people as the original custodians of the land on which we are based.

Credit: Tourism Western Australia
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Our vision

Our purpose

Our commitment

Building a better 
Western Australia 
together.

To enhance the quality of life and 
wellbeing for all Western Australians 
through the funding and support we 
provide to our beneficiaries and by 
running our lottery business with 
excellence and integrity.

We are a government enterprise that aims 
to be the preferred provider of lottery 
games, optimise delivery, and maximise 
returns and value to Western Australians.

• Sales per adult

• Total returns to beneficiaries per capita

• Total returns to beneficiaries as a % of sales

• Lottery operations expenses as a % of sales

• Grants operations expenses as a % of direct 
grants approved.

Our key measures

Customer focused
We align our business culture to the ever-evolving needs and requirements of 
the people and organisations we work with. We offer products, services and 
solutions to provide the best possible customer experience.

Upbeat
We enjoy working for a vibrant organisation, providing hope and opportunity. We 
are bold, motivated and confident in our collective ability.

Authentic
We are true to ourselves by being open, honest and committed.

Smart
We find ways to do the right things better.

Reliable
We provide clarity of expectation, consistency of delivery and quality outcomes.

Adaptable
We know our business and our environment. We make the most of opportunities 
and choose when and how to change.

Our values
About Lotterywest
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2019-20 sales and return to the community
Our games
Total sales of $959 million

Our winners

69 67

$17.5 million

$17.5 million

$118 million

85.5%

14.5%
45%

55%

$139 million
to Western Australia’s hospitals and public health services 
(Department of Health)

approved in Lotterywest direct grants

to Sport and Recreation  
(Department of Local Government, 
Sport and Cultural Industries) 

Division One 
winners for 
2019-20

Top Prize 
winners for 
Scratch’n’Win 
2019-20

to Culture and Arts (Department 
of Local Government, Sport and 
Cultural Industries)

of total sales

of total 
sales

501 retail outlets* =

Online 
sales = Play Online

Lotterywest 
Mobile App

Our beneficiaries
Allocated more than $292 million to the WA community

Our distribution channels

-  $14 million to The University of Western Australia (UWA) for the Perth Festival and to Screenwest for the 
investment in the WA Screen Industry.

-  $104 million to other not-for-profit organisations and local government authorities. 

Lotterywest approved 818 grants to 690 different not-for-profit organisations and local government authorities.

Total prizes to 
WA winners of 
$439 million

$292  
million
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Based on accrual amount

Based on cash flow

Based on cash flow

2019-20  
highlights

$959m

$439m

$292m

Lottery 
sales

Prizes to 
Western 

Australians

Contribution 
back to the 
community
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Where does the money 
come from?

Sale of lottery 
products
91.9%

Sale of investments
2.7%

Interest
0.8%

Retailer fees - 0.3%
Healthway SLA - 0.3%
Other - 0.4%

GST recoup
3.5%

Where does the money go?

Prizes
51.4%

COVID-19  
retailer incentive

1.4%

Purchase assets 
0.2%

Marketing
1.5%

GST paid
4%

Retailer 
commission
6.7%

Other supplies
2.3%

Grants payments
29.5%
13.6% Health

7.9% Community 
3.2% COVID-19 Relief Fund
1.7% Arts
1.7% Sport and Recreation
0.7% Perth Festival
0.7% Screenwest

Employees
2.8%
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2019-20 
winners

69
$74
million

5 
Division One 

winners 
shared in 

$5 
million

1 
Division One 

winner  
collected 

$2.5 
million

7 
Division One 

winners 
shared in 

$7 
million

51 
Division One 

winners 
shared in 

$55 
million

4 
Division One 

winners 
shared in 

$231 
thousand

67 
Top Prize 
winners 

shared in 

$5.8 
million

$20,000 
per month for 

20 years

1 
1st Prize 

winner will 
collect

In WA

In total, WA won over 
$439 million across all 

Lotterywest games.

Division One 
winners shared
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Chair foreword
Lotterywest’s purpose to support the Western 
Australian community has never been clearer 
than in 2020. 

Lotterywest continued to deliver excellent financial returns 
this year, with an annual sales result of $959 million. In 
acknowledging this, I thank Lotterywest’s 500 retailers 
throughout the State who worked positively with 
Lotterywest to achieve such an impressive financial return 
for the community, particularly given that this has been a 
difficult year in the retail sector. Strong sales resulted in 
a continued high level of funding to our statutory grant 
recipients of Health, Arts and Sports, as well as to the 
direct grants program. 

In the second half of this financial year Lotterywest adapted 
and changed its programs and services dramatically due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. With the leadership of the State 
Government, a $159 million Lotterywest COVID-19 Relief 
Fund was created with a commitment to deliver all available 
profits from the sale of Lotterywest tickets into the Fund. 
A support package was also implemented to support our 
affected Lotterywest retailers. 

The purpose for which Lotterywest was originally created 
– to support the WA community through charitable 
organisations is well demonstrated in our new COVID-19 
Relief Fund. In 1932, the crisis was the Great Depression; 

in 2020, it is the impact of COVID-19. The impacts are not 
limited to health alone, but include the broader economic 
downturn and societal disruption. 

At the close of the 2019-20 financial year, the COVID-19 
Relief Fund had supported 369 grants to 330 organisations, 
totalling $37.5 million of funding. This support included crisis 
and emergency relief, event cancellation relief and sector 
organisational support. 

During the immediate COVID-19 period, organisations across 
WA experienced an increased demand for emergency relief 
services such as food, clothing, housing support, transport 
and other critical facilities. Organisations also experienced 
dramatic changes in the way they operate. 

Lotterywest responded by funding more than 90 crisis 
and emergency relief grants, totalling $11.2 million, to 
organisations supporting people experiencing hardship 
and helping those most at risk of serious infection. Grant 
funding also assisted organisations to manage new ways of 
working in a crisis environment that included an increased 
demand, and accommodating the required physical 
distancing measures. Services such as Zonta House 
Women’s Refuge, which experienced an increase in demand, 
and the Australian Red Cross Society, which works with the 
most vulnerable in our community, received support from 
Lotterywest during this period. 
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Within one month of the COVID-19 crisis, Lotterywest 
received the equivalent volume of applications to what is 
usually processed in an entire year. Lotterywest’s swift action 
provided much needed support for our community. A range 
of arts, sports and community organisations were supported 
via these grants, covering the breadth of our State. This 
included funding for the Yawuru Jardu Aboriginal Corporation 
to help support its art programs, and to the RSPCA for 
loss of incurred costs and revenue for key fundraising and 
community participation events. 

In these extraordinarily challenging times, I would like to 
acknowledge the round-the-clock effort of Lotterywest staff 
for their professionalism to:

(i) repurpose the grants program to respond to immediate 
community need, and

(ii) to implement strong support packages for Lotterywest’s 
small business operators across the State. This was in 
addition to the business as usual work of marketing 
Lotterywest products across Western Australia. 

Despite the disruption to our own operating environment due 
to COVID-19, the Board and the Corporate Executive team 

continue to place prime importance on preventing gambling 
harms. As we continue to sell lottery products and raise 
money for critical support through this pandemic, we do so 
with the best interests of Western Australians in mind.

I would like to thank our Board Members for their tireless 
efforts working many additional hours during COVID-19. 
I would also like to acknowledge, and congratulate Board 
Member Stephen Carre who has been reappointed for 
another three years and will continue in his role as Chair of 
Lotterywest’s Audit Risk Management Committee. 

In addition, I would like to thank Lotterywest CEO Susan 
Hunt for her leadership in navigating the business through 
unfamiliar territory during a particularly challenging time, and 
to the Premier of Western Australia, the Hon Mark McGowan 
MLA, for his clear direction in championing this crucial work.

Professor Peter Klinken AC FAHMS FTSE CitWA 
Chair
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CEO executive summary
The past financial year has presented some 
unique challenges. 
The COVID-19 pandemic has been a very 
significant influence across the world, and also 
here in Western Australia. 
Lotterywest’s broad response to the pandemic has been 
to ensure that our grants support affected people and 
communities, while at the same time keeping our lottery 
running so we can continue to use the proceeds to assist 
our community. 

This involved a swift, considered response to the issues as 
they arose, while also setting in place new processes and 
systems to meet the community’s need. Not only did this 
mean developing and delivering new grant programs and 
supporting Lotterywest retailers with an incentive package, 
it also entailed strong oversight and governance, including 
amendments to the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (the Act). 

In supporting this work I particularly thank our 
dedicated Lotterywest Board, chaired by Professor Peter 
Klinken AC. The Board’s direction, guidance, governance 
and commitment to responding swiftly were central to our 
achievements during this period. 

A Lotterywest COVID-19 Relief Fund for crisis and 
emergency relief was immediately available to community 
organisations when the WA State of Emergency was 
declared in March. Two additional new grant programs 
were developed and open for applications by April. These 
programs responded to not-for-profit organisations’ loss 
of revenue due to cancelled events, as well as supporting 
resilience in community organisations during the pandemic, 
and into recovery. As a result of the programs 330 
organisations have been supported, and $37.5 million in 
grant funds have been distributed to respond to COVID-19. 

In setting up the new programs, Lotterywest worked 
closely with the Department of Local Government, Sport 
and Cultural Industries (DLGSC) and VenuesWest. I thank 
the working group, chaired by Mr David Etherton CEO of 
VenuesWest and Mr Duncan Ord AM, Director General of 
the DLGSC, and their staff for assistance in developing and 
assessing applications for the new grants’ programs. This 
was particularly valuable in understanding the needs of 
community sporting organisations, which is a new area for 
Lotterywest to support. The funding to sporting groups has 
been temporarily enabled as a result of the Act amendments, 
and it remains in place during the COVID-19 State of 
Emergency period only. 
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Having a high standard of governance and integrity 
around Lotterywest’s grant processes has been prioritised 
during this time of rapid change, including establishing 
a clear governance framework for the new COVID-19 
Relief Fund. We were fortunate to engage the expertise of 
Mr Colin Murphy PSM, the previous Western Australian 
Auditor General, to oversee the governance and probity 
of our work. He also worked closely with our senior staff, 
assessment panels and the Board as required, and his 
input was invaluable. 

To support lottery retailers who were negatively impacted by 
the COVID-19 restrictions, Lotterywest developed a support 
package which offered a $30,000 individual incentive 
package to all our retailers. Staff called retailers to proactively 
seek their feedback, and deepen our understanding of 
the impact on their business, with 95 per cent of retailers 
expressing gratitude for Lotterywest’s assistance during this 
uncertain time. 

In this challenging year, it has been very encouraging 
that Lotterywest sales stayed strong, with an end of year 
result being $959 million. This is the second highest result 
in Lotterywest’s history, with last year’s sales result of 
$985 million being the highest. This achievement also meant 
that we were able to deliver a record amount of funds for 
grants return to the community at $292 million.

While sales results remain uncertain in the context of 
COVID-19, our approach to support people’s ‘Dream State’, 
and the fact that lottery sales directly benefit community 
through our grants program, continues to be the focus of our 
marketing and communications. As part of this approach 
we remain committed to being a leader in responsible play 
of our lottery games. Over the past year we progressed our 
commitment to responsible gambling by delivering staff 
training, commissioning research to better understand 
potential harm from lottery play, and introducing service 
improvements to minimise possible harm. We have also 
worked with the World Lottery Association to ensure our 
processes, systems and product offerings are at the highest 
possible level. 

The integration of Healthway and Lotterywest, and the 
operations of the Service Level Arrangement between the 
two entities has also progressed well during the year. The 
Healthway team worked alongside Lotterywest on aspects 
of the implementation of the Lotterywest COVID-19 Relief 
Fund, and there was further integration of administrative 
functions between the two entities. This year also saw the 
first large joint Lotterywest Healthway grant being finalised. 

While the COVID-19 response has been a dominating aspect 
of Lotterywest operations and strategic focus this year, our 
activities and achievements earlier in the year were also 

Ms Susan Hunt PSM 
Chief Executive Officer

strong. Sales were good and our ongoing brand marketing 
of ‘Dream State’ has progressed well. The implementation 
of the Lotterywest Healthway Community Investment 
Framework was successful with 447 grants totalling 
$66.7 million to 422 organisations across the Framework’s 
outcome areas prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

At the corporate level, my sincere thanks go to my colleagues 
in the Executive team and to our senior managers for their 
achievements and commitment this past year. A change 
this year was that we welcomed Mr Christian Rasmussen 
as Chief Information Officer to the Corporate Executive. This 
reflects the continuing importance of technology, cyber 
security and digitisation to the success of our business. 

We have been fortunate to have the Premier of Western 
Australia, the Hon Mark McGowan MLA as our responsible 
minister. My thanks go to the Premier for his active support 
of Lotterywest in our work this year. This includes his 
leadership of the passage of amendments to the Act to 
enable the Lotterywest COVID-19 response, and his active 
support of our strategic approach in response to our 
community’s needs. 

Finally, the great staff at Lotterywest have achieved a lot in 
what has been an extraordinary year. Thank you to all the 
talented Lotterywest team. 
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Strategic framework
Lotterywest’s 2018-23 Strategic Plan contains five focus areas, each with a key focus identifying expectations for the organisation by 2023.

O
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Stakeholder 
management

Operating our 
business

Products and 
services

Channel Brand

Lotterywest is trusted and 
valued by its key stakeholders 

(Government, retailers, 
beneficiaries and customers, 

the Bloc) as a proficient, 
reliable and fair partner in all 

our interactions.

Creating public value

Delivering excellent customer experience

Smarter internal processes

Optimising capability

Delivering increasing 
public value to Western 

Australia through the 
right combination of skills, 
technology and process.

An expanded customer 
base that is increasingly 

satisfied, loyal, and 
active in consuming our 
products and services.

Sustainably distributing 
products and services to 

customers where they are, 
how and when they want.

Brand equity making us 
Western Australia’s lottery and 

grant-maker of choice, and 
for it to strengthen our social 

licence to operate.
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Organisational 
structure 

Board of Commissioners 
Peter Klinken AC (Chair) 

Miriam Borthwick 
Stephen Carre 

Elisabeth McLellan  
Kingsley Dixon 

Jim McGinty AM 

Chief Executive Officer 
Susan Hunt PSM

Minister Responsible 
Premier 

Hon. Mark McGowan MLA

Executive Support Media and Communications

Corporate Services
General Manager

Jeremy Hubble CFO

Grants and Community Development
General Manager

Lorna Pritchard

Lotteries
General Manager

Ioannis Gerothanasis

Information Services
Chief Information Officer

Christian Rasmussen

Analysis and Monitoring

Development and Assurance

Lottery Operations and Support

Lottery Strategy

Marketing and Sales

Information Services 
Development

Information Services Operations

Information Services Strategy 
and Planning

Grant Administration and Support

Grants Development and 
Partnerships

Community Impact and Analysis

Health promotion

Business Services

Finance Services

Legal Services

People and Culture

Planning

Risk Management and Audit

Security and Assurance
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Professor Peter Klinken AC FAHMS FTSE CitWA 
(Chair) joined the Lotterywest Board as Chair in October 
2018. Professor Klinken is an eminent leader, academic, 
scientist, and for over 15 years was the Director of the 
Western Australian Institute of Medical Research and the 
Harry Perkins Institute of Medical Research. Presently, he 
is the Chief Scientist of Western Australia and was made 
a Companion of the Order of Australia in 2017. Professor 
Klinken graduated from the University of Western Australia 
with a Bachelor of Science, a PhD in Biochemistry and 
Diploma of Education, and is also the Chair of the Western 
Australian Health Promotion Foundation (Healthway) Board.

Corporate structure 
Board of Management

Ms Miriam Borthwick joined the Lotterywest Board 
in April 2015. She is an experienced journalist, strategic 
communications specialist and media relations advisor. She 
is the Senior Media Advisor to the Harry Perkins Institute of 
Medical Research and consults to a wide range of clients. 
Ms Borthwick is currently a Board member of Healthway, 
Rocky Bay and the Hale School Foundation. She sits on 
various committees including Women in Media and Rowing 
WA’s philanthropic program, Making Waves. She is a 
graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Hon. Jim McGinty AM joined the Lotterywest Board 
in August 2018. During his 19-year term as Member for 
Fremantle in the Western Australian Parliament, he held 
positions of Minister for Health (2003–08), Attorney-General 
(2001-08) and Leader of the Opposition (1994-96). As 
Attorney-General, he is recognised for his contribution to law 
reform to reflect 21st century standards and values. Among 
his community commitments, Mr McGinty is Chair of North 
Metropolitan Health Service, Chair of Communicare, Deputy 
Chair of Access Housing Australia and a Board member of 
Healthway. He is a former Board member of Telethon Kids 
Institute and Brightwater Care Group. He also volunteers 
with Fremantle Sea Rescue.
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Mr Stephen Carre joined the Lotterywest Board in 
December 2013. Mr Carre brings a wealth of experience as a 
small business owner of his multi-award winning IGA store 
in Swanbourne. He has interests in the Western Australian 
food and distribution business Farm to Table, which supports 
farmers to distribute their products to independent retailers 
and supermarkets. Mr Carre is also a Board member of 
Healthway and has held senior roles at Bankwest and 
worked nationally with Westpac, National Australia Bank and 
Insurance Australia Group. He is a CPA and has a Bachelor 
of Business and MBA. He is a Fellow of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors and is the Chair of the 
Lotterywest Audit and Risk Management Committee. 

Ms Elisabeth McLellan joined the Lotterywest Board in 
January 2018. Ms McLellan is a leading conservationist 
based in Geraldton and has spent more than 25 years 
at the forefront of conservation, including over 15 years 
working on endangered species conservation in Africa, 
Asia and Australia with WWF. Ms McLellan now works with 
Bush Heritage Australia in a regional management role, 
where she’s responsible for delivering landscape-scale 
conservation impacts at three conservation properties in 
Midwest Australia. Ms McLellan is a member of the Shark 
Bay World Heritage Advisory Committee and a member 
of the International Union for Conservation of Nature’s 
(IUCN) World Commission on Protected Areas and Species 
Survival Commission. She holds a Bachelor of Science 
(Hons), Master of Applied Science and a Graduate Diploma 
of Education. 

Professor Kingsley Dixon joined the Lotterywest Board in 
December 2017. Professor Dixon is a renowned botanist and 
Western Australia’s 2016 Scientist of the Year. Throughout 
his career, Professor Dixon has played a leading role in 
conserving threatened species and transforming ecological 
restoration practice in Australia. Holding a Bachelor of 
Science (Hons) and PhD from the University of Western 
Australia, Professor Dixon is also a Board member of the 
International Society for Ecological Restoration, Foundation 
Chair of The Society for Ecological Restoration Australasia, 
Co-chair of the IUCN Orchid Specialist Group, Foundation 
Chair of the International Network for Seed Based 
Restoration and member of the federal Threatened Species 
Scientific Committee and the Alligator Rivers Research and 
Technical Committee. He is the Foundation Chair of the 
international operatic cultural group FROLIC. 
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Corporate structure 
Leadership team

Ms Susan Hunt PSM commenced as Chief Executive 
Officer of Lotterywest in July 2017, and in January 2018 
was concurrently appointed Chief Executive Officer 
for Healthway, another Western Australian statutory 
organisation. From 2004-17 she was the CEO of Perth 
Zoo, following a career in public policy, conservation 
and research. Susan was the President of the World 
Association of Zoos and Aquariums from 2015-17, and of 
the Australasian Zoo Association from 2007-11. Susan has 
previously served as a Board Member of the Trustee of 
the International Species Information System, is on the 
Board of VenuesWest as well as an invitee on the Board 
of the Perth Festival. Susan is a Fellow of the Australian 
and New Zealand School of Government and in 2017 
was made an Australian Fellow of the Institute of Public 
Administration (IPAA). She has received an IPAA Patrons 
Award and in 2010 was awarded a Public Service Medal 
for her outstanding contribution to public service.

Ms Lorna Pritchard leads Lotterywest’s Grants & 
Community Development business unit which is responsible 
for the distribution of grants into the Western Australian 
community. Lorna hails from New Zealand and has 
worked with communities for over 26 years, to support the 
development of their great ideas, identify and work with local 
leaders to strengthen community and broker solutions to 
emerging and existing issues. Throughout her career, Lorna 
has chosen roles where she can make an impact and is a 
key champion of community, culture and collaboration. She 
drives success, embraces change and new initiatives, and 
works to ensure Lotterywest continues to be a leading grant 
maker in WA.

Mr Jeremy Hubble leads Lotterywest’s Corporate 
Services business unit which is responsible for the 
organisation’s financial, legal, audit and risk, planning, 
business services, security and human resources 
operations. He is responsible for overarching financial 
management, governance and statutory compliance. 
Jeremy is a qualified Chartered Accountant with 
substantial experience in commerce and government. He 
has extensive corporate governance experience and is a 
member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 
Before joining Lotterywest, Jeremy was a senior 
executive in both state and local government for 20 years 
and has held senior positions in major accounting and 
public commercial entities. He holds a Bachelor of 
Business and a Master of Business Administration.
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Mr Ioannis Gerothanasis leads Lotterywest’s Lotteries 
business unit which is responsible for marketing, sales, 
operational support, business and game development 
and key lottery projects. He has 18 years of international 
management experience working for large multi-national 
organisations on projects in the Asia Pacific, North and 
South America, Europe and the Middle East, initially in 
the travel and tourism industry, and later in the lottery 
industry. Ioannis has substantial experience in project and 
program management, information technology and public 
and private sector tendering. He holds a Bachelor of 
Business in Management and Organisational Behaviour.

Mr Christian Rasmussen is Lotterywest’s Chief 
Information Officer and is a highly experienced 
and business focused information technology (IT) 
leader with a long track record of successful digital 
transformation, organisational change management 
and technology leadership. Christian has worked in a 
variety of industries over his 30-year career, including 
higher education, engineering and construction, 
mining, oil and gas, banking and defence. Most 
recently, Christian was the Chief Information Officer 
at Curtin University where he led more than 200 
IT professionals and transformed the university’s 
front-line systems and services. Christian was also 
the Group Manager Information Technology for 
Monadelphous Group Ltd and was responsible 
for technology across their group of companies. 
From 2005-08, he was the Director of Information 
Technology Services at the University of Western 
Australia, responsible for overall university IT strategy 
and core services. Christian has also held director and 
advisory roles on numerous boards.
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A grant from Lotterywest’s COVID-19 Relief Fund is helping Give Write provide school packs to remote and regional communities.
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Significant issues impacting the agency

COVID-19 triggered unprecedented and complex changes 
to our business. The initial impact to our lottery business 
was significant disruption to our retail stores, with some 
having to adjust trading hours, staffing and daily operations. 
Consumer reluctance to visit retail environments saw a 
marginal shift in behaviour for some of our players, some 
of whom opted to play online. To support retailers, we 
established a $17.5 million COVID-19 Retailer Incentive 
Package, providing retailer incentives and fee relief. The 
easing of restrictions in WA and a resulting increase in 
consumer confidence, saw the community resume visiting 
retail stores, resulting in stronger than expected sales by 
the end of 2019-20. 

Lotterywest’s vision to build a better Western Australia 
together has never been more relevant in the uncertain 
times caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. In March 2020, 
the Premier announced the redirection of our entire 
grants program to a $159 million Lotterywest COVID-19 
Relief Fund to support Western Australians experiencing 
hardship as a result of the pandemic. Given this change 
in direction to respond to dire need in our community, 
we have seen resulting impacts on our financial reserves 
and delays and changes to the implementation of 
planned initiatives. The period has also highlighted that 
historical trends may no longer be reliable indicators of 
consumer behaviour and the rate of economic recovery. 
The impact of these factors is expected to be felt in 
upcoming financial years and may include a reduction in 
lottery sales, operating costs and contribution to the WA 
community through distributing grants. 

COVID-19 response 
and recovery

Our response

Revenue volatility

Revenue volatility remains a significant issue for us. 
In addition to the challenges COVID-19 has brought, 
lottery sales continue to be heavily reliant on the size 
and frequency of prize jackpots in games such as 
OZ Lotto and Powerball. 

We closely monitor jackpot occurrences, market 
conditions and player behaviour to ensure we project 
our best estimate of revenue. This is more important 
than ever as we recover from COVID-19 and respond 
to unprecedented market conditions. Regrettably 
this fluctuation in sales impacts our statutory 
commitments to hospitals, sports and arts, which 
represent a percentage of sales. When sales are less 
than expected our total grant distribution declines; 
however revenue volatility will not affect the total 
committed towards community grants through the 
$159 million COVID-19 Relief Fund. 
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Our response Our response Our response

Cyber risk and 
fraudulent activity

Responsible gambling

The increased risk of cyber-attacks and fraudulent 
activity are posing ongoing risks to the integrity, 
security and availability of our operating systems.

Recognising that cyber security remains a core focus 
in our organisation, in August 2019 we were recertified 
for ISO27001 ‘Information Security Management’ and 
World Lottery Association “Security Control Standard”. 
We’ve implemented a program to continually monitor, 
identify and respond to the latest security threats 
and risks and to enhance our security systems. We 
continue to run an education program for employees 
on how to avoid common security pitfalls.

Digital innovation

Some players of our games may be affected by 
gambling addiction, resulting in individual and 
community harm.

We’re committed to being a leader in our response 
to gambling safety. During the year we finalised 
a submission to the World Lottery Association to 
upgrade our lottery accreditation in responsible 
gambling. We will be able to report the outcome 
of this submission in next year’s report, and we 
will continue to improve our effectiveness in 
minimising harm from the use of lottery products 
and educating our staff, retailers and players on 
responsible gambling.

Consumer behaviour is changing and our customer 
engagement and distribution channels are evolving 
to keep pace. Critical to our success is delivering an 
improved, seamless and contemporary customer 
experience harnessing digital initiatives with a 
‘customer first’ focus. 

Investment in digital capability ensures we 
can serve our customers in contemporary 
and innovative ways, meetings their needs for 
convenient, secure and engaging ways to play 
our games. In doing so, we provide a positive 
experience that is at least equivalent or better than 
other similar such digital offerings. 
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Photo by David Dare Parker: Screenwest - H is for Happiness. (c) Happiness Productions
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$292m
Total given in direct and 

statutory grant allocations 

grants to 688 not-for-profit 
organisations and local 
government authorities816 $139m

$17.5m

$17.5m
Community Investment Framework

Health

Arts

Sports

Direct grants Statutory allocations

447 
grants

369 
grants

$66.7 
million

$37.5 
million

422 
organisations

330 
organisations

COVID-19 Relief Fund

$104m

of grants customers ‘satisfied’ or 
‘very satisfied’

93%

grant 
payments of 

$7m each

total

2

Direct 
grants and 
payments

$118m $174m

Statutory 
allocations

$14m
Screenwest and  

Perth Festival

* 93% of grants customers reported they were either satisfied or very satisfied with the service experience pre-COVID-19 (Feb 2020) based on 193 responses.
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Grants overview
Statutory allocations
Throughout the financial year we provided statutory 
allocations to Health, Sports and the Arts. These are made 
in accordance with the requirements of the Lotteries 
Commission Act 1990 (Act). During this financial year, we 
provided $174 million through statutory allocations. 

Community Investment Framework
Between 1 July 2019 to 29 February 2020, 447 grants totalling 
$66.7 million were approved to support the WA community 
via the Lotterywest Healthway Community Investment 
Framework. The Framework encompasses five priority areas 
and 14 associated outcomes, aligning with Lotterywest’s 
2018-23 Strategic Plan to enhance the quality of life and 
wellbeing for all Western Australians. 

COVID-19 Relief Fund
In March 2020, we launched the COVID-19 Relief Fund to 
respond to the hardship being experienced by Western 
Australians as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The fund 
focused on three initial grant programs:

1. Crisis and Emergency Relief 

2. Sector Support for Resilient Organisations

3. Event Cancellation Relief for Arts, Sports and Community 
Groups. 

We provided grants totalling $37.5 million through the fund to 
not-for-profit organisations and local government authorities. 
We also amended our Act to provide us with temporary 
powers to distribute funds to other public authorities 
to provide approved grant programs during and after 

Other grant payments
Direct grant payments were made in accordance with the 
Act to Screenwest and Perth Festival of $7 million each, 
totalling $14 million.

COVID-19. Two grants were allocated to the Department of 
Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries (DLGSC) 
in accordance with the amended legislation for an amount 
of $6.9 million. DLGSC has distributed grants to 106 sporting 
and recreation organisations. A further $10 million has been 
committed to the DLGSC for recovery initiatives to support 
the Sport and Arts sectors.

Photo by Jess Wyld: Perth Festival
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Grants highlights 2019-20

The COVID-19 Relief Fund was 
implemented to swiftly respond to the 

impacts on the WA community. 

We reviewed and processed an 
unprecedented number of grants in 
one month; the equivalent to what is 

normally approved within an entire year.

We led and delivered two new 
grant programs in partnership 

with the DLGSC. 

We participated in a wide range 
of key forums, taskforces and 
networks, across government 
and in the not-for-profit sector 

sharing knowledge and targeting 
community need.

We launched an online Grants 
Management Tool to help our 
customers manage their grant 

monies and to share stories about 
the impact of their grants.

Photo by Monica Defendi: City of South Perth. 

Photo by Edwin Sitt. Chorus Australia

Photo by Jessica Wyld: City of Perth
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Statutory allocations 

Health
$139m 

Sports
$17.5m

Arts
$17.5m $174m

Statutory grants

Funding from Lotterywest has helped us to deliver high-quality healthcare 
services to communities throughout Western Australia, improving the health 
and wellbeing of our growing population.
Dr David Russell-Weisz 
Director General Department of Health

We’ve distributed more than $174 million in statutory allocations to health, culture and the 
arts, and sport and recreation this financial year. The Act specifies how net gaming revenue, 
that is ticket subscription less prize payment, is to be distributed. Of this, 40 per cent is to 
be distributed to the State Pool Account on behalf of WA Health. A further five per cent 
is specified for the Sports Lotteries Account and five per cent goes to the Arts Lotteries 
Account. The respective Minister for each of these portfolios is responsible for the 
subsequent distribution of these funds. 

Culture and the arts
In 2019-20, approximately $17.5 million dollars was provided to the Department of Local 
Government, Sport and Cultural Industries (DLGSC) through the Arts Lotteries Account.

Funding from Lotterywest to more than 40 arts and cultural organisations enables them 
to assist in creating high quality works that reflect who we are as a community. They 
ensure access to, and participation in, arts and cultural experiences. Activities have ranged 
from intimate to large-scale theatre, music, visual arts, opera, dance, literature and free 
community events, showcasing work by leading international artists alongside our own 
world-class talent.

A highlight included the sold-out season of Bran Nue Dae in February 2020. The much-loved 
WA story was presented at the Regal Theatre by West Australian Opera in association with 
Perth Festival. 

Photo by Prudence Upton: West Australian Opera and Perth Festival season of Bran Nue Dae, an Opera Conference production.
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Sport and recreation
In 2019-20, approximately $17.5 million dollars was provided to the Department of Local 
Government, Sport and Cultural Industries (DLGSC) through the Sports Lotteries Account.

In keeping with the Act, this funding helped DLGSC support sport and recreation programs 
and organisations throughout Western Australia. 

A total of $9.6 million went to assist the operations of 87 State Sporting Associations which 
include some 4,700 local sporting clubs.

A further $5.7 million went to supporting the operations of the Western Australian Institute 
of Sport, as well as $280,000 to support Western Australia’s Olympic athletes in their 
preparations for the Tokyo Olympics. 

Significant funding was also provided to directly support the delivery of sporting 
opportunities in regional WA through various regional grants schemes, including travel 
subsidies to help regional athletes train and compete around WA to help ensure they can 
reach their full potential. 

Funding also went to help deliver numerous sporting events in metropolitan and regional WA.

Health and hospitals 
Lotterywest has allocated $139 million in funding to hospitals and health projects across 
the State, ensuring that the WA health system can deliver safe, high quality and sustainable 
health care to more than 2.6 million Western Australians. Employing 47,855 staff across 
metropolitan, regional and remote locations, the WA health system offers services to 
communities spanning an area of 2.5 million square kilometres. 

In the WA health system in the past 12 months there were:

 • 1,055,586 Emergency Department attendances

 • 32,669 births

 • 81,657 Elective Surgery admissions

 • 182,513 COVID-19 tests.

Credit: Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries

Credit: Department of Health
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Screenwest and Perth Festival grant payments
Thalu 
Set against the backdrop of the majestic Pilbara, Thalu is a Children’s TV show with all the 
energy of live-action and all the colour of a cartoon. The series aired on NITV starring a cast 
of Indigenous children, who undertake a journey to save their Country. (Weerianna Street 
Media)

The Furnace 
A feature film bringing WA’s gold rush to the big screen for the first time, starring David 
Wenham, The Furnace spotlights the little known history of Australia's cameleers and their 
relationship with our first nations people. (The Koop and Cyan Films)

The Heights Season 2 
Season two continues to showcase the life-affirming, family-friendly storytelling audiences 
have come to expect and with heart, humour and honesty. The production was arguably one 
of the most significant WA projects in terms of WA crew and screen practitioner employment 
in the state, and is now available to view on ABC as well as in the UK on BBC’s streaming 
platform. (Matchbox Pictures and For Pete’s Sake Productions)

Western Australian Screen Industry Sustainability Package
The most vital program Screenwest successfully delivered through the support of Lotterywest, 
is the Western Australian Screen Industry Sustainability Package, in direct response to the 
needs of the industry during the COVID-19 pandemic. This package was designed to sustain 
and develop the WA Screen Industry, through the COVID-19 crisis, for up to six months.

On behalf of our local screen industry, I wish to thank the Board and staff 
and of course the many hundreds of thousands of Western Australians who 
play Lotterywest games each year and the small businesses who sell them 
– without them we wouldn’t be able to bring Western Australian stories and 
identity to the screen for the benefit of all.
Willie Rowe 
Screenwest CEO

Under Section 22(2)(e) of the Act, Lotterywest pays an amount each year not exceeding 
five per cent of the net subscriptions received from lottery operations in total for the 
purposes of:

 • Funding incentives to undertake, or projects to facilitate the undertaking of, commercial 
film production in Western Australia; and 

 • Assisting the funding of the Perth Festival. 

Currently, these payments are made to Screenwest and the University of Western Australia 
(for Perth Festival) respectively. The payments are distinct from the statutory allocations 
to health, sports and the arts. They are managed via a grant approved by the Minister and 
paid out of Lotterywest’s direct grants budget. This year we provided $7 million each to 
Screenwest and Perth Festival totalling $14 million.

Since 1992, we’ve made it possible for Screenwest to produce over 530 Western Australian 
feature films, television shows, documentaries and web-series. Screenwest funded three 
scripted feature films, three scripted television series, five interactive pilot projects and 
numerous long and short form factual and on demand programs. Western Australian stories 
were told in our stunning locations by our dedicated screen industry. Some of these include: 

Credit: Screenwest - The Furnace - Hanif Woorak & Camel Train
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Perth Festival 
Western Australians and visitors from afar shared a joyous community celebration of people 
and place at Perth Festival 2020 on Noongar Boodjar (Noongar land).

Audiences embraced the diverse and exciting program from the opening week of entirely 
First Nations performances to the epic free Festival finale of Highway to Hell, which rolled 
through eight suburbs from Canning Bridge to Fremantle. Nearly a quarter (23 per cent) 
of the 413,000 total attendances were by people experiencing the Festival for the first time. 
Many of them said they felt the Festival enhanced social harmony, made them feel proud 
of Perth and better connected to their community. Festival 2020 – the first of four under 
Artistic Director Iain Grandage – was built on a bedrock of Indigenous culture and featured 
207 free and ticketed events including 10 new commissions, 12 world premieres, seven 
Australian premieres and 30 WA premieres. The many highlights included the Noongar-
language play Hecate, the new City of Lights entertainment and community hub at Perth 
Concert Hall and the Lotterywest Films season at UWA Somerville Auditorium. The Festival 
invested in significant WA-international collaborations and more than 75 per cent of the 
2286 participating artists at Festival 2020 were from WA.

We are immensely grateful for the support of the people of Western Australia 
through our Principal Partner Lotterywest. Our Festival only exists with 
your support, which gives us the confidence and capacity to dream big and 
deliver what we hope are unforgettable experiences for our community to 
share together.
Ian Grandage 
Artistic Director Perth Festival

Photo by Cam Campbell: Perth Festival
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Grant making by Community Investment Framework priority areas

Inclusive 
thriving 

community 

Connected 
cultural 

experiences 

Protected 
sustainable 
ecosystems 

Smart 
innovative 

society 

Active 
healthy 
people

Assisting our community to 
be more active and support 

initiatives which promote 
healthy lives.

Supporting our community 
to sustain and enhance 
our unique species and 

environments.

Optimising our 
community’s talent 

and capability.

Supporting the diversity 
of Western Australians 
to actively engage in 

community life.

Bringing people together 
through the arts, 

heritage and cultural 
activities.

 • Our community is 
connected with, and cares 
for, our natural heritage

 • Ecosystems and 
endangered species are 
protected and restored

 • Our community’s impact 
on the environment and 
animals is reduced

 • More people have a stronger 
sense of belonging in their 
community

 • Vulnerability and 
disadvantage is reduced 
across our community

 • Raised community 
connection and participation

 • Western Australia is a 
leader in new thinking 
and innovation

 • Knowledge and capability 
are shared for the benefit 
of our community

 • Talent is attracted 
to and retained in 
Western Australia

 • Our community is 
connected through arts 
and cultural activities

 • Indigenous heritage and 
culture is respected, 
acknowledged and 
embraced

 • Western Australia’s 
cultural heritage is 
shared and preserved

 • More Western Australians 
live healthy lifestyles 

 • More Western Australians 
are mentally healthy

Pr
io

ri
ty

 a
re

as
O

ut
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m
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Grant investment streams
GRASSROOTS & COMMUNITY INITIATIVES: to help 
build stronger and healthier communities by supporting 

local activities and regional community initiatives

DEVELOPING SOLUTIONS: to assist the development 
of solutions that will have a greater community impact

COMMUNITY LEGACY: to invest in collaborative 
initiatives that will make lasting and significant change 

for the community

OUTCOMES MEASURING COMMUNITY IMPACT: showing what was achieved and what difference was made for the community

This priority is delivered 
in partnership with 

Healthway 

Between 1 July 2019 to 29 February 2020, we were delivering our grant-making through the Lotterywest Healthway Community Investment Framework.
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63 grants $19.4m - Statewide

447 grants $66.7m - Total

Community Investment Framework grants map

183 grants $24.8m - Perth 

14 grants $3.7m - Kimberley 

55 grants $6.9m - South West

15 grants $193k - Peel

20 grants $2.3m - Mid West

11 grants $1.9m - Pilbara

20 grants $2.2m - Great Southern

45 grants $3.1m - Wheatbelt

4 grants $706k - Gascoyne

17 grants $1.4m - Goldfields-Esperance

Photo by Sheldon Ang: Perth Festival
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Inclusive thriving 
community 

Together with our grant customers we’ve 
supported:

1. More people having a stronger sense 
of community belonging in their 
communities: 42 grants $2.6 million.

2. Reducing vulnerability and 
disadvantage: 130 grants $21.6 million. 

3. Raised community connection and 
participation: 123 grants $17.4 million.

We’ve invested in this priority area to support 
the diversity of Western Australians and create 

active engagement in community life.

295 grants
totalling approximately 

$41.6 million

Photo by Matt Biocich: City of Canning

Getting muddy with unstructured play in 
the City of Canning 
The City of Canning hosts free family events throughout the year, encouraging 
residents to explore the venues and parks within their local area and connect with 
their community. Families enjoyed the outdoors at the Muddy Hands Festival in 
October 2019, allowing children to engage with the tactile elements of nature.

In November 2019, the Live at the Amphitheatre concert series saw local musical 
acts provide free entertainment for all ages. This included a collaboration between 
Noongar elder Dr Richard Walley and the Junkedelic Brass Band to present the 
Six Seasons Concert, a collection of original songs for the six Noongar Seasons. A 
Lotterywest grant of $40,000 allowed the City to provide these activities and a sense 
of community to around 13,000 people across these two events.
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Ocean Heroes 
A Lotterywest grant of $26,149 towards Ocean Heroes is helping to provide surfing equipment 
and marquees to support the delivery of services for children and young people living with 
autism, to participate in physical activity. Ocean Heroes seek to break down emotional and 
social barriers experienced by those living with autism, and provide children the opportunity 
to participate in an activity outside their comfort zone and build confidence. 

“We have grown the program so much since we started in July 2019 and have conducted over 
300 sessions. Part of the grant went towards warmer wetsuits and better boards allowing us 
to run sessions all year rather than just the warmer months. If it wasn’t for the Lotterywest 
grant this would not have been possible,” Luke Hallam Co-Founder said. 

Opportunities for young people to safely enjoy 
recreational activities 
A Youth Precinct on the Jurien Bay foreshore is set to provide opportunities for young 
people to safely enjoy recreational activities. The $1,127,654 grant will support development 
of the Jurien Bay Youth Precinct and will provide a multigenerational activity space for the 
community of approximately 2,500 people, including a district-level skatepark for families in 
surrounding areas. The precinct encourages community cohesiveness while providing young 
people activities in a safe area with active surveillance. 

“The Shire takes pride in building cohesive and contemporary public places and is thrilled 
to have the support of Lotterywest to bring our Youth Precinct vision to life,” Shire President 
Leslee Holmes said.

Credit: Ocean Heroes

Credit: Shire of Dandaragan
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Connected cultural 
experiences 

Together with our grant customers 
we’ve supported:

1. Our community to connect 
through arts and cultural activities: 
98 grants $5.7 million.

2. Indigenous heritage and culture 
respected, acknowledged and 
embraced: 8 grants $4.2 million.

3. WA’s cultural heritage to be shared 
and preserved: 11 grants $300,000.

We’ve invested in this priority area to bring 
people together through the arts, heritage and 

cultural activities.

117 grants
totalling approximately 

$10.2 million
Photo by Jon Gellweiler: Bunbury Multicultural Group

Celebrating multiculturalism in the South West region 
Bunbury Multicultural Group promotes understanding and friendship between all ethnic groups 
throughout the Bunbury and South West region. It organises a range of social events showcasing the 
cultural diversity of the region and encourages community participation.

A $20,000 Lotterywest grant supported access, advertising and performance costs for the South 
West Multicultural Festival 2020, to increase community cohesion and celebrate multiculturalism. The 
event invited groups from the South West to share their unique cultures through food, music, dance 
performances and activities.

“The South West Multicultural Festival has become synonymous with the celebration of the cultural 
diversity of the South West region, connecting people to their community, helping to build bridges, and 
dispel cultural myths and perceptions,” Chairperson Shamara Williams said.
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Photo by Lincoln Mackinnon: City of Albany

Credit: Wyndham Historical Society

Restoring Menang Noongar place names in the 
City of Albany 
Lotterywest has provided $134,060 towards the Restoring Menang Noongar Place Names 
project to support cultural reconciliation and a range of summer community events that 
encourage diversity and celebrate significant occasions. The project, through the support of a 
$134,060 Lotterywest grant, enabled the restoration and preservation of traditional names to 
promote a greater appreciation of the significance of Menang Country in Albany. 

Increasing community access to Wyndham’s 
cultural heritage 
For more than 30 years Wyndham Historical Society has been working to foster historical 
interest in Wyndham. A $28,000 grant enabled a building extension to exhibit film, 
photographs and historical artefacts of the Wyndham area including Aboriginal art and the 
Wyndham Afghan Cameleers.

“We very much appreciate the generous support of Lotterywest for our project. It has not only 
allowed us to make physical improvements to the museum but, more importantly, to have 
conversations with a range of community members and to expand on both what and how we 
exhibit our cultural stories,” Wyndham Historical Society President Dick Daniels said.
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Protected sustainable 
ecosystems

Together with our grant customers we’ve 
supported a range of initiatives to help:

1. Our community to be connected with, and 
care for, our natural heritage. 

2. Our community’s impact on the 
environment and animals to be reduced.

3. Ecosystems and endangered species to 
be protected and restored.

This year we‘ve assisted multiple animal 
rescue organisations, supported the 
rehabilitation of Carnaby Cockatoos and 
invested in the protection of biodiverse 
regions throughout Western Australia 
including the Blackwood region, Fitz-Sterling 
region, East Kimberley and Pilbara.

We’ve invested in this priority area to help sustain 
and enhance our unique species and environments.

20 grants
totalling approximately 

$4.5 million
Credit: Friends of the Cape to Cape track

Supporting community participation in conservation 
and preservation 
Friends of the Cape to Cape Track was established in 1998. Its purpose is to protect the environment and 
control access of designated trails from Cape Naturaliste to Cape Leeuwin. 

A $14,760 Lotterywest grant funded two mechanised wheelbarrows to support community participation 
in the conservation of the Cape to Cape Track. This enabled volunteers to safely transport equipment 
and materials used for the preservation and maintenance of the Track where there is no vehicle access. 
It also increased accessibility and the capacity of volunteers engaged in land care activities, reducing the 
community’s impact on the environment.
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Photo by Jermaine Davis: Carbon Neutral Charitable Fund

Photo by William Marwick: Bush Heritage Australia

Enabling communities to offset their carbon 
impact 
Carbon Neutral Charitable Fund works with landholders to utilise unused or difficult areas 
of land for carbon sequestration and rehabilitation. It does this by raising funds through 
donations and redistributes the funds towards native planting projects and ecosystem 
restorations, offsetting the community’s carbon impact. A $360,500 grant supported 
organisational development and project costs over five years, to improve the connection and 
care for the environment, including Indigenous plant and local animal species. This grant 
aims to promote carbon sequestration and revegetation, benefitting Wheatbelt farmers and 
beyond with innovative solutions to long-term environmental challenges.

“The support we have received has the potential to transform the Western Australian 
landscape at scale,” Carbon Neutral Charitable Fund CEO, Louise-Marlena Tarrier said.

Tipping the balance in favour of precious native 
species 
A project to control feral predators in the South West is tipping the balance in favour of 
precious native species thanks to a Lotterywest grant awarded to Bush Heritage Australia. 
The $775,762 grant is supporting a five-year project allowing Australian natives to thrive 
in the area between the Fitzgerald River and Stirling Ranges National Parks, where the 
conservation group has been working for nearly 20 years.

“Our work requires a long-term vision and Lotterywest’s substantial investment over five 
years means we can make a significant impact in one of Australia’s most biodiverse places, 
and ensure it’s protected now, and for generations to come,” Bush Heritage’s CEO Heather 
Campbell said.
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Smart innovative 
society

Together with our grant customers we’ve 
supported2:

1. Western Australians to be leaders in new 
thinking and innovation.

2. Knowledge and capability to be shared for 
the benefit of our community.

We’ve supported a diverse range of projects, 
equipment and innovative technologies, to 
increase community education across literacy 
and numeracy, leadership capability, health, 
financial literacy, disabilities and complex 
childhood trauma and neglect. 

We’ve invested in this priority area to optimise 
our community’s talent and capability.

15 grants
totalling approximately 

$10.4 million Credit: St Patrick’s Community Support Centre

New ways to re-engage young people in education
We supported St Patrick’s Community Support Centre with a $280,898 grant towards its Imagined Futures 
‘Keeping Kids Engaged at School Action-Research Project’. Imagined Futures explores young people’s 
disengagement from education by bringing together 60 service organisations, government agencies and 
schools, with St Patrick’s Community Support Centre. 

The project builds resilience in children at primary school, supporting their transition into secondary 
school and promoting engagement in school and community activities, which will look to be replicated 
throughout Western Australia.

2 The third outcome area of “talent attracted and retained in Western Australia” was not funded during this financial year.
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Credit: Parkerville Children and Youth Care

Credit: Chorus Australia 

WA Centre for Excellence to support 
traumatised children to recover
Parkerville Children and Youth Care in partnership with the Australian Centre for Child 
Protection is establishing the WA Centre for Excellence in Responding to Child Abuse and 
Neglect, thanks to a $3 million Lotterywest grant. The Centre will build capability within the 
sector to better assess, treat and prevent trauma caused through child abuse and neglect.

Innovation to reduce social isolation
Chorus Australia Limited is using a $500,000 Lotterywest grant towards a new model of 
place-based service delivery with individual relationships and communities at the centre. It 
will use social innovation laboratory expertise to design and test innovations which increase 
the authenticity of social connections and reduce social isolation. 

The grant will support the development of the Chorus “Fresh Approach”, a more individualised 
and community-centred way of working with people. A team of Chorus staff and volunteers 
are trialling the concept of a community village in the Perth suburb of Bull Creek. The 
project aims to increase connection, activity and wellbeing – as well as providing practical 
support – for everyone, particularly older people and those living with disability or mental 
illness. Learnings from the project will be shared with the wider sector through events, a 
documentary and toolkit.
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Active healthy 
people 

Together with Healthway and our grant 
customers we’ve supported:

1. More Western Australians to live 
healthy lifestyles. 

2. More Western Australians to be 
mentally healthy.

We’ve invested in this priority area to assist 
our community to be more active and support 

initiatives which promote healthy lives. Grants 
in this priority area were also funded to achieve 

outcomes in other Community Investment 
Framework priority areas with the Active Healthy 

People outcomes identified as a ‘secondary 
outcome’ of the grant.

198 grants
totalling approximately 

$37.6 million

Healthway and Lotterywest - collaboration for 
healthier communities 
Combined grant funding of $821,000 (Lotterywest $521,000 and Healthway $300,000) was provided 
to set up a new program to support young Aboriginal people living in the Gascoyne and Murchison 
regions to keep healthy and active. The Stephen Michael Foundation Ltd. will deliver the Strong 
and Active Communities program to remote and isolated communities, and use sport, recreation, 
community and cultural activities to support health and wellbeing. This is the first application that 
has been a collaborative assessment effort between both Lotterywest and Healthway, as part of our 
commitment to invest in programs that build better and healthier Western Australian communities. 

Seniors Week - Celebrating healthy ageing
Lotterywest provided funding of $77,000 to the Council on the Ageing (COTA) for the 2019 Seniors 
Awards and community activities across the State for Seniors Week. These events provided 
opportunities for Western Australians of all ages to celebrate the valuable contributions of older 
people in our community. The Seniors Awards are community driven with metropolitan and country 
communities nominating seniors who have made a significant, positive contributions to improving the 
lives of local people.

Credit: Huemen Media
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This grant is a strong example of Lotterywest and Healthway working together to offer complementary grants 
programs supporting young people living in regional and remote communities in Western Australia.
Hon Roger Cook MLA 
Deputy Premier; Minister for Health; Mental Health

Credit: Huemen Media 
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COVID-19 
Relief Fund

Lotterywest played an important role in 
the State Government’s response to the 

impacts of COVID-19. In March 2020, 
the Premier announced the $159 million 

COVID-19 Relief Fund. Lotterywest worked 
rapidly to design and deliver three initial 
grant programs within this dynamic and 

uncertain environment.

$37.5 million
across

369 Grants

Event cancellation and Sector support for resilient 
organisation grants

 These grants provided 
urgent financial relief for 

not-for-profit sports, arts and 
community organisations that 

experienced hardship as a 
result of cancelled events from 
COVID-19, and to compensate 
for lost revenue and incurred 

or committed operational costs 
associated with the event.

These grants enabled 
not-for-profit sporting, arts 

and community organisations 
across the state to maintain 

staff, pivot operations, 
collaborate, develop new 

ways of working, innovate and 
maintain viability. 

A Taskforce was established 
comprising of Lotterywest, 

VenuesWest and the DLGSC, 
to develop an agreed criteria 

for the Event cancellation relief 
and Sector support for resilient 

organisations programs as 
a response to the impact of 

COVID-19. 

Taskforce 
established

Sector support 
grants

227154
Sector support 
grants totalling 

Event cancellation 
grants totalling

$19 million$7.3 million
for the Arts, Sports and 

Community3.
for the Arts, Sports and 

Community3.

Event cancellation 
grants

3 Includes grants distributed in partnership with DLGSC. Through the partnership, Lotterywest was able to 
distribute funds to sporting organisations via two grants given to DLGSC.
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33 grants $3.7m - Perth 

15 grants $767k - Kimberley 

9 grants $1.5m - South West

7 grants $276k - Peel

5 grants $129k - Mid West

4 grants $812k - Pilbara

3 grants $652k - Great Southern

2 grants $148k - Wheatbelt

1 grants $212k - Gascoyne

11 grants $2.9m - Statewide

93 grants $11.2m - Total

3 grants $102k - Goldfields-Esperance

COVID-19 Crisis and 
Emergency Relief grants
The Crisis and Emergency Relief program was 
established as part of the COVID-19 Relief Fund and 
supported Western Australian not-for-profit community 
sector organisations, and local government authorities, to 
provide crisis and emergency relief services to:

 • People experiencing hardship and who are at risk 
of becoming entrenched in disadvantage due to the 
crisis,

 • People newly experiencing hardship as a result of 
COVID-19; and

 • People most at risk of serious infection (immune 
compromised, older people, diagnosed chronic 
medical conditions, Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander peoples).

We’ve assisted with increased demand for crisis relief 
services and provided support for food, utilities, shelter 
and necessary items for those in immediate crisis. 

Since the COVID-19 crisis, there have been rapid changes 
in community needs including increasing areas of 
vulnerability and in the type of support required. 

Major projects supported have been collaborative and 
across sectors, for example working with Western 
Australian Council of Social Service (WACOSS) to develop 
an online Community Organised Resource Exchange 
resource (CORE) for connecting community organisations 
with key resources during crises and disasters. 

We worked in collaboration with the emergency relief 
and food relief sectors and Department of Social Services 
(DSS) to make sure our rapid response was coordinated 
and prioritised urgent and emerging areas of need.

Please note that our funding was cognisant of existing Lotterywest Emergency Relief grants and DSS Emergency Relief funding.
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COVID-19 Crisis and Emergency Relief Grant Stories

Supporting women and families in crisis 
Zonta House Women's Refuge

COVID-19 has seen an increase in demand for Zonta House 
and its support services. Zonta House provides support to 
women and their families who are experiencing or are at 
risk of experiencing family and domestic violence in Perth’s 
South East. The grant of $195,125 supports project costs and 
assisted the organisation to provide face to face, video and 
telephone support, deliver essential items, provide advocacy 
and seek long-term accommodation options. 

Stopping Family Violence Inc 

We’re supporting a 12-month project responding to family 
domestic violence in Derby. The $101,418 grant for Stopping 
Family Violence Inc is working to improve perpetrator 
accountability, and address some of the potential additional 
factors impacting women and children experiencing family 
and domestic violence during the COVID-19 crisis. Some of 
these include social distancing, isolation and alcohol abuse 
as a result of the COVID-19 restrictions, which may increase 
risk for victim-survivors of family and domestic violence.

The goal of this grant is to help build confidence and 
competence of front-line staff and organisations to 
collectively address the specific challenges and issues 
resulting from COVID-19 and reduce risks and the incidence 
of domestic violence in Derby. 

 Supporting temporary visa holders
Australian Red Cross Society 

For 106 years, Red Cross has stood with Australians through 
disasters, emergencies and other crises. From Spanish Flu 
(in 1918) to COVID-19, the Australian Red Cross continues 
to work with vulnerable communities. Particularly people at 
heightened risk and being impacted by COVID-19, including 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples, people 
experiencing homelessness, older Australians with limited 
social connections, refugees and people seeking asylum.

A grant of $716,645 will enable Australian Red Cross to 
provide resources and support for people experiencing 
financial hardship and food stress across Western Australia. 
This includes soup patrols in the Cities of Fremantle, 
Cockburn and Perth, culturally appropriate food hampers 
and providing essential personal and hygiene items to 
people seeking asylum, refugees, migrants, homeless people 
and international students.

“This funding will enable us to address vulnerabilities among 
people who are experiencing hardships, including people 
seeking asylum and refugees, so WA is best prepared to 
address and limit the impacts of COVID-19,” WA State 
Director Craig Stewart said. 

Credit: Zonta House Women’s Refuge
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Shire of Manjimup 

The impact of COVID-19 has seen the Shire of Manjimup 
experience substantial demand for emergency shelter 
and food relief for people who are homeless or at risk of 
homelessness, including those on temporary visas. The Shire 
is working with key food relief agencies, accommodation 
providers, farmers and a range of community organisations 
to source free food and secure in-kind or low-cost supports 
and shelter. Lotterywest supported the Shire of Manjimup 
with a $428,364 grant for shelter and food relief for those 
experiencing hardship.

Providing food relief 
SecondBite

SecondBite provides essential employment of additional 
warehouse staff, transport and logistics services and 
drivers over a six-month period to support the delivery of 
emergency relief services within Western Australia. The 
grant of $363,911 will support logistical and transport costs, 
to deliver approximately 20,000 meals each week from 
Kununurra to Albany, assisting approximately 3,000 people 
in crisis each week.

“Funding from Lotterywest enabled our operations in 
Western Australia to ramp up and move food into some 
of the most isolated parts of the country. During the 
pandemic, access to nutritious food is essential for these 
isolated, at risk communities and we thank Lotterywest for 
its support in feeding those most in need,” SecondBite CEO 
Jim Mullan said. 

Supporting Aboriginal communities
Djarindjin Aboriginal Corporation

Djarindjin Aboriginal Corporation works with community 
members to achieve economic independence, education, 
self-management and the renewal of traditional culture 
of the Djarindjin community. The group aims to achieve 
this through support for seniors, after school and holiday 
activities for children and self-funded youth programs.

We’ve supported this organisation with a $43,119 grant 
towards a refrigerated 40-foot container and generator to 
support food security for Aboriginal people in the Djarindjin 
community and other Dampier Peninsula communities. The 
support will allow the Djarindjin community to maintain 
food staples for longer periods, meet demand from other 
communities and reduce reliance on emergency responses.

“Lotterywest has been of great assistance to our community 
of Djarindjin, the support we have received from Lotterywest 
has been overwhelming, particularly in the face of our recent 
worldwide pandemic,” CEO Nathan McIvor said.

Collaboration and cross-sector working 
WACOSS 

WACOSS provides peak body support to the community 
service sector in WA. In adapting to the changing 
circumstances due to COVID-19, Lotterywest was able to 
approve variations to cost and expenditure of previously 
approved grants to WACOSS, totalling $568,682. The 
organisation will be able to continue to support WA 
community service peak bodies with up to $20,000 grants, 
to support clients affected by COVID-19. Successful projects 
will facilitate immediate crisis or emergency responses, as 
well as projects working towards recovery and resilience, to 
assist vulnerable cohorts in response to the pandemic. 

A 12 month food and emergency relief sector support 
project, including an online Community Organised Resource 
Exchange (CORE) is also supported. CORE will facilitate 
the effective distribution of surplus goods and resources 
between corporate and community organisations. The 
portal will enable organisations and emergency responders 
to subscribe and receive notifications when items become 
available. This will provide more effective and collaborative 
resourcing, particularly in the current crisis, and during 
natural disasters.

Photo by Frances Andrijich: Djarindjin Aboriginal Corporation 

Credit: WACOSS



Lotterywest Annual Report 2019-2046

47 Agency performance overview

49 Customer service

50 Product sales

52 Retail

56 Our brand

58 Workforce and organisational development

59 Corporate social responsibility

Agency 
performance



Agency performance 47

COVID-19 response 
From the start of the COVID-19 pandemic, Lotterywest 
reacted swiftly to ensure its workforce was equipped 
to adapt to the crisis. This included activating the Crisis 
Management Team, ensuring workplace awareness through 
consistent communications, modifying work practices, 
undertaking risk assessments, segregating core and at-risk 
personnel and expanding working from home capability. 
Lotterywest implemented a successful period of working 
from home rotations during March, April and May. Tenders 
and contracts were reviewed to identify COVID-19 risks 
and mitigation strategies. Risk workshops and scenario 
planning sessions were held to consider COVID-19 
exposure and responses. 

Amendment to the Lotteries Commission 
Act 1990
To enable us to better respond to the COVID-19 crisis, the 
Lotteries Commission Act 1990 and its subsidiary legislation 
were amended. Temporary measures were introduced to 
permit players to continue to have the ability to claim their 
lottery prizes during and after the emergency pandemic 
period by:

 • Extending the prize payout period to up to two years in 
certain circumstances; and

 • Allowing Lotterywest to accept a copy (including a digital 
copy) of a ticket to pay prizes during the emergency 
period. 

The Lotteries Commission Act 1990 was also amended to 
allow Lotterywest to distribute residual funds during the 
COVID-19 emergency period to other State public authorities 
with the approval of the Minister to be used for approved 
purposes. 

A permanent amendment to the Lotteries Commission 
Act 1990 was also made to allow Lotterywest to deliver grant 
administration services to other public authorities.

Project costing
To assist with improving our project costing, Lotterywest has 
introduced individual project costing codes. This will improve 
reporting, accuracy and visibility of our project financial 
reporting.

Learning Management System
A new online Learning Management System was launched 
during the year which will streamline and assist us to more 
efficiently deliver training and skills development.

Technology and Cyber Security 
A new technology strategy and a technology delivery 
roadmap was produced to assist us with delivery of 
critical digital technology that supports our operations and 
enhances business growth. The gaming system hardware 
refresh project commenced in mid-2019. This project will 
see upgrades to ageing hardware used to run the core 
gaming system for all lottery operations, to increase capacity 
for online digital business growth and to ensure system 
performance during larger jackpots. This hardware refresh 
is due for completion in the latter half of 2020 and will 
provide reliability and a performance boost to the system. 
An office systems refresh saw an upgrade to Microsoft 
Office undertaken to cloud-based Microsoft Office 365. 
This was fast tracked because of COVID-19 and rolled out 
to all staff so that secure work from home was possible, 
including the new productivity tool Microsoft Teams, 
facilitating remote meetings and collaboration between staff 
and business partners. We increased our focus on cyber 
security, especially with the global online threat escalation 
that occurred during COVID-19 and the need to work from 
home. We continued our security uplift program and put in 
additional measures to bolster online protection and reduce 
risks introduced by the pandemic.

Agency performance overview

Photo by Stewart Allen
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COVID-19 retailer response
Lotterywest developed and implemented a $17.5 million 
support and incentive package to assist its approximately 
500 retail partners across the state manage the disruption 
caused by COVID-19. The support package involved a 
$30,000 individual incentive package to all current retailers. 
We also waived terminal and service fees for six months, to a 
total value of around $2.5 million.

Distribution improvement
In 2017 we undertook a substantial review exploring 
factors affecting retailers and the distribution and sale of 
Lotterywest games. This work was overseen by a specialist 
panel comprising a senior representative from the Small 
Business Development Commission, a Lotterywest Board 
representative with direct small business experience, and 
our Chief Executive Officer. Major trends impacting the 

lottery retailer business environment were identified, and 
in response, in 2019 the Premier announced a package of 
measures to improve the sustainability of lottery retailers 
across Western Australia. First there was an increase in 
the rate of commission paid to retailers, implemented in 
November 2019, with an additional $3.7 million going to 
WA’s lottery businesses from November 2019 to 1 July 2020. 
Other initiatives include: digital communications initiatives 
to drive customer traffic in-store; third party support 
services including retailer mentoring, sales coaching, and 
player insights; ongoing improvements to outlet locations 
and how they operate; and improved Lotterywest retailer 
management and support services. 

These measures have been put on hold during the state 
of emergency to focus on the acute needs of retailers and 
maintaining business continuity during this time. We are 
constantly reviewing as the operating outlook becomes 
clearer, tailoring planned initiatives to our new business 
environment. 

Gambling safety
Lotterywest exists to add value to the community by raising 
money for worthy local causes. In that spirit, we aspire 
to be global industry leaders in gambling safety. As part 
of this, and in line with the Premier’s direction to reduce 
potential gambling risk, in 2018-19 the Lotterywest Board 
supported undertaking the work required to build our 
understanding and performance in responsible gambling. As 
a key component of this we commenced work to upgrade 
Lotterywest’s accreditation level with the World Lotteries 
Association, seeking to achieve Level 4 Responsible Gaming 
Accreditation (the highest possible level). The outcome of 
our application will be known during 2020-2021.

Over the past year this has led to an important program to 
increase our focus on responsible gambling research, risk 
detection, training, monitoring, and referral. Through the 
COVID-19 emergency this work continued to be prioritised 
by the Lotterywest Board and Corporate Executive. 

Information services overview
The nature of Lotterywest’s business is predominately reliant 
on digital technology. During 2019 Information Services was 
made a division within Lotterywest, reporting directly to the 
CEO, with the Chief Information Officer joining the executive 
leadership team. This change highlights the importance of 
digital technology to Lotterywest.

Garden City Lottery Centre owner-operator Mary with her children. 
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Customer service
Throughout the financial year 2019-20, customer services 
had 93,915 interactions with our players and retailers. 
These interactions were through a range of different 
channels on topics ranging from teaching new players 
about our games, technical troubleshooting with our 
retailers, and greeting the hundreds of winners that 
visit Lotterywest to claim prizes. The busiest times for 
customer contact coincided with July’s $110 million 
Powerball and the $150 million Powerball jackpot on 
19 September 2019. 

Customer satisfaction initiatives
During the year we conducted two customer satisfaction 
surveys aimed at players and retailers. The customer 
satisfaction survey sent to our players showed that 
93.1 per cent of respondents were satisfied with the 
level of customer service they received, which was a 
significant improvement from the last survey where 
86.2 per cent said they were satisfied. Results of a 
recent retailer survey revealed that 97.3 per cent of the 
respondents were satisfied with the customer service 
they received, another improvement from a survey in 
2019 where 96.8 per cent were satisfied.

Complaints
Recognising the importance of effectively managing 
complaints and continuously improving service delivery 
the timeframe for the complaints handling process has 
been reduced from 15 to 5 business days. 

During the year, 100 per cent of complaints received 
were resolved within 15 business days, with 67 per cent 
of complaints resolved within five business days. 

In October 2019, we were awarded “Customer Service 
Champion” at the Australian Service Excellence Awards, 
held by the Customer Service Institute of Australia 
(CSIA) in the government and not-for-profit category. 
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Product sales

Saturday Lotto 

$284.5m

Monday Lotto 

$29m

Wednesday Lotto 

$31.5m

Set for Life 

$61.7m

Powerball 

$293.8m

Cash 3 

$13m

Super 66 

$3.3m

Scratch’n’Win 

$119.8m
OZ Lotto 

$122.5m

$959m
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Retail

Neighbourhood 
shopping centre

Player channels 
Lotterywest’s products are available through retail and online 
channels. As at 30 June 2020, there were 500 full service 
lottery stores trading in our retail network, a reduction of 
three stores on last year.

Regional 
shopping centre

Stand alone 
Retail strip 

Lotterywest retailers by business environment

Country 

Locations of Lotterywest retailers

Total 
outlets

501

Metro

71%358

143 29%

Total 
outlets

501

64 (13%)

51 (10%)152 (30%)

234 (47%)
(1 Scratch’n’Win only)

Convenience store

Supermarket

Pharmacy
Newsagency

DelicatessenKiosk

Lotterywest retailers’ primary business type

387 (77%) 
(1 Scratch’n’Win only)

40 (8%) 6 (1%)

17 (3%)
40 (8%)

10 (2%)

Retail network changes

New stores

Change of 
ownership

Relocations

3

32

19

38

10

1

2018-192019-20

Retail

Online

Player channels

85%

15%

Products and Services
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Retailer Consultative Panel
The Lotterywest Retailer Consultative Panel (RCP) 
comprises a representative group of retailers and a 
representative from the Australian Lotteries and Newsagents 
Association (ALNA). RCP meets with Lotterywest to 
provide their knowledge and experience on key issues and 
contribute a retail and small business perspective and local 
level retail performance. Lotterywest continues to use the 
forum as a way to better understand the impact of new 
approaches and projects that may affect retailers. Due to the 
disruption caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, between April 
and June 2020, Lotterywest continued to meet regularly with 
the RCP and utilised video conferencing to stay in touch.

Incentives and rewards
The annual Lotterywest retailer ‘Rewards 4 Growth’ incentive 
program continued in 2019-20, which recognises and 
rewards retailers for increasing sales of all Lotterywest 
products. The program was suspended at the end of 
March 2020 due to the uncertainties created by COVID-19. 
In 2019-20, $281,200 was paid to 258 retailers under this 
program. Complementing the ‘Rewards 4 Growth’ program 
was a series of ‘Sales Sprints’, designed to reward retailers 
for specific product sales achieved over short periods 
of time. These ‘Sprints’ support Lotterywest marketing 
campaigns, combining training and sales tactics to boost 
player engagement and sales through the retail network. 
Across three activities, $97,000 in rewards was shared with 
89 retailers.

In total, 291 Lotterywest retailers received a total of 
$358,200, a decrease of 36 per cent from the 2018-19 
financial year. This reduction was primarily due to the 
suspension of the ‘Rewards 4 Growth’ program in March, as 
well as a smaller number of retailers meeting their rewards 
targets during the year. 

Retailer training 
Following a successful trial with regional retailers, 
Lotterywest Essentials training for retailers’ staff was 
launched as a fully online program in March 2020 to make it 
more accessible. During the year, we launched our first two 
compliance e-learning courses. Store owners or managers 
were required to complete these courses with a 100 per cent 
compliance rate achieved for both. 

Training course
Courses 

conducted
Attendees

Manage a lottery outlet 12 63
Lotterywest essentials 11 61
Lotterywest essentials 
(Online from 1 March 2020)

n/a 48

Responsible Gambling n/a 922
Temporary prize payout 
extension

n/a 705

 
In conjunction with the Small Business Development 
Corporation we also offered retailers the opportunity to 
attend business development workshops. The workshop 
topics included understanding business financials, leasing, 
and a small business health check. 

Peter and Leonie with their dog Max from Margaret River Newsagency.
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Retailer profiles
Rebuilding Yarloop
Lotterywest retailer Ron Sackville embodies the spirit 
of Yarloop, a town continuing to move forward from 
devastating bushfires. 

November 2019, saw the re-opening of Yarloop’s Community 
Centre, just metres down the road from Ron’s store. A 
Lotterywest grant supported the development of the centre.

A volunteer firefighter during the 2016 fires, he did everything 
in his power to save Yarloop.

“What really broke my heart was I almost put the fire out in 
our paddock, which would have saved two or three houses 
further down the street,” he said.

The impact of the fire lingers, however, Ron has worked hard 
to restore Yarloop.

“In a small community like this it becomes very special, so 
you fight, you don’t back off you just keep going,” he said.

Lotterywest has been a major 
contributor to this town ever 

since I’ve been here.

More than ever this is a time we 
need to support local businesses 

to keep them going. 

Seachange News
The team at Sea Change News in Dunsborough are a 
classic example of how newsagents are all about their 
local community. 

Along with selling tickets, husband and wife owners Tenneille 
and Travis Fassom are also doing their bit to support the sale 
of local products.

Fresh bread, a range of cheese from nearby Yallingup 
Cheese are just a handful of products on their shelves.

Tenneille Fassom,  
Seachange News, Dunsborough

Ron Sackville
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Linking Lotterywest retailers 
and grant recipients
Our purpose is to build a better Western Australia together 
by raising funds for community grants, in partnership with 
Lotterywest retailers.

This teamwork was the driver for Screenwest and Artrage 
to host retailers for a night and show the impact of 
Lotterywest grants firsthand. Guests nestled into beanbags 
under the rainbow lights of the Girls School Cinema for a 
special screening of the Screenwest funded comedy, The 
Naked Wanderer.

Retailers were thanked for their part in the support 
Lotterywest provides to arts organisations.

"It was great to see how and where some of the 
Lotterywest money is reinvested back into the community 
and the movie was very entertaining,” Carolyn and Andrew 
from Gingin IGA X-press said.

Lotterywest support for Screenwest and Artrage is only 
possible through the efforts of our more than 500 retailers 
across WA.
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‘For your Dream State’ brand campaign
The ‘For your Dream State’ brand campaign aims to 
communicate the integral part our Western Australian 
players make in Lotterywest grant making. The simple 
message is that by playing, you are giving back to thousands 
of organisations across the state. 

Launched in June 2019, the campaign illustrated stories of 
community organisations which received Lotterywest grants 
making a difference to our community thanks to the sale of 
lotto tickets across Western Australia.

Each story is actively marketed through media and retail 
outlets within the local government area where the grant 
occurs. By sharing more localised content, Lotterywest 
players can see the difference being made in their 
communities and surrounding suburbs.

COVID-19 Relief Fund marketing campaign
In March 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic became the 
dominant public concern in Western Australia. In April the 
‘For your Dream State’ campaign was paused to focus 
advertising on the sale of Lottery tickets to support the 
‘Lotterywest COVID-19 Relief Fund’.

‘Play for WA’ was the key campaign message applied to all 
game advertising, and ‘Thanks WA, it’s working’ applied to 
showcase the grants made possible by the relief fund.

Our brand
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Short queue becomes the 
$1 million reason
A short queue and last-minute decision to buy 
a Saturday Lotto Superdraw ticket has seen a 
Kwinana couple become the State’s latest Division 
One winners.

May 2020

University student picks up 
$1 million on first ever Lotto 
ticket

March 2020

Husband turns from villain 
to hero thanks to Lotto win
A Secret Harbour couple have come forward as the 
owner of Western Australia’s second Division One 
ticket from Saturday’s $20 million Superdraw.

The 50 Game Slikpik from The Lucky Charm Secret 
Harbour is now worth more than $1.8 million.

“I saw how much was on offer, so I decided to buy a 
ticket,” the winner said.

“I got in trouble with my wife when I told her I bought 
one, but she has taken that back now.

“The only other prize we have ever won was a six 
pack of beer.”

May 2020

June 2020

Millionaire in the northern 
suburbs
A Saturday Lotto ticket from Joondalup in 
the weekend’s draw is now worth more 
than $1.2 million.

The player, yet to come forward, bought their ticket 
from Grand Boulevard Lotteries Kiosk in Joondalup.

 Western Australia’s latest Saturday Lotto Division 
One prize matched the numbers 3,22,18,27,19,10 and 
sits at $1,239,024.

 Owners of Grand Boulevard Lotteries Kiosk Trish and 
Mario Pezzaniti said they were delighted to sell the 
winning ticket.

 “We’ve been waiting five and a half years for a 
Division One winner,” Mr Pezzaniti said.

 “We’ve had plenty of Division Two winners, but now 
we can say we have the big one.”
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Increasing capability 
In 2019-20, we launched two online learning management systems (LMS) 
to further enhance workforce capability. This primary LMS provided a 
contemporary system to deploy compliance training to the whole organisation. 
The launch of the system achieved completion rates of over 80 per cent across 
all mandatory compliance areas for 2019-20. Information Technology is a 
critical business function for Lotterywest that is rapidly changing and highly 
specialised. The new IT LMS provides Lotterywest with a contemporary and 
agile platform to build technical IT capability, now and into the future. A new 
expanded Capability and Wellness training calendar provides additional ways 
for staff to explore and identify development opportunities. A new contract was 
also awarded to deliver staff wellness initiatives. 

In 2019-20, we committed to the development of increased Aboriginal cultural 
awareness training with a new online module and work towards advanced 
training across targeted business areas. 

Change process
COVID-19 resulted in the activation of the Crisis Plan to reduce workplace 
density, introduce work from home rotations, introduce new health and safety 
provisions and then transition all staff back to the workplace. We invested in 
IT technology to equip staff to work remotely and the organisation culture 
transformed to support a capable remote workplace. Staff wellbeing was at the 
centre of a very rapid adjustment which was underpinned by regular, consistent 
messaging, fact-based information and ensuring staff continued to feel 
connected to the workplace. 

Other organisation changes in 2019-20 included:

 • Information Services now reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer as its 
own business unit to recognise ICT as core to Lotterywest’s critical functions; 
and 

 • A new Social Impact team was established within the Grants and 
Community Development business unit to enhance measurement of 
Lotterywest’s grants program and community impact.

Workforce and 
organisational development
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Gambling safety at Lotterywest
Lotterywest complies with a wide range of laws, regulations 
and codes of practice as outlined in our Advertising 
Standards. Lotterywest has no record of any breaches 
of these standards, including those relating to potential 
gambling harms.

Substantially fewer than one per cent of players online spend 
close to the $500 per week limit. Despite this low-risk status, 
we continue to improve online controls to ensure players can 
safely monitor and manage their spend.

Meanwhile, we’ve significantly expanded our gambling 
safety research program with multiple initiatives that focus 
on both independent and discrete areas of potential harms.

We engaged formally with expert external stakeholders from 
academia and professional counselling services through our 
Responsible Gambling Advisory Committee. This Committee 
reviews our gambling safety activities and provides guidance 
on direction and improvements to our program.

Over the coming year we will actively develop a state-wide 
network of stakeholders across Government, academia, 
community services and advocacy groups with a view to 
expand capacity and align objectives in minimising potential 
harm to Western Australians.

Sustainability Action Plan
We have a comprehensive Sustainability Action Plan that 
focuses on practical and meaningful actions and building a 
culture of collective responsibility. 

This year our focus was on:

 • Increasing staff awareness on how to minimise waste and 
maximise recycling. 

Reconciliation Action Plan
We are continuing to improve our performance in 
recognising the importance of Aboriginal people and culture, 
as well as communicating this to our customers and our 
team. We have progressed initiatives such as ensuring all 
staff attend cultural awareness training, offering a six-week 
paid internship for Aboriginal People and strengthening 
our grant guidelines to include cultural protocols. We’ve 
also commenced development of a formal Reconciliation 
Action Plan, aiming to have this endorsed by Reconciliation 
Australia in 2020-21.

Corporate social responsibility

 • Regular ‘community markets’ where staff bring in home-
grown and home-made produce to share.

 • Embracing digital solutions for paper-based processes 
including digital signatures, smart forms, electronic log 
book, digital incurring of invoices and electronic credit 
card recordkeeping.

 • Providing a wide range of recycling options beyond 
council services such as large and small format plastic, 
dental products and polystyrene.

 • Including sustainability requirements in tender documents 
where applicable.

 • Use of refillable containers and bulk purchasing to reduce 
packaging waste for consumables.

Lotterywest provide staff with a range of keep cups to help minimise waste. 
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Outcome statement
Lotteries are conducted with the net proceeds returned to the community of Western Australia.

Services
1. Sale of lottery products to the public of Western Australia.

2.  The provision of grants and other distributions to the community of Western Australia.

Effectiveness Indicators
Actual  

2019-20
Budget  

2019-20
Actual  

2018-19
Actual  

2017-18
Actual  

2016-17

1.  Sales per adult $455.49 $420.09 $473.86 $414.08 $402.39

2.  Total allocation to beneficiaries per capita $110.05 $98.49 $107.43 $99.83 $102.45

3.  Total allocation to beneficiaries as a % of sales 30.47% 29.54% 28.59% 30.4% 32.1%

Professor Peter Klinken AC 
Chair 
Accountable Authority 
20 August 2020

Stephen Carre 
Commissioner 
Accountable Authority 
20 August 2020

Certification of performance indicators

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are 
based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate 
for assisting users to assess the Lotteries Commission’s 
performance, and fairly represent the performance of 
the Lotteries Commission for the financial year ended 
30 June 2020.

Efficiency Indicators
Actual 

2019-20
Budget 

2019-20
Actual 

2018-19
Actual 

2017-18
Actual 

2016-17

4.  Lottery operations expenses as a % of sales 7.47% 7.88% 5.55% 7.20% 7.40%

5.  Grants operations expenses as a % of direct grants approved 13.35% 14.40% 14.27% 11.90% 10.70%

Base Data  
(million)

Actual 
2019-20

Budget 
2019-20

Actual 
2018-19

Actual 
2017-18

Actual 
2016-17

a. Total population 2.6558 2.6770 2.6218 2.6012 2.5897

b. Adult population 2.1062 2.1248 2.0792 2.0638 2.0562

c. Total sales $959.35 $892.61 $985.25 $854.56 $827.39

d.  Total allocated to beneficiaries* $292.28 $263.65 $281.65 $259.67 $265.32

e.  Total approved direct grants* $118.21 $100.00 $102.04 $103.87 $114.15

f.  Lottery operations expenses $71.68 $70.30 $54.66 $61.73 $61.16

g.  Grants operations expenses $15.78 $14.40  $14.56 $12.38 $12.25

Note: * No adjustment for write back of unused and returned grants.

Lotterywest Key Performance Indicators
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Notes to the Key Performance 
Indicator tables
Effectiveness indicators
1. This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in entering the players’ market 

that is considered to be the adult population in Western Australia. The variance in sales 
per adult to budget is a result of sales exceeding budget expectations. Current year 
performance compares unfavourably to previous financial year 2018-19 due to jackpot 
conditions for the two major jackpotting games in OZ Lotto and Powerball failing to rise 
to the same levels seen during last financial year. However, current year performance 
compares favourably to budget. 

 Note: Adult population refers to the number of Western Australians of 16 years and over 
who are permitted by the Lotteries Commission Act (1990) to purchase lottery products.

2. This measure relates to Lotterywest’s grant funding function which is to provide funds 
and support to the community of Western Australia. The favourable result to budget this 
year is a consequence of better than anticipated sales and Lotterywest establishing 
higher grants allocation towards COVID-19 Relief Fund. The total approved direct grants 
for the year was $118.21 million.

3. This measure shows the effectiveness of Lotterywest in converting sales revenue to 
community grants. This year’s result has exceeded both the budget and the last two years’ 
performance, in line with additional grants approved for the COVID-19 Relief Fund. 

Efficiency indicators
4. This indicator shows the efficiency of Lotterywest in generating its lottery sales revenue. It 

excludes Grant Operations expenses. The underspend across lottery operations expenses, 
was offset by $15 million Retailer Relief Fund in response to COVID-19 resulting in an 
unfavourable performance compared to prior years. However, the Retailer Relief Fund is 
an abnormal expenditure item, excluding this amount, the effective indicator is 5.91%. This 
is favourable compared to budget.

5. This measure shows the ratio of expenditure associated with the grants distribution to 
not for profit and benevolent organisations. The favourable result this year compared to 

budget is partly attributed to the record grants approved in the last four years as well as 
the efficiency of the grants team in processing COVID-19 related grants. In the last three 
months of this financial year, 369 grants worth $37.55 million were distributed to the WA 
beneficiaries affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. Of the 369 grants, 367 grants worth 
of $30.66 million were distributed directly to WA community and two grants worth of 
$6.89 million were distributed via Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural 
Industries, to be further distributed to a wider range of WA beneficiaries.

Base data
(a) and (b) Lotterywest uses population figures sourced from the Australian Bureau of 

Statistics (ABS) in calculating its performance indicators. 

 The total population of Western Australia is used for Community Grants indicators as all 
Western Australians benefit from the community funding grants program. 

 The adult population figures are used for Lottery Product indicators as only adults (aged 
16 years and over) are permitted to purchase lottery products in Western Australia.

(c)  This shows Lotterywest’s total annual gross sales for the financial year 2019-20. It 
excludes Other Income derived by Lotterywest.

(d)  This item shows the total of all statutory and direct grants allocated for 2019-20, excluding 
forfeited amounts reallocated from prior years. 

 Beneficiaries refer to the allocation prescribed in the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 to 
the Hospital Fund, the Sports Account, the Arts Account and to eligible organisations for 
“approved purposes”.

(e)  This item shows the total direct grants allocated for 2019-20, excluding forfeited amounts 
reallocated from prior years. For the purpose of these indicators, the Goods and Services 
Tax (GST) has been excluded from expense calculations.

(f ) Lottery operating expenses of $71.68 million reflect all operational costs associated with 
selling of lottery products (excluding cost of goods sold and GST). It includes $15 million 
for the Retailer Relief Fund in 2019-20.

(g) Grants operations expenses of $15.78 million reflect all operating costs undertaken in 
providing the grant funding administration and distribution function, including costs 
associated with servicing Healthway (excluding grant amounts).
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Ministerial 
Directives
No ministerial directives were issued during this year.

Governance 
disclosures
Enabling legislation
Lotterywest operates under the Lotteries Commission 
Act 1990 (the Act) and its subsidiary legislation. 
Lotterywest’s functions under the Act are to conduct 
lotteries and to perform any other function vested 
by the Act (primarily concerning the assessment, 
distribution and administration of grants).

Our subsidiary legislation includes:

 • Lotteries Commission Regulations 1991

 • Lotteries Commission (Authorised Lotteries) Rules 2016

 • Lotteries Commission (Designated Authorities) 
Regulations 1998

 • Lotteries Commission (Instant Lottery) Rules 1996

 • Lotteries Commission (Policy Instruments) Regulations 
2010

Other key legislation impacting on Lotterywest’s activities 
include:
 • A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999 

(Cwth)
 • Associations Incorporation Act 2015
 • Auditor General Act 2006
 • Betting Control Act 1954
 • Betting Control Regulations 1978
 • Charitable Trusts Act 1962
 • Competition and Consumer Act 2010 (Cwth)
 • Competition Policy Reform (Western Australia) Act 1996
 • Copyright Act 1968 (Cwth)
 • Corporations Act 2001 (Cwth)
 • Corruption, Crime and Misconduct Act 2003
 • Disability Services Act 1993
 • Electronic Transactions Act 1999 (Cwth)
 • Electronic Transactions Act 2011
 • Equal Opportunity Act 1984
 • Financial Management Act 2006
 • Financial Transaction Reports Act 1995
 • Financial Transaction Reports Act 1988 (Cth)
 • Freedom of Information Act 1992
 • Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986 (Cwth)
 • Fringe Benefits Tax Assessment Act 1986 (Cwth)
 • Gaming and Betting (Contracts and Securities) Act 1985
 • Gaming and Wagering Commission Act 1987

 • Gaming and Wagering Commission Regulations 1988
 • Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries 

Levy) Act 2000
 • Gaming and Wagering Commission (Continuing Lotteries 

Levy) Regulations 2000
 • Industrial Relations Act 1979
 • Interactive Gambling Act 2001 (Cwth)
 • Interactive Gambling Regulations 2001 (Cwth) (repealed 

Sep 2019)
 • Interactive Gambling Regulations 2019 (Cwth)
 • Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
 • Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
 • Occupational Safety and Health Regulations 1996
 • Patents Act 1990 (Cwth)
 • Privacy Act 1988 (Cwth)
 • Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
 • Public Sector Management Act 1994
 • Retail Trading Hours Act 1987
 • Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
 • Spam Act 2003 (Cwth)
 • State Records Act 2000
 • State Supply Commission Act 1991
 • State Superannuation Act 2000
 • Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996
 • Superannuation Guarantee Charge Act 1992 (Cwth)
 • Superannuation Act 2005 (Cwth)
 • Trade Marks Act 1995 (Cwth)
 • Unclaimed Money Act 1990
 • Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation Act 2016
 • Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 

Regulations 2016 
 • Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981
 • Workplace Gender Equality Act 2012 (Cwth)



Lotterywest Annual Report 2019-2064

Board and Committee remuneration
Remuneration of the Accountable Authority for Lotterywest for the 2019-20 year is outlined below:

Name Salary Super Benefit Period of Membership Total

Chair Peter Klinken $62,275 $5,916 12 months $68,191

Member Miriam Borthwick $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Member Stephen Carre $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Member Kingsley Dixon $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Member Elizabeth McLellan $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Member Jim McGinty $31,236 $2,967 12 months $34,203

Total remuneration paid $218,455 $20,751 $239,206

Conflict of interest
The Public Sector Commission’s Code of Conduct and the Lotterywest Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy apply 
to the management of conflicts of interest held by Commissioners or staff. Lotterywest provides grants to a broad range of 
not-for-profit beneficiaries. Commissioners disclose standing declarations in respect of any interests they may hold which 
they perceive may result in a conflict arising. In matters which may extend beyond mere association, Commissioners and 
officers are required to disclose the full extent of their interest and develop a conflict of interest management plan which 
would include abstaining from voting or participating in the decision making process, subject to any Ministerial directive. 

Related party transactions
The Accounting Standards apply to the disclosure of related party transactions in the financial statements. At the date of 
this report, no senior officers or entities in which senior officers have a substantial interest, had any interests in existing or 
proposed contracts with Lotterywest other than normal contracts of employment for services.

Directors and officers liability insurance
Lotterywest has in place a Directors and Officers Liability Insurance policy which indemnifies Board members and 
directors (as defined in Part 3 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996) against liability under Section 
13 and 14 of the Act. The premium paid in 2019-20 was $16,137.00.
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Other legal requirements 
Advertising, direct mail, market research and media 
expenditure (including GST) incurred by Lotterywest for the 
2019-20 year was:

(a) Advertising:

$ 
Marketforce 4,033,996
Total 4,033,996

(b) Direct mail:

$ 
Fuji Xerox 5,202
Total 5,202

(c) Market research:

$
Metrix Consulting 290,379
Thinkfield 8,360
Kantar 80,850
Neurolytics 26,620
Total 406,209

(d) Media advertising:

$ 
Initiative 12,525,656
Total 12,525,656

Recordkeeping plans
Lotterywest’s recordkeeping governance framework is 
comprehensive and up-to date, including its Recordkeeping 
Plan. 

The framework is supported by:

 • Compulsory online records awareness training for all 
employees every three years. At 30 June, 96 per cent of 
employees had completed the training. 

 • Face-to-face Electronic Document and Records 
Management System (EDRMS) training on 
commencement.

 • Ongoing customised training to ensure the EDRMS is 
supporting the business to work more collaboratively, 
efficiently and in compliance with record-keeping 
requirements. 119 people attended these sessions in 
2019-20. 

 • Record-keeping resources and user-friendly quick guides 
are available on the Intranet.

Freedom of Information
Action taken in respect of Freedom of Information 
applications received during the year was:

2018-19 2019-20
FOI applications 
received

3 5

FOI applications 
finalised

2 6

Average number 
of days to finalise

26 19

FOI decisions 
reconsidered 
by the FOI 
Commissioner

- 1

Public Interest disclosures
During the year Lotterywest did not receive any Public 
Interest Disclosures within the meaning of the Public Interest 
Disclosure Act 2003.
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan
In 2020, the Lotterywest and Healthway Disability Access 
and Inclusion Plans (DAIP) were combined to reflect the 
integration of the agencies’ operations. The Lotterywest and 
Healthway DAIP (2017-21) aims to provide people with a 
disability the same opportunity as other people to access our 
facilities, information, products, services and employment 
opportunities, contribute to public consultation and make 
complaints. 

New initiatives for the period include:

 • The Lotterywest website showcases examples where 
access and inclusion initiatives have been supported by 
Lotterywest. 

 • A Good Practice Guide for grant customers was 
developed to assist organisers of Lotterywest supported 
community events and initiatives to consider and adopt 
practices to help make them more inclusive, healthy and 
sustainable.

 • Accessibility standards (Web Content Accessibilty 
Guidelines (WCAG) 2.0) have been applied to new digital 
products including the new Intranet.

 • Our Communications and Tone of Voice guidelines have 
been expanded to provide better guidance on access and 
inclusion. 

 • A disability inclusion and awareness training module was 
launched and is a requirement for all staff.

The DAIP is available on the Lotterywest website.

Compliance with Public Sector Standards 
and Ethical Codes
Lotterywest, as a public sector agency, is required to 
comply with Public Sector Standards in Human Resource 
Management (HRM) and the Public Sector Code of Ethics. 
Action taken by Lotterywest to ensure compliance includes:

 • Information about HRM Standards and the Commissioner’s 
Instructions is made available to all employees

 • Human resource practices, policies and processes are 
regularly reviewed to ensure compliance with HRM 
Standards and the Commissioner’s Instructions.

There were zero (0) breaches of Standards identified in 
2019-20.

Public Sector code of ethics and Lotterywest 
code of conduct
Lotterywest’s Code of Conduct and the Public Sector Code 
of Ethics are provided to all new staff and are available on 
Lotterywest’s intranet. Lotterywest contracts of employment 
reference the Lotterywest Code of Conduct, contain 
confidentiality obligations and require National Police 
Clearances.

A new online learning system was deployed in 2020. This 
system incorporates the Integrity Framework requirements 
and prioritises compliance training. In 2019-20, Lotterywest 
achieved the following staff completion rates: 

 • 85% completion for Accountable and Ethical Decision 
Making;

 • 83% completion for Conflicts of Interest;

 • 82% completion for Public Interest Disclosure.

The Lotterywest Code of Conduct was reviewed and 
published in May 2020.

In 2019-20, two (2) formal grievance were lodged:

 • One (1) was Not Substantiated

 • One (1) remains under investigation.

Occupational safety, health and injury 
management 
Lotterywest is committed to the safety, health and wellness 
of its employees, contractors and visitors in line with the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 and the injury 
management requirements of the Workers’ Compensation 
and Injury Management Act 1981. Lotterywest ensures 
the safety, health and wellness of employees through 
an Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) Committee, 
appropriate OSH policies and procedures and a 
comprehensive wellness program. A new OSH Committee 
was formed in November 2019. In 2019-20, Lotterywest 
reviewed and updated all OSH governance documents 
to align Lotterywest with best practice. Lotterywest also 
commenced a review of its Strategic Workforce Plan. 

A new online learning system increased Lotterywest’s 
capacity to deliver mandatory OSH training for all 
supervisors and a completion rate of 82% was achieved.

Occupational safety, health and injury 
management performance results

Measure
Actual Results

Target2017-
18

2018-
19

2019-
20

Number of fatalities 0 0 0 0

Number of lost time injury 
and disease incidence

3 0 0
0 or 10% 
reduction

Number of severe claims 0 0 0 0

Lost time injury and disease 
incident rate 

0 0 0
0 or 10% 
reduction

Lost time injury and severity 
rate

0 0 0
0 or 10% 
reduction

% injured workers return 
within 13 weeks

N/A N/A N/A >80%

% injured workers return 
within 26 weeks

N/A N/A N/A >80%

% managers undertaking 
OSH training within 3 years

71% 35% 82% >80%
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Unauthorised use of credit cards
Lotterywest issues corporate credit cards to staff where 
warranted.

During the year, ten employees inadvertently used the 
corporate credit card for personal transactions, on thirteen 
individual occasions. The matters were not referred for any 
disciplinary action as the Chief Finance Officer noted prompt 
advice and settlement of the personal use amount and that 
the nature of the expenditure was immaterial, inadvertent 
and characteristic of an honest mistake. Amounts incurred 
and duration of repayment are outlined below:

2018-19 2019-20

Aggregate amount of personal use 
expenditure

$257 $915

Aggregate amount settled within 
five working days

$257 $898

Aggregate amount settled after five 
working days

$0 $17

Aggregate amount outstanding at 
balance date

$0 $0

Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC) assists 
the Lotterywest Board in fulfilling its corporate governance 
and oversight responsibility in relation to financial reports, 
internal controls and assurance structures, risk management 
and the internal and external audit processes. Consulting 
internal audit services continued to be provided by KPMG. 

Membership of the ARMC comprises:

Committee Chair – Stephen Carre (Commissioner)

Committee Member – Professor Peter Klinken (Board Chair)

Committee Member – Jim McGinty (Commissioner) 

During the year the ARMC also secured the services of 
Mr Glen Murray for advice regarding security.

During 2019-20 the ARMC met on four occasions.

Risk management
The Lotterywest Risk Management Framework defines 
Lotterywest’s ‘Risk Appetite’ and outlines the objective for 
Lotterywest to have a ‘Risk Aware’ culture consistent with the 
risk appetite. The objectives of the Framework are to:

 • Provide a structured and systematic approach to the 
process of managing risk within Lotterywest;

 • Provide confidence that risks are being effectively 
managed throughout the organisation;

 • Ensure clear accountabilities for risk management;

 • Define the risk context and risk appetite of Lotterywest;

 • Provide the tools to identify the inherent, residual and 
acceptable risk levels, assessing the effectiveness of their 
control measures and what actions are to be taken;

 • Encourage a “risk aware” culture that ensures responsible 
and informed risk-taking while ensuring appropriate 
measures are taken to protect the organisation and 
maintain stakeholder confidence; and

 • Ensure that risk management is a living and dynamic 
process, appropriately embedded in business functions 
and operations.

Substantive equality
Lotterywest strives to achieve substantive equality through 
its policies, programs and services to meet the diverse 
needs of employees and stakeholders. This approach 
is aligned to the Government’s Policy Framework for 
Substantive Equality and meets obligations under the Equal 
Opportunity Act 1984.

Lotterywest leveraged its new online learning system with 
the launch of e learning modules for Discrimination, Equal 
Employment Opportunity and Closing the Gap to strengthen 
its commitment to equality and diversity. In 2019-20, 
Lotterywest continued the partnership with St Catherine’s to 
support Aboriginal interns and delivered Aboriginal cultural 
awareness training across the business.

Major capital projects
Capital expenditure during 2019-20 was relatively minor 
totalling $2.290m.

Expenditure for major capital projects undertaken was:

 $m

Plant and equipment 0.086
Security upgrade 0.702
Gaming system 0.246
IT infrastructure 1.256

 
Workforce Demographics (Employees)

Workforce Diversity 2018-19 2019-20
5 Year 
Target

Women in SES 40% 40% 38.3%
Aboriginal People 1.2% 1.2% 2.75%
People with disabilities 2% 1.9% 1.6%
People from culturally 
diverse backgrounds

15.3% 15.2% 13.6%

Youth (15 to 24 years) 2% 3.4% 4.3%
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Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Jeremy Hubble  
Chief Finance Officer 
20 August 2020

Professor Peter Klinken AC 
Chair 
Accountable Authority 
20 August 2020

Stephen Carre 
Commissioner 
Accountable Authority 
20 August 2020

Certification of Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

The accompanying financial statements of the Lotteries Commission have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and 
records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 and the financial position as at 30 June 2020.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.
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Lotterywest has pleasure in presenting its audited general purpose financial statements for the financial reporting period ended 30 June 2020 which provides users with the information about 
Lotterywest’s stewardship of resource entrusted to it. The financial information is presented in the following structure:

Financial Statements
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Note
2020 
$000

2019 
$000

INCOME
Revenue

Revenue from contracts 3.1 965,306 991,034 
Interest revenue 3.2 7,856 9,784 
Other revenue 3.3 8,410 10,383 

Total revenue 981,572 1,011,201 
Net gain/(loss) 3.4 (2) 596 
Total income 981,570 1,011,797 

EXPENSES
Cost of lottery sales 3.1 652,224 668,773 
Lotteries operations 4.1 71,684 54,659
Grants and community development operations 4.1 15,780 14,558
Distribution to grant beneficiaries 4.2 292,129 281,549

Total expenses 1,031,817 1,019,539 
Profit/(loss) before grants from State Government (50,247) (7,742)
Grants from State Government 3.5 42,334 39,217
Profit/(loss) for the period (7,913) 31,475

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified to profit and loss in this or subsequent period

Changes in asset revaluation 9.1 - (374)
Total other comprehensive income - (374)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period (7,913) 31,101

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. See also Note 2 “Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service”.

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2020

Note
2020 
$000

2019 
$000

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6.1 71,764 26,374 
Inventories 5.2.1 1,650 1,744 
Receivables 5.2.2 26,628 20,028 
Financial assets at amortised cost 6.2 156,049 181,789 
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 5.1.1 4,100 5,100 
Prepayments 779 615 

Total Current Assets 260,970 235,650 
Non-Current Assets

Financial assets at amortised cost 6.2 55,452 103,593 
Property, plant and equipment 5.1.2 17,676 19,034 
Right-of-use assets 5.1.3 9,322 -
Intangibles 5.1.4 5,026 8,078 

Total Non-Current Assets 87,476 130,705 
TOTAL ASSETS 348,446 366,355 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Payables 7.1 158,489 183,205 
Provisions 7.2 33,856 32,325 
Contract liabilities 7.3 7,808 -
Lease liabilities 6.3 1,442 -
Other liabilities 7.4 - 6,357 

Total Current Liabilities 201,595 221,887 
Non-Current Liabilities

Payables 7.1 43,260 41,180 
Provisions 7.2 2,378 1,708 
Lease liabilities 6.3 12,021 -
Other liabilities 7.4 - 3,286 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 57,659 46,174 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 259,254 268,061 
NET ASSETS 89,192 98,294
EQUITY

Asset revaluation reserve 9.1 5,098 5,098
Retained earnings 9.1 84,094 93,196

TOTAL EQUITY 89,192 98,294
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Note
Asset  

Revaluation 
$000

Retained  
Earnings 

$000

Total  
Equity 

$000

Balance at 1 July 2018 5,472 61,721 67,193 
Profit/(loss) for the period 9.1  - 31,475 31,475
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 9.1 (374)  - (374)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period (374) 31,475 (31,101)

Balance at 30 June 2019 5,098 93,196 98,294

Balance at 1 July 2019 5,098 93,196 98,294
Adjustment from the adoption of AASB 16 - (1,189) (1,189)
Adjusted Balance at 1 July 2019 5,098 92,007 97,105
Profit/(loss) for the period 9.1  - (7,913) (7,913)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 9.1 -  - -
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) for the period - (7,913) (7,913)

Balance at 30 June 2020 5,098 84,094 89,192 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2020 
$000

2019 
$000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Sale of lottery products 962,540 986,864 
Interest received 8,412 9,382 
GST receipts on sales 616 622 
Service Level Arrangement - Healthway 2,909 685 
Receipts from litigation settlement 520 5 

Note 2020 
$000

2019 
$000

Payments
Prizes and retailers’ commissions (606,755) (588,252)
Employee benefits (28,778) (25,788)
Supplies and services (38,815) (36,783)
COVID-19 Retailer Incentive (15,057) -
Finance Cost (373) -
Direct grants (129,664) (109,288)
GST payments on purchases (25,408) (21,642)
GST payments to taxation authority (16,804) (18,046)

Net cash provided by operating activities 6.1.2 113,343 197,759 

Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts

Proceeds from sales of assets held for sale - -
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets - 6
Proceeds from sale of investments 73,881 -

Payments   
Purchase of non-current assets (2,222) (519)
Purchase of investments - (50,444)

Net cash from investing activities 71,659 (50,957)

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments

Repayment of leasing liabilities (1,311) -
Net cash from financing activities (1,311) -

Cash flows (to)/from State Government
GST reimbursements 35,811 35,580 
Grant Income 4,000 -
Statutory payments to beneficiaries (178,112) (173,988)

Net cash (provided to) State Government (138,301) (138,408)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 45,390 8,394 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 26,374 17,980 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 6.1.1 71,764 26,374 

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1. Basis of preparation
Lotterywest is a Statutory Authority and a not-for-profit reporting entity for the purposes 
of Australian Accounting Standards. The nature of operations and principal activities 
are described in the Agency Performance which does not form part of these financial 
statements.

These annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Accountable Authority 
of Lotterywest on 20 August 2020.

Statement of compliance
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:

1) The Financial Management Act 2006 (FMA)

2) The Treasurer ’s Instructions (the Instructions or TI)

3) Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) including applicable interpretations

4) Where appropriate, those AAS paragraphs applicable for not-for-profit entities have 
been applied.

The FMA and the Instructions take precedence over AAS. Several AAS are modified by 
the Instructions to vary application, disclosure format and wording. Where modification is 
required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, 
details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements.

Basis of preparation
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars applying the accrual basis of 
accounting and using the historical cost convention. Certain balances will apply a different 
measurement basis (such as the fair value basis). Where this is the case the different 
measurement basis is disclosed in the associated note. All values are rounded to the 
nearest thousand dollars ($’000).

Judgements and estimates
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about financial 
information being presented. The significant judgements and estimates made in the 
preparation of these financial statements are disclosed in the notes where amounts 
affected by those judgements and/or estimates are disclosed. Estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical experience and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2. Lotterywest outputs
How Lotterywest operates
This section includes information regarding the nature of Lotterywest’s income and how this 
income is utilised to achieve its objectives.

Schedule of income and expenses by service

Service 1 
Sale of lottery  

products

 Service 2 
Grants and other 

distributions 
Total

2020
$000

2019
$000

2020
$000

2019
$000

2020
$000

2019
$000

INCOME
Revenue from contracts 962,578 989,918 2,728 1,116 965,306 991,034 
Interest income 7,856 9,784 - - 7,856 9,784 
Other revenue 8,410 10,383 - - 8,410 10,383 
Net gain/(loss) (2) 596 - - (2) 596 
Total income 978,842 1,010,681 2,728 1,116 981,570 1,011,797 

EXPENSES
Cost of sales 652,224 668,773 - - 652,224 668,773 
Lotteries operations 71,684 54,659 - - 71,684 54,659 
Grants and community  
development operations

-  - 15,780 14,558 15,780 14,558 

Total expenses excluding  
returns to beneficiaries

723,908 723,432 15,780 14,558 739,688 737,990 

Profit/(loss) before  
returns to beneficiaries

254,934 287,249 (13,052) (13,442) 241,882 273,807 

Grants from State Government 42,334 39,217 - - 42,334 39,217 
Grants transfer (297,268) (326,466) 297,268 326,466 -  - 
Amount available for  
distribution

 - - 284,216 313,024 284,216 313,024 

Total returns to beneficiaries  - - 292,129 281,549 292,129 281,549 
Profit (loss) for the period  - - (7,913) 31,475 (7,913) 31,475 
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3. Our income sources 
How we obtain our income
This section provides additional information about how Lotterywest obtains its income and 
the relevant accounting policy notes that govern the recognition and measurement of this 
income. The primary income received, and the relevant notes are:

Note 2020 
$000

2019
$000

Income
Revenue from contracts 3.1 965,306 991,034 
Interest revenue 3.2 7,856 9,784 
Other revenue 3.3 8,410 10,383 
Net gain/(loss) 3.4 (2) 596 
Grants from State Government 3.5 42,334 39,217 

1,023,904 1,051,014 

3.1 Revenue from contracts
Until 30 June 2019, revenue was recognised and measured at fair value of consideration 
received or receivable.

From 1 July 2019, revenue is recognised at the transaction price when Lotterywest 
transfers control of the service to customers. Revenue is recognised for the major revenue 
streams as follows:

Note 2020 
$000

2019 
$000

Revenue from contracts with customers 3.1.1 959,350 985,251 
Revenue from contracts with retailers 3.1.2 3,228 4,667
Revenue from contracts with Healthway 3.1.3 2,728 1,116

965,306 991,034

3.1.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

2020 
$000

2019 
$000

Sales of lottery products 959,350 985,251 
Cost of lottery sales
Prizes (539,670) (555,079)
Printing costs (3,875) (3,279)
Commission paid to retailers (70,345) (71,198)
Goods and Services Tax (38,334) (39,217)

(652,224) (668,773)
Trading Profit 307,126 316,478
Margin percentage 32.0% 32.1%

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised as follows:
Revenue from contracts with customers consists of gross sales of all Lotto games, Cash 3, 
Super 66 and Scratch’n’Win tickets.

Lotterywest has undertaken a review of its revenue from lottery products and determined 
that revenue from sales of lottery products should continue to be measured at its gross value 
as it represents the amount of consideration it expects to receive in providing customers with 
the right to participate in the lottery and instant games.

Revenue from lotto products, which are sold through Lotterywest’s authorised retailers and 
online, are recognised at a point-in-time when the related draw of the respective games has 
been held. Where players wager in advance, the income is deferred and recorded as contract 
liabilities, until the draw has taken place when it is then recorded as revenue in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income. 

Revenue from Scratch’n’Win tickets are recognised when the Scratch’n’Win books are 
activated. 

Cost of lottery sales

Prizes
Prize expense and liabilites are allocated when the sales are recognised at draw dates or 
when the Scratch’n’Win books are activated.

Allocation of prize monies range between 50% to 70% of sales. The prize allocation for 
national Lotto games is determined by the National Bloc members. 

Division 1 prizes are available for payment two weeks after the date of the draw, subject to 
claim. Other prizes are paid directly upon receipt of a valid winning ticket. (refer to note 3.3 
for further information on the validity of winning tickets) . Prizes for Play Online members are 
automatically paid to the members account.

Set for Life’s 1st Prize is paid at $20,000 per month for a period of 20 years and Division 2 
winner is paid at $5,000 per month for a period of 1 year. Set for Life games include a ‘demand 
feature’ requiring payment of the remaining face value of the prize upon the death of a winner 
to their estate. As a result, fair value reflects value at the earliest time the demand event could 
arise resulting in fair value reflecting the remaining face value of unpaid prizes.

Commission paid to retailers
Retailers are paid a commission for the sale of Lotterywest products. It is recognised 
when the Recipient Created Tax Invoice (RCTI) is issued to the retailers once a week. The 
commission rate is periodically reviewed subject to Ministerial approval. 

Goods and Services Tax
The Goods and Services Tax (GST) is calculated on the gaming margin, which is defined 
as the subscription received less the prizes. In accordance with the GST legislation, GST 
is attributed to the full amount of sales in advance. GST is also calculated on retailer and 
player fees.
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3.1.2 Revenue from contract with retailers 

2020 2019
$000 $000

Retailers fees 3,228 4,667

*Due to the financial hardship caused by COVID-19, Lotterywest has waived the Lotto Service fees charged to retailers 
for a 6-month period, commencing April 2020.The total Lotto Service fees waived between April 2020 and June 2020 was 
$1.076 million.

Revenue from contracts with retailers is recognised as follows:
Retailer fees comprise Lotto Service fees (representing the contribution from our retailers 
towards the costs associated with maintaining and supporting the on-line network) and 
Retailer Establishment fees (representing contributions from retailers towards Lotterywest’s 
costs associated with the establishment, relocation or change of ownership of a lottery outlet). 

These fees are typically recognised over-time according to Lotterywest’s right to invoice under 
the agreement with the retailer as it corresponds to the performance completed to date. 

3.1.3 Revenue from contracts with Healthway 

2020 2019
$000 $000

Service level arrangement 2,728 1,116

Revenue from contracts with Healthway is recognised as follows:
Lotterywest has entered into a Service Level Arrangement with the Western Australian 
Health Promotion Foundation (Healthway) to provide grant administration services and 
support. The agreement commenced on 1 January 2019.

Under this arrangement, Lotterywest typically satisfies its performance obligation and 
recognises revenue over-time in proportion to services performed.

3.2 Interest revenue
2020 2019
$000 $000

Interest revenue 7,856 9,784

Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues.

3.3 Other revenue

2020 2019
$000 $000

Forfeited prizes 5,862 8,314 
Grants refunds and write-backs prior years 2,399 1,942*
Other revenue 149 127 

8,410 10,383 
 
*Re-stated due to a change in accounting policy relating to grants refunds and write-backs from prior years (see note 4.2 
Direct Grants and note 9.3 Changes in accounting policies).

Forfeited prizes
Under the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 (as amended), players have 12 months to claim a 
lottery prize. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Lotterywest made some temporary changes 
to its prize claim period for tickets with draw dates on or after 16 March 2019. This means 
there is more time and options to claim prizes. Full details of the changes are available via 
our website.

If the prize is not claimed within that period, the prize is forfeited. Forfeited prizes are 
included in the pool of funds that become available for distribution to the Western Australian 
community through Lotterywest’s direct grants program.

3.4 Net gain/(loss)

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
2020 
$000

2019 
$000

Net proceeds from disposals of
 Land and building - -
 Plant and equipment - 6 
 Work of Art - -

Carrying amount of
 Land and building - -
 Plant and equipment - (10)
 Right-of-use assets (2) -
 Work of Art - -

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets (2) (4)

Other gains - 600

Total gain/(loss) (2) 596
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4. Use of our funding
Expenses incurred in the delivery of services
This section provides additional information about how Lotterywest’s funding is applied and 
the accounting policies that are relevant for an understanding of the items recognised in the 
financial statements. 

Note 2020
$000

2019
$000

Operating expenses 4.1 87,464 69,217 
Distribution to grant beneficiaries 4.2 292,129 281,549 

379,593  350,766 

4.1 Operating expenses

Note 2020
$000

2019
$000

Employee benefits expenses 4.1.1 28,490 26,026 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4.1.2 7,918 7,854 
Finance Costs 5.1.3 373 -
Telecommunications and gaming system expenses 6,044 5,565 
Sales, marketing and distribution expenses^ 18,216 18,853 
Write-down of non-current assets classified as held 
for resale

1,000 300 

COVID-19 Retailer Incentive* 15,057 -
Other expenses^^ 10,366 10,619 

87,464 69,217 

*  This incentive payment was provided to assist Lotterywest’s retailers and their lottery business, over future months as a 
result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

^ Sales, marketing and distribution expenses mainly relate to advertising and production costs across various channels.
^^ Total other expenses for 2020 includes professional fees $2.29m [2019:$1.17m], employment on-cost $1.58m [2019: 

$1.46m], property lease cost $0.53m [2019:$1.66m] and various audit fees $0.73m [2019:$0.92m]. 

Service type allocation
Total operating expenses are associated to service types. All costs associated with delivering 
the Healthway SLA are allocated to the Grants and community development service type.

2020
 $000

2019
$000

Lottery operations 71,684 54,659 
Grants and community development 15,780 14,558 

87,464 69,217 

3.5 Grants from State Government

2020 
$000

2019
$000

Grant income* 4,000 -

GST reimbursement for gaming margin 38,334 39,217

42,334 39,217

* Contributions received from Gaming and Wagering Commission and Department of Local Government, Sport and 
Cultural Industries towards the COVID-19 Relief Fund (COVID-19 Event Cancellation Package).

Revenue from grants, donations, gifts or other non-reciprocal contributions that are 
not contributions by owners are recognised at fair value. Revenue is recognised when 
Lotterywest has obtained control of the contribution (that is usually the date cash is received), 
it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount of the contribution 
can be reliably measured. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can 
be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

The State Government reimburses gaming operators (including Lotterywest) for GST paid 
on the operators’ margin in accordance with agreement between the States when the GST 
was originally introduced. GST paid on the gaming margin is disclosed as a cost of sales (see 
Note 3.1). Treasurer’s Instruction 1102 requires that reimbursement of GST is disclosed as a 
Grant from the State Government.
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4.1.2 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

2020
$000

2019
$000Note

Depreciation
Buildings 5.1.2 36 103 

Leasehold improvements 5.1.2 458 458 

Equipment and fittings 5.1.2 1,253 1,268 

Computer equipment 5.1.2 1,574 1,577 

Right-of-use assets 5.1.3 1,216 - 

Total depreciation 4,537 3,406 

Amortisation
Intangible assets 5.1.4 3,381 4,448 

Total amortisation 3,381 4,448 

Total depreciation and amortisation 7,918 7,854 

All non-current assets, excluding land, are depreciated or amortised over their estimated 
useful life, consistent with the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line basis rates which are reviewed annually. 
Estimated useful lives for each class of non-current assets are as follows:

Class Useful Life
Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 12 years
Equipment and fittings 3 to 10 years
Computer equipment 3 to 8 years

4.1.1 Employee benefits expenses

2020
$000

2019
$000

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits 25,610 23,351 
Termination benefits 374 402 
Superannuation 2,506 2,273 

28,490 26,026 

Wages, salaries and other employee benefits include accrued wages and leave 
entitlements. 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before normal retirement 
date or when an employee accepts an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination 
of employment. Termination benefits are recognised when Lotterywest is demonstrably 
committed to terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed 
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Superannuation is recognised as and when the contributions fall due. It comprises 
contributions paid to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS) concurrent contributions, 
the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS), the Government Employees Superannuation 
Board Schemes (GESBs), or other superannuation funds. 

GSS (concurrent contributions) is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees 
and whole-of-government reporting. It is however a defined contribution plan for 
Lotterywest’s purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) paid to 
GESB extinguishes Lotterywest’s obligations to the related superannuation liability.

Liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits 
attributable to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the 
Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by 
Lotterywest to the GESB.

The GESB and other fund providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements 
in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria 
for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to 
commencement and implementation dates.
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4.2 Distribution to grant beneficiaries

2020
$000

2019
$000

Statutory grants
State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012) 139,257 143,690 
Arts Lotteries Account 17,407 17,961 
Sports Lotteries Account 17,407 17,961 

174,071 179,612 

Direct grants
University of Western Australia (Festival of Perth) 7,000 7,700 
Screenwest (Commercial film production) 7,000 7,700 
Direct grants (Net of grants not taken up)^ 66,508 86,537 
COVID-19 Relief Fund 37,550 -

118,058 101,937 
Total distribution to grant beneficiaries 292,129 281,549

^ The total of grants not taken up and reversed during the financial year was $0.15 million [2019: $0.10 million].

The Act prescribes for the following allocations from net subscriptions of all products. Net 
subscriptions comprise the following:

a) In the case of a fixed prize game, the entry fee less any add-on comission and prize 
liability; and

b) In the case of a pari-mutuel prize game, the entry fee less any add-on commission and 
the prize fund.

Statutory grants
From net subscriptions, these grants are made to the credit of the Consolidated Account for 
subsequent appropriation to Agency Special Purpose Accounts. 

 • 40% to the State Pool Account of the State established under National Health Funding 
Pool Act 2012 

 • 5% to the Arts Lotteries Account 

 • 5% to the Sports Lotteries Account.

Direct grants
In addition to the statutory grants, the Act mandates: 

 • a minimum allocation of 12.5% of net subscriptions to eligible organisations for approved 
purposes; and

 • up to 5% of net subscriptions in total for the University of Western Australia for the Festival 
of Perth and ScreenWest for Commercial Film Production. 

Any remaining surplus (including surplus reserves generated from prior periods and 
unclaimed prizes as they fall due in the reporting period) is available for distribution to eligible 
organisations as the Commission thinks fit and the Minister approves.

Direct grants to eligible organisations for approved purposes are recognised in full when 
approved by the Minister. Unconditional grants are paid in full upon the Minister’s approval. 
Conditional grants are paid as and when conditions are fulfilled.

COVID-19 Relief Fund
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Act was amended to allow distribution of 
surplus reserves to State public authorities that provide emergency and crisis relief to 
Western Australians in this time of need. It will also provide support to not-for-profit 
organisations that have cancelled events due to COVID-19 and provide financial relief 
for not-for-profit arts, sports and community organisations to maintain viability and build 
resilience for future recovery. 

The COVID-19 Relief fund was established in April 2020 to reprioritise Lotterywest’s direct 
grant programs to organisations that assist the Western Australian community to recover 
from this pandemic. A total of $159 million has been committed towards this newly created 
fund. The fund comprises of $59 million of available funds, as well as up to $100 million 
additional funds to be raised through Lotterywest sales. 



Financial Statements 81

5. Assets
This section sets out both the key accounting policies and financial information about  
the performance of these assets:

5.1 Key assets

2020 
$000

2019
$000Note

Non-current assets classified as assets held for sale 5.1.1 4,100 5,100
Property, plant and equipment 5.1.2 17,676 19,034 
Right-of-use assets 5.1.3 9,322 -
Intangibles 5.1.4 5,026 8,078 

36,124 32,212

5.1.1 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

2020 
$000

2019
$000

Land and building (a)

Opening balance  5,100  - 
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 
during the year

- 5,400 

Less write-down from cost to fair value less 
cost to sell recognised in profit or loss 

(1,000) (300)

Less assets sold - -
Closing balance 4,100 5,100 

(a) Transferred from property, plant, and equipment at fair value.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell, and are disclosed separately from other assets in 
the Statement of Financial Position. Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated 
or amortised.

The property located at 74 Walters Drive, Osborne Park was classified as asset held for 
sale when it became available on the market in February 2019.
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5.1.2 Property, plant and equipment

Land Buildings
Leasehold

improvements
Equipment 

& fittings
Works  
of arts

Computer  
equipment

Work in  
progress Total

Year ended 30 June 2019 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

1 July 2018
Gross carrying amount 6,460 4,091 5,482 10,243 63 16,796 - 43,135

Accumulated depreciation  -  - (750) (6,038) - (8,502) - (15,290)
Accumulated impairment loss  -  - - -  - -  - -
Carrying amount at start of year 6,460 4,091 4,732 4,205 63 8,294 - 27,845

Additions - - - - - 120 259 379
Transfer from work in progress - - - - - - - -
Transfer to non-current assets - - - - - - - -
Classified as held for sale (3,600) (1,800) - - - - - (5,400)
Other disposals - - - (10) - - - (10)
Revaluation 329 (703) - - - - - (374)
Derecognition - - - - - - - -
Depreciation - (103) (458) (1,268) - (1,577) - (3,406)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2019 3,189 1,485 4,274 2,927 63 6,837 259 19,034

Year ended 30 June 2020

1 July 2019
Gross carrying amount 3,189 1,485 5,482 10,215 63 16,355  259 37,048
Accumulated depreciation  -  - (1,207) (7,288) - (9,519)  - (18,014)
Accumulated impairment loss  -  - - -  - -  - -
Carrying amount at start of year 3,189 1,485 4,275 2,927 63 6,836 259 19,034

Additions - - - - - - 2,292 2,292
Transfer from work in progress - - - - - - - -
Transfer to non-current assets - - - - - - (329) (329)
Classified as held for sale - - - - - - - -
Other disposals - - - - - - - -
Revaluation - - - - - - - -
Derecognition - - - - - - - -
Depreciation - (36) (458) (1,253) - (1,574) - (3,321)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 3,189 1,449 3,817 1,674 63 5,262 2,222 17,676 
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Property, plant and equipment 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are capitalised or recognised 
as assets and expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and 
equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed in full in the current year 
(other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date 
of acquisition. This also applies to grant properties which may have reverted back to 
Lotterywest. Where a transfer of beneficial ownership in land and/or buildings from a Trust 
Estate has occurred, at no cost or for nominal cost, the fair value is recognised at the date of 
the reversion.

Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition as an asset, Lotterywest uses the revaluation method for the 
measurement of land and buildings and the cost method for all other assets. Land and 
buildings are carried at their fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and 
accumulated impairment losses. All other assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where market evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the 
basis of current market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.

When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated 
depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 
restated to the revalued amount.

Valuations of land and buildings are provided annually by the independent valuers and 
recognised with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying amount does not differ materially 
from the assets fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of assets, any revaluation surplus relating to that 
asset is retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

Impairment 
Property, plant, equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment 
at each reporting date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount 
is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset 
is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where 
an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is 

recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable 
amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. 

For 2019-20 Lotterywest did not recognise an impairment loss for land and buildings (2019: 
$0.37 million).

Work in Progress
Costs associated with assets under development for use by Lotterywest are recognised 
as Work in Progress. Once completed, the assets are transferred to the appropriate asset 
account and are depreciated or amortised, as appropriate. No depreciation is provided during 
construction of assets. 

Fair value measurements

Assets measured at fair value Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Fair Value  
at end of 

Period
2020 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - 4,100 - 4,100 
Land - 3,189 - 3,189 
Buildings - 1,449 - 1,449 

- 8,738 - 8,738 

During the year there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3.

Assets measured at fair value Level 
 1

Level  
2

Level 
3

Fair Value  
at end of 

Period
2019 $000 $000 $000 $000
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - 5,100 - 5,100 
Land - 3,189 - 3,189 
Buildings - 1,485 - 1,485 

- 9,774 - 9,774 

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values
Level 2 fair values of Non-current assets held for sale, Land and Buildings are derived using 
the market approach. Market evidence of sales prices of comparable land and buildings in 
close proximity is used to determine price per square metre.

Non-current assets held for sale have been written down to fair value less costs to sell. 
Fair value has been determined by reference to contract of sale received from a buyer in 
June 2020.
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5.1.3 Right-of-use assets

Land Buildings
Plant, equipment 

and vehicles
Office 

equipment 
Concession 

leases Total
Year ended 30 June 2019 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

At 30 June 2019
Opening net carrying amount - - - - - -
Recognition of right-of-use assets on initial application of AASB 16 - 10,027 183 - - 10,210

Restated opening carrying amount - 10,027 183 - - 10,210

1 July 2019
Gross carrying amount - 10,027 183 - - 10,210
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - -
Accumulated impairment loss - - - - - -
Carrying amount at start of period - 10,027 183 - - 10,210

1 July 2019
Additions - 264 68 - - 332 
Transfers - - (4) - - (4)
Impairment losses - - - - - -
Impairment losses reversed - - - - - -
Depreciation - (1,133) (83) - - (1,216)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 - 9,158 164 - - 9,322 
Gross carrying amount - 10,291 234 - - 10,525 
Accumulated depreciation - (1,133) (70) - - (1,203)
Accumulated impairment loss - - - - - -

Right-of-use assets

Initial recognition
From 1 July 2019, AASB 16 requires an entity to recognise a right-of-use asset, where it has control of the underlying asset over the lease term. A right-of use asset is 
measured at the present value of the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted by any lease payments made at or before the commencement date and lease 
incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred, and estimated of dismalting and removing the underlying asset. 

Lotterywest has elected not to recognise right-of-use asset and lease liabilities arising from short-term leases (with a lease term of 12 months or less) and low value leases 
(with an underlying value of $5,000 or less). Lease payments associated with these leases are expensed over a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Subsequent measurement

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement of right-of-use assets, requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liability.
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Depreciation and impairment of right-of-use assets 
Right-of use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the assets estimated useful life and 
the terms of the lease. Where Lotterywest obtains ownership of the underlying lease asset at 
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is 
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment when an indication of impairment is identified. 
The policy in connection with testing for impairment is outlined in Note 5.1.2

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Statement
The following amounts relating to leases have been recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income:

2020
$000

2019
$000

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 1,216 -
Lease interest expense 373 -
Expenses relating to variable lease payment not included in 
lease liabilities

- -

Short-term lease - -
Low-value leases - -
Gains or losses arising from sale and leaseback transactions - -

1,589 -

The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was $2,424,000. 

Lotterywest’s leasing activities:
Information about leases for which the Lotterywest is a lessee is presented below.

Lotterywest has leases for office buildings and motor vehicles. Lease contracts are typically 
made for fixed periods between 3 - 12 years but may have extension options as described in 
(i) and (ii) below.

The lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. At inception or 
reassessment of a lease contract that contains a lease component, Lotterywest allocates the 
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative 
stand-alone prices.

(i) Office buildings

Lotterywest leases two office buildings, including its head office. The non-cancellable of 
the lease terms vary from 3 years to 12 years, with the option to extend the lease under the 
prevailing lease terms and conditions. The lease payments are adjusted every year based 
on a fixed review percentage. Lotterywest must also make good any damage caused by 
its installation and removal when returning those properties at the end of the lease as 
outlined in Note 7.2.2.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in 
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security 
for borrowing purposes.

(ii) Lease vehicles

Lotterywest leases its vehicles from the Department of Finance under the State Fleet 
Funding Facility contract. Vehicle leases have various terms and, in some cases, up 
to 6 years, with lease charges payable monthly and fixed for the duration of the lease 
term. Options exist for leases to be terminated and restructured under new terms and 
conditions, often resulting in extended lease terms, reduced lease charges and improved 
vehicle utilisation. 

Lotterywest does not purchase the assets nor guarantees the residual value of the lease 
assets at the end of the contract term. State Fleet is the owner of the vehicles and takes 
the risk of ownership at time of disposal for these vehicles.

5.1.4 Intangibles

2020
$000

2019
$000Computer software

Opening balance
Gross carrying amount 47,510 47,370 
Accumulated amortisation (39,432) (34,984)
Carrying amount at start of period 8,078 12,386 

Additions - 140 
Transfer from Work in Progress 329 -
Amortisation expense (3,381) (4,448)
Carrying amount at end of period 5,026 8,078 

Initial recognition
Acquisitions of intangible assets and internally generated intangible assets costing $5,000 or 
more are capitalised and expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred below 
$5,000 are fully expensed in the current year. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost method is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with a finite useful life is calculated for the period of the 
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. 
All intangible assets controlled by Lotterywest have a finite useful life and zero residual value 
(i.e. computer software is 3 to 10 years).
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5.2.2 Receivables

2020
$000

2019
$000

Current
Trade receivables 12,309 10,290 
GST receivables 11,314 5,529 
Accrued interest 1,303 1,859 
Other debtors 1,702 2,350 

26,628 20,028 

Contract balances
Trade receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less any allowances for 
uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The carrying amount of net trade receivables is 
equivalent to fair value as the receivables from retailers are settled on a weekly basis and all 
other receivables are settled within 30 days. Lotterywest holds bank guarantees as security 
for the retailer debtors and monitors the collection of monies from the retailers on a weekly 
basis. Based on historical default rates, the expected credit losses on trade receivables are 
deemed to be immaterial. All other receivables are not considered to be impaired. 

Computer software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and 
equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an 
intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is fully expensed in the year of acquisition.

Development costs
Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried forward when the future 
economic benefits can reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are 
likely to exceed $5,000.

Impairment
As at 30 June 2020 there were no indications of impairment to intangible assets. Lotterywest 
held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment annually or when an 
indication of impairment is identified. The policy in connection with testing for impairment is 
outlined in note 5.1.2.

5.2 Other assets

2020 
$000

2019
$000Note

Inventories 5.2.1 1,650 1,744 
Receivables 5.2.2 26,628 20,028 
Prepayments 779 615 

29,057 22,387 

5.2.1 Inventories

2020
$000

2019
$000

Inventories 1,650 1,744

Inventories are valued, on the first-in, first-out basis, at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Inventories comprise of instant lotto tickets and other consumables.
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6. Financing 
This section sets out the material balances, disclosures and risk management policies 
associated with the financing and cash flows of Lotterywest.

2020 
$000

2019
$000Note

Cash and cash equivalents 6.1 71,764 26,374 
Financial assets at amortised cost 6.2 211,501 285,382 
Lease liabilities 6.3 13,463 -
Commitments for expenditure 6.4 15,995 25,092 

6.1 Cash and cash equivalents

6.1.1 Reconciliation of cash
Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash on hand and 
cash at bank.

2020 
$000

2019
$000Note

Cash on hand 1 1 
Cash at bank 71,7643 26,373 
Total per Statement of Cash Flows 71,764 26,374 

6.1.2 Reconciliation of profit/(loss) to net cash flows provided by operating activities

2020 
$000

2019
$000

Profit/(loss) for the period (7,913) 31,475 
Non-cash items

Depreciation and amortisation expense 7,918 7,854 
Lease incentive amortisation - (402)
Write down of non-current assets classified as held for sale 1,000 300 
Services received free from charge from non State Government 36 279 
Net (gain)/loss on disposal 2 4 
Other gains -  - 

Cash flows to/(from) Government
Statutory grants 174,071 179,612 
Grant income (4,000) -
GST recoup revenue from State Government (38,334) (39,217)

(Increase)/decrease in assets
GST reimbursement (receivable)/payable (5,785) (3,486)
Trade debtors (2,019) (4,158)
Other debtors 542 (1,115)
Prepayments (164) 318 
Inventories 94 (191)
Accrued interest 556 (402)

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Other liabilities 1,853 1,066 
Direct grants (14,005) (9,293)
Unclaimed prize payable 5,271 (4,525)
Unpaid prize payable 530 12,430 
Trade creditors (1,137) 359 
Other creditors and accruals (9,254) 16,852 
Other provisions (137) 238
Prize reserve provisions 1,695 6,124 
Grants from State Government 2,523 3,637 

Net cash provided by operating activities before cash flows 
to State Government (excluding investing activities)

113,343 197,759 
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6.2 Financial assets at amortised cost
Lotterywest’s financial investments are made in accordance with the Financial Management  
Act 2006 and the Trustees Act 1962 (as amended).

2020 
$000

2019
$000

Current investments (maturity less than 1 year)
Short term products 156,049 181,789 

Non-current investments (maturity more than 1 year) 
Floating rate instruments 55,452 103,593 

Total financial assets at amortised cost^ 211,501 285,382 

^ Market value at 30 June 2020 was $217.73 million [2019:$292.3m].

6.3 Lease liabilities
Information about leases for which Lotterywest is a lessee is presented below.

2020 
$000

2019
$000

Lease Liabilities^
Current 1,442 -
Non- Current 12,021 -
Total lease liabilities 13,463 -

^  In 2019, Lotterywest only disclosed the future minimum lease commitments in the notes of the financial statements. For 
adjustments recognised on adoption of AASB 16 on 1 July 2019, please refer to note 9.2

Lease Liability – initial measurement
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the the contractual payments 
due to the lessor over the lease term net of cash lease incentive at the commencement 
date. Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate 
is readily determinable or the incremental borrowing rate provided by Western Australia 
Treasury Corporation. 

The interest on the lease liability is recognised in profit or loss over the lease term so as 
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for 
each period. Lease liabilities do not include any future changes in variable lease payments 
(that depend on an index or rate) until they take effect, in which case the lease liability is 
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Periods covered by extension or termination options are only included in the lease term when 
the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

Lease Liability – subsequent measurement 
Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by:

 • increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability

 • reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made

 • remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to

 • reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

This section should be read in conjunction with 5.1.3

6.4 Commitments for expenditure
Commitments for future expenditure include those operating, capital and other commitments 
arising from contracts but not recognised as liabilities, and which embody obligations to 
sacrifice future economic benefits. The commitments disclosed below are recorded at their 
nominal value inclusive of GST where relevant.

Less than 
1 year 
$000

1-5 years 
$000

5 Years 
+ 

$000
Total 
$0002020

Capital expenditure commitments payable(a) - - - -
Other non-cancellable contracts(c) 126 - - 126 
Other commitments payable(d) 2,539 2,330 - 4,869 
Grant expenditure commitments (e) 11,000 - - 11,000 
Total commitments (inclusive of GST) 13,665 2,330 - 15,995 

Less than 
1 year 
$000

1-5 years 
$000

5 Years 
+ 

$000
Total 
$0002019

Capital expenditure commitments payable(a) 1,483 - - 1,483
Non-cancellable operating and lease payable(b) 2,118 7,925 8,316 18,359
Other commitments payable(d) 3,165 2,085 - 5,250
Total commitments (inclusive of GST) 6,766 10,010 8,316 25,092

(a) Capital expenditure commitments in relation to information technology capital purchases contracted at the reporting 
date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities.

(b) Operating lease payments are expensed as incurred over the term of the lease, except where an alternative basis is 
required under the Australian Accounting Standard to display a more representative of the benefits derived from the 
leased property. As from July 2019, the majority of the non-cancellable operating leases fall within the scope of AASB 16 
as outlined in Note 6.4 and Note 9.2

(c) Lotterywest leases data centre space under a non-cancellable lease with a 2 year term commencing from 28 January 
2019, with the options to renew the lease for an additional term of 3 years.

(d) Other expenditure commitments in relation to information technology maintenance, support and various inventory items 
contracted at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities are payable.

(e) Grant expenditure commitments relate to ‘in principle’ commitments made to Department of Local Government, Sport 
and Cultural Indusries for grants relating to COVID-19 recovery support for sport and art programs.
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7. Liabilities
This section sets out those liabilities that arose from Lotterywest’s controlled operations and 
incurred during normal operations: 

2020
$000

2019
$000Note

Payables 7.1 201,749 224,385 
Provisions 7.2 36,234 34,033 
Contract liabilities 7.3 7,808 -
Other liabilities 7.4 - 9,643 

245,791 268,061 

7.1 Payables
Payables, including amounts not yet billed, are recognised when Lotterywest becomes 
obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services for which 
settlement has not yet occurred. Payables, other than those that relate to prizes and returns 
to beneficiaries, are generally settled within 30 days and the carrying amount considered 
equivalent to fair value.

2020 
$000

2019 
$000

Current
Prizes
Unclaimed prizes in current year(a) 25,232 22,041 
Unpaid prize payables(b) 2,980 2,450 

28,212 24,491 
Returns to beneficiaries
State Pool Account (under National Health Funding Pool Act 2012) 2,757 5,690 
Arts Lotteries Account 407 961 
Sports Lotteries Account 407 961 
Direct grants(c) 111,811 125,816 

115,382 133,428 
Other
Trade creditors 2,996 4,133 
Other creditors and accruals 11,899 21,153 

14,895 25,286 
158,489 183,205 

Non-current
Prizes
Unpaid prize payables(b) 43,260 41,180 
Total payables 201,749 224,385 

(a) Prizes won but not yet claimed.
(b) Discontinued Scratch’n’Win game where the prize is paid in the form of an annuity and the Set for Life 1st prize future 

maturity payments. Amounts payable more than 12 months post balance sheet date are classified as non-current. 
(c) Direct grants approved but not yet paid. 

7.2 Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount. Lotterywest only recognises a 
provision where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event 
and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimate.

2020 
$000

2019 
$000Note

Current
Employee benefits 7.2.1

Annual leave(a) 2,454 2,404 
Long service leave(b) 2,232 2,437 

Other provisions 7.2.2
Employment on-costs(d) 302 311 
Prize reserve provisions(e) 28,868 27,173 

33,856 32,325 
Non-current
Employee benefits 7.2.1

Long service leave(b) 1,426 1,400 
Superannuation entitlementsc) 218 218 

Other provisions 7.2.2
Employment on-costs(d) 91 90 
Make-good provision(f) 643 -

2,378 1,708 
Total provisions 36,234 34,033 

7.2.1 Employee related provisions
(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to 

defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments 
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

2020 
$000

2019
$000

 Annual leave
 Within 12 months 1,630 1,589 
 More than 12 months 824 815 

2,454 2,404 
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The provision for annual leave is calculated at the present value of expected payments to 
be made in relation to services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

(b) Unconditional long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there 
is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period. 

Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-current 
liabilities because Lotterywest has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 
liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as 
follows:

2020
$000

2019
$000 

Long service leave
Within 12 months 787 929 
More than 12 months 2,871 2,908 

3,658 3,837 

Key estimates and judgements – Long service leave

The long service leave liabilities are calculated at present value as Lotterywest does not 
expect to wholly settle the amounts within 12 months. The present value is measured 
taking into account the present value of expected future payments to be made in 
relation to services provided by employees up to the reporting date. These payments 
are estimated using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement 
and discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national 
government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the 
estimated future cash outflows.

In calculating Lotterywest’s long service leave provision, several estimations and 
assumptions have been made. These include expected future salary rates, salary inflation, 
discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. 

(c) The liability for superannuation entitlements has been provided by GESB.

Pension scheme
Lotterywest has no liability or defined benefit cost under AASB 119 arising from Pension 
Scheme.

Gold State Super (transferred benefits)
Nature of the benefits provided by the Scheme 
Some former Pension Scheme members transferred to Gold State Super receiving a 
lump sum benefit at retirement, death or invalidity which is related to their salary during 
their employment and indexed during any deferral period after leaving public sector 
employment.

Description of the regulatory framework 
The Scheme operates under the State Superannuation Act 2000 (Western Australia) and 
the State Superannuation Regulations 2001 (Western Australia). Although the scheme 
is not fomally subject to the Superannuation Industry Supervision (SIS) legislation, the 
Western Australian government has agreed to operate the scheme in accordance with the 
spirit of the SIS legislation.

Pre-transfer Benefit Gold State Superannuation Scheme

2020 
$000

2019 
$000

Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) 218 218
Net defined benefit liability 218 218

Reconciliation of DBO
Present value of DBO at beginning of the year 218 218 
Interest cost(i) - - 
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions(i) -  - 

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial 
assumptions(i) -  - 

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from liability experience(i) - -
Benefits paid - -
Present value of DBO at End of the Year 218 218 

(i) Due to the immaterial effect of actuarial (gains)/losses, the net movements have been recognised in the Statement 
of Comprehensive Income – Expenses Lottery Operations.

Significant actuarial assumptions at the reporting date

Assumptions to determine start of DBO and  
defined benefit cost for the current year

2020 
%

2019 
%

Discount rate (active members)(ii) 1.40 2.60
Expected salary increase rate 4.20 4.20

Assumptions to determine DBO at the valuation date 2020 
%

2019 
%

Discount rate (active members)(ii) 0.85 1.40
Expected salary increase rate 3.50 4.20

(ii) The discount rate as at 29 May 2020, based on the Government bond maturing in November 2029.
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Funding arrangements
The employer contributes, as required, to meet the benefits paid.

Expected contributions
Employer contributions of $218,000 are expected to be paid to the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme in the subsequent annual reporting period.

Maturity profile of DBO
The weighted average duration of Lotterywest’s defined benefit obligation is 0.0 years. The 
obligation is currently payable and no liability will remain once the obligation is paid.

7.2.2 Other provisions

Employment on-cost
(d) The settlement of annual leave and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment 

of employment on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance. The provision is the 
present value of expected future payments. 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee 
benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment 
to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other 
Expenses’ and are not included as part of ‘Employee Benefits Expense’. The related liability 
is included in ‘Employment On-Costs Provisions’.

2020 
$000

2019 
$000

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year 401 387 
Additional/(reversals of) provisions recognised 171 205 
Payment/other sacrifices of economic benefit (179) (191)
Carrying amount at end of year 393 401 

Prize reserve provisions
(e) The prize reserve provisions are used to guarantee jackpots and bonus draws in the 

jackpotting lottery games and the advertised prizes on the non-jackpotting games. 
The levels of prize reserves are administered by the Australian Lotto Bloc following 
pre-determined guidelines and funded by way of an allocation from each draw into 
the respective Prize Reserve provision. The settlement of the prize reserve provision is 
expected within the next 12 months.

2020 
$000

2019
$000

Prize reserve provisions
Carrying amount at start of year 27,173 21,049 
Additional provisions recognised 53,588 54,626 
Payments made to the prize reserve accounts and prizes paid (51,893) (48,502)
Carrying amount at end of year 28,868 27,173 

Make-good provision
(f ) The provision represents the present value of the estimated costs to make good the 

premises leased by Lotterywest at the end of the respective lease term. These costs are 
capitalised as part of the cost of leasehold improvements or right-of-use assets and are 
amortised over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of the assets.

2020 
$000

2019
$000

Make-good provision 
Carrying amount at start of period - - 
Additional/ (reversals of) provisions recognised 643 - 
Payments - -
Unwinding of the discount - -
Carrying amount at end of year 643 - 
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7.3 Contract liabilities
Contract liabilities are sales proceeds received or receivable from tickets for which the 
draw has not being held and not recognised as revenue. Lotterywest expects to satisfy 
the performance obligations unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period within the 
next 12 months.

2020
$000

2019
$000

Contract liabilities
Current 7,808 -
Non-Current - -
Total Contract liabilities 7,808 -

 
2020
$000

2019
$000

Movement in contract liabilities
Opening balance 5,955 -
Additions 7,808 -
Revenue recognised in the reporting period (5,955) -
Balance at the end of the period 7,808 -

7.4 Other liabilities
2020
$000

2019
$000

Current
Sales in advance(a) - 5,955 
Lease incentive unearned income(b) - 402 

- 6,357 
Non-current
Lease incentive unearned income(b) - 3,286 

- 3,286 
Total other liabilities - 9,643 

(a) This represents tickets sold which relate to games where the draw will occur after the financial year and therefore the 
sales proceeds have not been recognised as revenue. 

(b) Incentives received from entering into operating leases and amortised on a straight line basis over 12 years, being the 
lease term.

8. Risks and contingencies
This note sets out the key Lotterywest risk management policies and measurement techniques.

Notes
Financial risk management 8.1
Contingent assets and liabilities 8.2

8.1 Financial risk management
Financial instruments held by Lotterywest are cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, 
floating rate notes, floating rate deposits, receivables and payables. Lotterywest has limited 
exposure to financial risks attributed to investments held. Lotterywest holds two investment 
portfolios, one being a general portfolio of relatively short duration and the other being a ‘Set 
for Life’ portfolio of longer duration to meet future annuity liabilities. Lotterywest’s investment 
portfolios are managed by the Western Australia Treasury Corporation (WATC) within the 
constraints of the Trustee’s Act; Lotterywest’s Investment Policy and approved Service Level 
Agreement which includes investment parameters to manage risk. 

(a) Summary of risks and risk management

Credit risk
Credit risk arises where there is a possibility that counterparties will default on interest or 
capital repayments resulting in financial losses to Lotterywest.

In measuring risk at a counterparty level there are three components which include (a) the 
probability of default by the counterparty; (b) the current exposure to the counterparty; and (c) 
the likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations.

(a) Probability of default: Lotterywest will only deal with counterparties that have a minimum 
credit rating issued by Standard and Poors of A- long term and Moody’s of A3 long term, 
which is above investment grade (BBB). Although investment in BBB grade investments 
short term under certain conditions is possible. 

(b) Current exposure to counterparties: Lotterywest deals mainly with major financial 
institutions. The average exposure to these counterparties was $371.3 million 
(2019: $334.2 million). The maximum exposure to each counterparty is determined by their 
credit rating. The higher the credit rating the greater the maximum exposure, subject to 
upper limits counterparty’s and aggregate class limits. 

(c) Likely recovery ratio on defaulted obligations: Lotterywest does not trade securities, nor 
are there any investments in securities which have embedded derivatives. Consequently, 
Lotterywest does not have exposure to market movements in relation to capital repayment. 
Given the high credit quality of investments held, the risk of default in relation to interest or 
capital is very low.

Lotterywest collects monies electronically from its retail network on a weekly basis and 
monitors the performance of retail outlets on an ongoing basis. All new retail outlets are 
required to provide bank guarantees equivalent to one week’s takings. Consequently, there 
is no material default risk for receivables from retailers. Lotterywest does not accept credit 
payment from customers purchasing directly from Lotterywest. 
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when Lotterywest is unable to meet its financial obligations as they 
fall due. Lotterywest is exposed to liquidity risk through normal trading and grant payment. 
Lotterywest manages liquidity risk by: providing for volatility; limiting the direct grant program 
to a sustainable level; and limiting investment terms to meet forecasted payment outcomes 
as and when they fall due. Longer term investments may also be committed or sold to meet 
any short-term liquidity demands should they arise.

Market risk
Lotterywest does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price 
risks. Lotterywest’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to the 
investment portfolios and changes in interest rates which impact on investment income. The 
current outlook for interest rates is considered relatively stable with some prospect of further 
falls in interest rates unlikely to have an adverse impact on existing investments held. 

Lotterywest has no borrowings. 

The primary objective of Lotterywest’s investment portfolios are capital preservation whilst 
generating an appropriate return. Investment in high quality products where all counter 
parties are investment grade and investments are held to maturity provides low risk of capital 
loss. The current investment portfolios only contain bonds, term deposits and floating rate 
notes. 

(b) Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amount of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial 
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020 
$000

2019
$000

Financial assets
Cash 71,764 26,374
Loan and receivables(i) 15,314 14,499 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 211,501 285,382 

(i) Excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (statutory receivable).

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 201,749 244,385
Lease liabilities 13,463 -

(c) Financial instrument disclosures

Credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk exposure
WATC has determined the value of Lotterywest’s expected credit loss for 2020 based on the 
probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default using data from Bloomberg 
and Moody’s across the total investments as being $326,685 (2019: $102,078). As the 
expected credit loss is immaterial in comparison to the total investments, no adjustments 
have been made.

Lotterywest`s maximum exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk at the 
end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown on the 
following table (the table is based on information provided by WATC). 

The contractual maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted 
principal and interest receivable or payable amounts. There are no financial assets that are 
past due and therefore there is no further ageing analysis for the financial assets. No financial 
assets are held that had their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them 
being past due or impaired.
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Maturity analysis of financial assets

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates

Carrying 
amount

Weighted 
average 
interest 

rate

Fixed  
interest  

rate

Variable 
interest 

rate

Non- 
interest 
bearing

Nominal 
amount

Within  
1 year

1-3  
years

3-5  
years

More than 
5 years

2020 $000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 71,764 0.52 - 71,764 - 71,764 71,764  -  -  - 
Receivables 15,314 - - - 15,314 15,314 15,314  -  -  - 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 211,501 2.14 188,704 22,797 - 212,184 156,049 31,896 11,061 13,178 

298,579 188,704 94,561 15,314 299,262 243,127 31,896 11,061 13,178 

2019
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 26,374 1.59 - 26,374 - 26,374 26,374  -  -  - 
Receivables 14,499 -  -  - 14,499 14,499 14,499  -  -  - 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 285,382 2.77 178,285 107,097 - 286,229 182,139 78,596 12,316 13,178 

326,255 178,285 133,471 14,499 327,102 223,012 78,596 12,316 13,178 

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities
2020
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 201,749  -  -  - 201,749 201,749 158,489 5,280 5,280 32,700 
Lease liabilities 13,463 2.69 13,463 - - 14,992 1,782 3,611 3,621 5,978 

215,212 13,463 - 201,749 216,741 160,271 8,891 8,901 38,678 

2019
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 224,385  -  -  - 224,385 224,385 183,205  4,800  4,800 31,580 
Lease liabilities - - - - - - - - - -

224,385 - - 224,385 224,385 183,205 4,800 4,800 31,580 
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Fair value
All financial assets and liabilities, whether carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at 
amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in 
the specific notes.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table summarises the interest rate sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities at 
the end of the reporting period. It assumes that any change in interest rates is held constant 
throughout the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis provided is a movement of – 0.5% 
and +0.5%. (2019: -0.5% and +0.5%)

As at 30 June 2020 the cash rate was 0.25% (2019: 1.25%)

Carrying
amount

-0.5% 
Change

(loss)

+0.5% 
Change

profit
2020   $000 $000 $000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 71,764 (359) 359 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 211,501 (1,058) 1,058 
Receivables 15,314  -  - 

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised costs 201,749 - - 
Lease Liabilities 13,463  - - 
Total increase/(decrease) (1,417) 1,417

2019  
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 26,374 (132) 132 
Other financial assets at amortised cost 285,382 (1,427) 1,427 
Receivables 14,499  -  - 

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised costs 224,385  -  - 
Total increase/(decrease) (1,559) 1,559 

8.2 Contingent assets and liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Position but are disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable, measured at the best estimate 
inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

A recent decision handed down by the Industrial Appeal Court (IAC) changed the way 
voluntary severance payments are calculated. IAC found that the definition of ‘continuous 
service’ in the Regulations includes time served in the employment of the Commonwealth or 
another State public sector. 

Lotterywest is still conducting a search of staff records to potentially identify any individuals 
who were paid under this scheme in the past and have served in the employment of the 
Commonwealth or another State public sector. However, the potential liabilities cannot be 
reliably measured at this time. The Public Sector Commissioner recommends dealing with 
potential claims from individuals as and when they come forward. 

Lotterywest is not aware of any contingent assets as at 30 June 2020.
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9. Other disclosures
This section includes additional material disclosures to comply with Australian Accounting  
Standards and Treasurer’s Instructions.

Notes
Equity 9.1
Initial application of Australian Accounting Standards 9.2
Changes in accounting policies 9.3
Future impact of Accounting Standards not yet operative 9.4
Services received free of charge 9.5
Services provided free of charge 9.6
Remuneration of auditors 9.7
Key management personnel 9.8
Related party transactions 9.9
Related and affiliated bodies 9.10
Events occurring after the end of the reporting period 9.11
Supplementary financial information 9.12
Explanatory statement 9.13

9.1 Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in Lotterywest on behalf of 
the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of Lotterywest and 
comprises the following:

2020 
$000

2019 
$000

Asset revaluation reserve(a)

Balance at start of year 5,098 5,472 
Asset revaluation (decrements)/increments - (374)
Balance at the end of the period 5,098 5,098 
Retained earnings (b)

Balance at start of the year 93,196 61,721 
Adjustment from the adoption of AASB 16 (1,189) -
Profit/(loss) for the period (7,913) 31,475
Balance at the end of the period 84,094 93,196
Total equity 89,192 98,294

(a) The asset revaluation reserve records increments/decrements in the fair value of land and buildings. Decrements 
are recognised in this reserve only to the extent that they were previously recognised as increments for the same 
asset class.

(b) This represents the accumulated profits from previous years and the profit or (loss) in the current year.

9.2 Initial application of Australian Accounting Standards

AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and relevant amending standards 
1 Jan 2019
AASB 15 replaces AASB 118 Revenue and AASB 111 Construction Contracts for annual 
reporting periods on or after 1 January 2019. Under AASB 15, an entity recognises revenue 
when a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service and 
based upon the transfer of control rather than transfer of risks and rewards.

AASB 15 focuses on providing sufficient information to the users of financial statements 
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the 
contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised by applying the following five steps: 

 • Identifying contracts with customers 

 • Identifying separate performance obligations 

 • Determining the transaction price of the contract 

 • Allocating the transaction price to each of the performance obligations 

 • Recognising revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

In addition, income other than from contracts with customers are subject to AASB 1058 
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities. Income recognition under AASB 1058 depends on whether 
such a transaction gives rise to liabilities or a contribution by owners related to an asset (such 
as cash or another asset) recognised by the Agency.

Lotterywest adopts the modified retrospective approach on transition to AASB15 with no re-
statement of comparative figures.

Under this transition method, Lotterywest has elected to adopt TI 949 Comparative Figures 
(this is not the requirement of AASB 15) adjustment in the form of:

Year ended June 2019

Statement of comprehensive income
Previously reported  

$’000
Revenue

Sale of lottery product 985,251
Interest revenue 9,784
Other revenue 14,224

Total Revenue 1,009,259

Revenue
Revenue from contracts 991,034
Interest revenue 9,784
Other revenue 10,383

Total Revenue 1,011,201
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Revenue from contracts is then disaggregated by types of customers as outlined in note 3.1

Under AASB 15, sales proceeds received or receivable from tickets for which the draw has 
not been held are to be presented as a contract liability. Previously, it was recorded under 
Other liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position. This change in classification does not 
have a financial impact on the amount previously recognised in the financial statements – 
refer to note 7.3

Apart from the above, the effect of adopting AASB 15 as at 1 July 2019 was assessed as not 
material. There were no changes in Lotterywest’s revenue recognition and measurement 
upon the initial application of AASB 15.

Lotterywest has aligned its accounting policy on revenue to AASB 15 as outlined in notes 3.1.1 
to 3.1.3

AASB 16: Leases  
1 Jan 2019
AASB 16 Leases supersedes AASB 117 Leases and related Interpretations. AASB 16 primarily 
affects lessee accounting and provides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease 
arrangements and their treatment in the financial statements of both lessees and lessors. 

The main changes introduced by this Standard include identification of lease within a 
contract and a new lease accounting model for lessees that require lessees to recognise all 
leases (operating and finance leases) on the Statement of Financial Position as right-of-use 
assets and lease liabilities, except for short term leases (lease terms of 12 months or less at 
commencement date) and low-value assets (where the underlying asset is valued less than 
$5,000). The operating lease and finance lease distinction for lessees no longer exists. 

Lotterywest has applied AASB 16 with a date of initial application of 1 July 2019 using the 
modified retrospective approach. As permitted under the specific transition provisions, 
comparatives are not restated. The cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard is 
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated surplus/ (deficit).

(a) Leases classified as operating leases under AASB 117 
On transition to AASB 16, Lotterywest has elected to apply the practical expedient to 
‘grandfather’ the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, contracts that 
were not identified under the previous lease standard were not reassessed for whether 
there is a lease. 

(b) Measurement of the right-of-use assets
The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position were 
initially measured at the present value of future lease payments, discounted using the 
incremental borrowing rate of 2.70% on 1 July 2019. Incremental borrowing rate was 
provided by the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) when the interest rate 
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The right-of-use assets were assessed for impairment at the date of transition and have 

not identified any impairment to its right-of-use assets.

On transition, the following practical expedients have been applied:

(a) Lotterywest has also applied the exemption not to recognise the right-of-use assets 
and liabilities for leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months and for 
leases of low-value assets. Lotterywest continues to recognise those lease contracts 
as a lease expense on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term as permitted 
under AASB 16,

(b) Initial direct costs have not been included in the measurement of the right-of-use 
asset at the date of initial application of AASB 16, and

(c) Lotterywest has benefited from the use of hindsight to determine the lease term 
where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

(c) Measurement of the lease liabilities

2019  
$’000

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 30 June 2019 18,359
Discounted using incremental borrowing rate at date of initial application 14,444
(Less): Short-term leases not recognised as liability -
(Less): Low value leases not recognised as liability -

Lease liability recognised as at 1 July 2019 14,444

Of which are:
Current lease liabilities 1,223
Non-current lease liabilities 13,221

(d) Impact of AASB 16 on the Statement of Financial Position
The impact of the first adoption of AASB 16 has affected the following items on the 
Statement of Financial Position on 1 July 2019:

 • Right-of use assets – increased by $10.21 million

 • Lease liabilities – increased by $14.44 million

 • Make-good provision – increased by $0.64 million

 • Lease incentive liability – decreased by $3.69 million

The net impact on opening retained earnings was a decrease of $1.19 million.

The changes in accounting policy on leases are outlined in notes 5.1.3 and 6.3.
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AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities 
1 Jan 2019
AASB 1058 is applied to not for profit (NFP) entities for recognising income that is not 
revenue from contracts with customers. Timing of income recognition is dependent on 
whether such a transaction gives rise to a liability or other performance obligation (a promise 
to transfer a good or service), or a contribution by owners, related to an asset (such as cash 
or another asset) received by Lotterywest.

AASB 1058 has no impact on the income recognition of Lotterywest. 

AASB 2016-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities 
1 Jan 2019
This Standard inserts Australian requirements and authoritative implementation guidance for 
not-for-profit entities into AASB 9 and AASB 15. This guidance assists not-for-profit entities in 
applying those Standards to particular transactions and other events. 

There is no financial impact to Lotterywest.

AASB 2018-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Right-of-Use Assets 
of Not-for-Profit Entities 
1 Jan 2019
This Standard provides a temporary option for not for profit entities to not apply the fair 
value initial measurement requirements for right-of-use assets arising under leases with 
significantly below-market terms and conditions principally to enable the entity to further its 
objectives.

Lotterywest has not entered into any peppercorn leases, therefore there is no financial impact 
to Lotterywest. 

9.3 Changes in accounting policies
During 2019-2020, Lotterywest made a voluntary change to its accounting treatment for 
grants write-back. Grants write back from previous years are now recorded as other income, 
and grants write back from current year will continue to be written back against the current 
year’s grant expenditure. Previously, when a grant is not taken up, or a portion is returned, the 
amount is written back against current year’s grant expenditure.

After detailed consideration, management is of the opinion that such voluntary change in 
accounting policy provides users with: (i) more relevant and no less reliable information 
about Lotterywest’s grant funding function, and (ii) reflect the actual grants distributed to the 
community of Western Australia during the current financial year.

This voluntary change in accounting policy has been applied to the earliest period presented 
in the current financial statements and the prior year adjustments made are as follows:

Previously 
reported Adjustments Re-stated

Statement of comprehensive income $000 $000 $000
Revenue - 

Other revenue 14,224 1,942 16,166

Distribution to grant beneficiaries
Direct grants expense 84,595 1,942 86,537

9.4 Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
Lotterywest cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically 
permitted by Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and 
Other Pronouncements or by an exemption from TI 1101. Where applicable, Lotterywest plans 
to apply the following Australian Accounting Standards from their application date. 

AASB 1059: Service Concession Arrangements – Grantors, and relevant amending 
standards 
1 Jan 2020
This Standard addresses the accounting for a service concession arrangement (a type of 
public private partnership) by a grantor that is a public sector agency by prescribing the 
accounting for the arrangement from the grantor’s perspective. Timing and measurement for 
the recognition of a specific asset class occurs on commencement of the arrangement and 
the accounting for associated liabilities is determined by whether the grantee is paid by the 
grantor or users of the public service provided. 

As Lotterywest does not manage any public private partnerships within the scope of the 
Standard it is unlikely the Standard will have any financial impact to Lotterywest.

AASB 2018-7: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of 
Material 
1 Jan 2020
The Standard principally amends AASB 101 and AASB 108. The amendments refine the 
definition of material in AASB 101. The amendments clarify the definition of material and its 
application by improving the wording and aligning the definition across AASB Standards and 
other publications. The amendment also includes some supporting requirements in AASB 101 
in the definition to give it more prominence and clarifies the explanation accompanying the 
definition of material.

There is no financial impact to Lotterywest.
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AASB 2020-1: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Classification of 
Liabilities as Current or Non-current 
1 Jan 2022
This Standard amends AASB 101 to clarify requirements for the presentation of liabilities in 
the statement of financial position as current or non-current. 

There is no financial impact to Lotterywest.

9.5 Services received free of charge

2020
$000

2019
$000

Resources provided by Department of Primary 
Industries and Regional Development

2 -

Services provided by the State Solicitor’s Office 19 58
21 58

Assets and resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that Lotterywest would 
otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets 
or services where they can be reliaby measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for 
services received.

Where assets and services received from other State Government agencies they are disclosed 
separately under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

9.6 Services provided free of charge 
During the reporting period, Lotterywest provided services free of charge to:

2020
$000

2019
$000

Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 
(Healthway)

- 353

9.7 Remuneration of auditors
The total fees to the Auditor General for statutory audits are as follows:

2020
$000

2019
$000

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and 
performance indicators

129 129

9.8 Compensation of key management personnel
The Commission has determined that Key Management Personnel include State Government 
Ministers, our Minister, the WA Premier (current), Lotterywest’s Board members, CEO and 
Senior Executive Services (SES) designated Senior Officers. However, the Commission is 
not obligated to compensate Ministers and therefore disclosures in relation to Ministers’ 
compensation may be found in the Annual Report on State Finances.

Compensation of members of the accountable authority

Compensation band ($)  2020  
No.

 2019
No.

0- 10,000 - 1
20,001 - 30,000 - 1
30,001 - 40,000 5 5
40,001 - 50,000 - 1
60,001 - 70,000 1 -

6 8

2020
$000

2019
$000

Short term employee benefits 218 222
Post employment benefits 21 27
Other long term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -

Total compensation of members of the accountable authority 239 249
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Compensation of senior officers 

Compensation band ($)
 2020 

No.
 2019 

No.

30,001 - 40,000(a) 1 -
40,001 - 50,000 - 1
90,001 - 100,000 - 1
190,001 - 200,000 1 2
200,001 - 210,000 2 1
210,001 - 220,000 1 -
220,001-230,000 - 1
300,001 - 310,000 1 -
320,001 - 330,000 - 1

6 7
(a) Senior officers employed for only part of the 2019-20 financial year.

2020
$000

2019
$000

Short term employee benefits 914 805
Post employment benefits 147 361
Other long term benefits 98 118
Termination benefits - -
Total compensation of senior officers 1,159 1,284

9.9 Related party transactions
Lotterywest is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Western Australia. In 
conducting its activities, Lotterywest is required to pay various taxes and levies based on the 
standard terms and condition that apply to all tax and levy payers to the State and entities 
related to the State.

Related parties of Lotterywest include:

 • All Ministers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled 
entities;

 • All senior officers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly controlled 
entities;

 • Other departments and public sector entities, including related bodies included in the 
whole of government consolidated financial statement;

 • Associates and joint ventures, that are included in the whole of government consolidated 
financial statement; and

 • The Government Employee Superannuation Board (GESB).

Significant transactions with government related entities:

 • Services received free of charge (Note 9.5);

 • Services provided free of charge to other government agencies (Note 9.6);

 • Vehicle lease rental payments to the Department of Finance during the year 30 June 2020 
was $0.09 million (2019: $0.08 million);

 • Insurance payments to RiskCover fund during the year 30 June 2020 was $0.22 million 
(2019: $0.25 million);

 • Service Level Arrangement with Healthway (Note 3.1);

 • Grants provided to Hospital, Sports, and Arts (Note 4.2);

 • Grants from State Government (Note 3.5); 

 • Remuneration for services provided by the Auditor General (Note 9.7), and

 • Grant contributions from Sports and Arts of $4.0 million towards COVID-19 relief (Note 3.5).

Material transactions with other related parties

 • Superannuation payment to GESB during the year 30 June 2020 was $3.65 million 
(2019: $3.28 million).

Outside of general citizen type transactions, there were no material related party transactions 
with Key Management Personnel or their close family members or their controlled or jointly 
controlled entities for the year ended to 30 June 2020.
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9.10 Related and affiliated bodies
Section 26 (1) of the Act requires details of all grants recipients to be listed separately, 
including grants provided to any affiliated bodies. There were no related and/or affiliated 
bodies requiring disclosure for the year. A full list of grants approved is disclosed in the 
Annual Report.

9.11 Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
In June 2020, Lotterywest received an offer on our former premises at Osborne Park (currently 
classified as asset held for sale). The offer has become unconditional in July 2020. 

9.12 Supplementary financial information

Write-offs 2020
$000

2019
$000

Bad debts written-off 23 -
Unacquitted Grants written-off 47 -
Play online transactions written-off 49 17
Portable and attractive assets - 1

119 18

Gifts of public property 2020
$000

2019
$000

Gifts of public property provided to not-for-profit 
organisations(a) 

- 2

- 2

(a) During the year a significant number of items of plant, furniture and equipment, art and other portable items that 
were surplus to Lotterywest’s requirements and had little to no economic benefit to Lotterywest were disposed in 
accordance with State Supply Commission guidelines by transferring to not for profit organisations at no cost.

9.13 Explanatory statement
The following tables provide details of significant variations between actual revenues and 
expenditures for the financial year compared with the corresponding items for the preceding 
year and the corresponding items in the budget. Significant variations are considered to be 
those where the amount is deemed as being in excess of 5% and $1 million.

Significant variations  
Between actual and estimates (original budget) of revenues and expenditures for 2020

2020 
Actual 

$000

2020 
Budget 

$000

Variance 
$000

Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers 959,350 892,612 66,738 (a)
Revenue from contracts with retailers 3,228 4,704 (1,476) (b)
Revenue from contracts with Healthway 2,728 2,691 37 
Total Revenue from contracts 965,306 900,007 65,299 

Less: Cost of sales
Prizes 539,670 503,969 35,701 
Printing costs 3,875 3,817 58 
Retailers’ commission 70,345 65,696 4,649 
Goods and Services Tax 38,334 35,606 2,728 
Total Cost of sales 652,224 609,088 43,136 (c)

Trading profit 313,082 290,919 22,163 

Other revenue
Interest 7,856 7,750 106 
Other 8,410 7,705 705 
Total other revenue 16,266 15,455 811 

Net gain/(loss)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets (2) - (2) 
Other gains - - -
Total net gain/(loss) (2) - (2)

Expenses
Lotteries operations 71,684 70,266 1,418 
Grants and community Development 
operations

15,780 14,418 1,362 

Total operating expenses 87,464 84,684 2,780 (d)

Profit from operating activities 241,882 221,690 20,192 
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2020 
Actual 

$000

2020 
Budget 

$000

Variance 
$000

Total returns to beneficiaries
Direct grants 66,508 100,000 (33,492)
COVID-19 Relief Fund 37,550 - 37,550
State Pool Account 174,071 130,917 43,154
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 14,000 32,730 (18,730)
Total returns to beneficiaries 292,129 263,647 28,482 (e)

Grants from State Government
GST Reimbursement for Gaming Margin 38,334 35,606 2,728 (f )
Grant income 4,000 - 4,000 (g)
Total Grants from State Government 42,334 35,606 6,728 

Net profit/(loss) (7,913) (6,351) (1,562)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers
Sales revenue is $66.7 million higher than budget mainly due to higher than expected 
jackpot levels for Powerball, including Australia’s biggest Lotto jackpot of $150M and a 
record year for sales in Scratch’n’Win products. 

(b) Revenue from contracts with retailers 
Revenue from retailers is $1.5 million lower mainly due to the terminal and service fee 
abatement beginning in April 2020 which formed part of Lotterywest’s response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. This coincided with reductions across the retail network’s trading 
hours for those retailers in affected locations. 

(c) Total Cost of Sales
Prize allocations, retailers’ commissions and Goods and Services Tax exceed the budget 
as they are linked to higher sales. Retailers’ commission were also boosted 1% with the 
introduction of the average commission increase from 9% to 10% in December 2019.

(d) Total expenses from Lotteries and Grants operations 
Operating expenses were $2.78 million above budget mainly due to expenditure incurred 
for COVID-19 Retailer Support Fund, offset by the underspent of advertising services, 
contracts and a lower number of retailer shop fit-out installation completed.

(e) Total Returns to Beneficiaries
Statutory funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to 
section 22 of the Act and the amount is dependent on the level of sales. Total Statutory 
Grants was $24.4 million (15%) above budget due to increased sales. Direct Grants were 
$33.5 million (33%) under budget offset by grants directed to the COVID-19 Relief Fund of 
$37.5 million.

(f) GST reimbursement for gaming margin
GST reimbursement for gaming margin is in proportion to the increase in sales. The 
higher sales resulted in elevated GST reimbursement. 

(g) Grant income 
Contributions of $2.0 million from the Department of Local Government, Sports & Cultural 
Industries and $2.0 million from the Gaming and Wagering Commission were received for 
the purposes of COVID-19 Relief Fund (COVID-19 Event Cancellation Package). 
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Significant variations  
Actual revenues and expenditures for 2020 and 2019

2020 
Actual 

$000

20219 
Actual 

$000

Variance 
$000

Revenue
Revenue from contracts with customers 959,350 985,251 (25,901)
Revenue from contracts with retailers 3,228 4,667 (1,439) (a)
Revenue from contracts with Healthway 2,728 1,116 1,612 (b)
Total Revenue from contracts 965,306 991,034 (25,728)

Less: Cost of sales
Prizes 539,670 555,079 (15,409)
Printing costs 3,875 3,279 596 
Retailers’ commission 70,345 71,198 (853)
Goods and Services Tax 38,334 39,217 (883)
Total Cost of sales 652,224 668,773 (16,549)
Trading profit 313,082 322,261 (9,179)

Other revenue
Interest 7,856 9,784 (1,928) (c)
Forfeited prizes 5,862 8,314 (2,452) (d)
Grants refunds and write-backs prior years 2,399 1,942 457 
Other 149 127 22 
Total other revenue from lottery activities 16,266 20,167 (3,901)

Net gain/(loss)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets (2) (4) 2 
Other gains - 600 (600)
Total net gain/(loss) (2) 596 (598)

Expenses
Lotteries operations 71,684 54,659 17,025 
Grants and community Development operations 15,780 14,558 1,222 
Total operating expenses 87,464 69,217 18,247 (e)
Profit from operating activities 241,882 273,807 (31,925)

Total returns to beneficiaries
Direct grants 66,508 86,537 (20,029)
COVID-19 Relief Fund 37,550 - 37,550 
State Pool Account 174,071 179,612 (5,541)
Sport/Arts Lotteries Accounts 14,000 15,400 (1,400)
Total returns to beneficiaries 292,129 281,549 10,580 (f )

2020 
Actual 

$000

20219 
Actual 

$000

Variance 
$000

Grants from State Government
GST Reimbursement for Gaming Margin 38,334 39,217 (883)
Grant income 4,000 - 4,000 
Total Grants from State Government 42,334 39,217 3,117 (g)

Net profit/(loss) (7,913) 31,475 (39,388)

(a) Revenue from contracts with retailers 
Revenue from retailers is $1.4 million lower primarily due to the six-month terminal and service 
fee abatement which formed part of Lotterywest’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

(b) Service level agreement with Healthway
Revenue represents cost recovery for a full year of services performed by Lotterywest. The fees 
are higher than previous year as the Service Level Agreement commenced 1 January 2019. 

(c) Interest
Investment income decreased $1.9 million due to lower levels of investment funds held and 
material reductions to interest rates.

(d) Forfeited prizes 
Forfeited prizes were down in comparison to last year by $2.5 million due to changes 
in ticket expiry in response to COVID-19. Lotterywest secured Parliamentary support to 
amend Section 16A of the Lotteries Commission Act 1990 to allow the temporary extension 
of Lotterywest’s prize claim periods from 12 to 24 months. 

(e) Total expenses from Lotteries and Grants operations 
Expenses were $18.2 million above the previous financial year mainly due to the retailer 
relief fund, additional service and contracts, and salary and wages offset by lower 
advertising and accommodation.

(f) Total returns to beneficiaries
Overall total return to beneficiaries increased $10.6 million compared to last year. Statutory 
funding to State Pool Account, Sports and the Arts is distributed according to section 22 of 
the Act and is directly linked to the increased level of sales. Total Statutory Grants declined 
$6.9 million in line with the reduction in lottery sales. 

Total Direct Grants decreased $19.7 million compared to last year offset by additional grants 
of $37.2 million directed to the COVID-19 Relief Fund.

(g) Grants from State Government
Grants from State Government exceeds last financial year by $3.1 million due to the two 
contributions of $2.0 million from the Department of Local Government, Sports & Cultural 
Industries, and the Gaming and Wagering Commission for the purposes of COVID-19 Relief 
Fund. 
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the WA community
Lotterywest grants

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Abbie Basson Sarcoma Foundation Ltd.  $20,000

Activate Perth Incorporated  $83,000

Albany International Folk n Shanty Festival  $10,217

Albany Mountain Bike Club Inc  $15,000

Albany Regional Hospital Radio Heartbeat  $3,740

Anglicare WA Inc.  $657,887

Anglicare WA Inc.  $1,524,761

Arche Health Ltd  $15,000

Arthritis Foundation of W.A. Incorporated  $68,705

Artrage Inc  $900,000

Arts Margaret River Incorporated  $25,000

Arts Margaret River Incorporated  $59,500

Augusta Community Resource Centre (Inc.)  $45,171

Augusta Margaret River Clean Community Energy Incorporated  $15,519

Augusta River Festival (Inc)  $15,000

Australian Arab Association Incorporated  $25,000

Australian Professional Association for Trans Health Ltd  $15,000

Australian Sign Language Interpreters Association (WesternAustralia) 
Incorporated

 $5,727

Australian-Asian Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $26,000

Autism West Support Incorporated  $244,523

Avon Youth Community and Family Services Incorporated  $95,500

AWESOME Arts Australia Ltd  $1,070,000

Baden Street Singers  $15,000

Badimia Land Aboriginal Corporation  $30,000

Bangali Society for Puja and Culture Inc.  $5,000

Banjima Native Title Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC  $50,000

Bayswater Organisation of Loan Toys (Inc)  $13,289

Bayswater Primary School Parents and Citizens' AssociationIncorporated  $6,027

Beeliar Community Voice Inc.  $5,950

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Benevolent Hands Inc.  $5,000

Bengali Association of Western Australia Incorporated  $6,427

Best Friends Animal Rescue Inc  $31,761

Birra-Li Child Care Association Inc  $29,438

Black Swan Health Limited  $28,543

Black Swan State Theatre Company Ltd  $40,000

Blackwood Country Gardens Inc.  $15,000

Bloodwood Tree Association Incorporated.  $156,333

Boddington Community Resource Centre Inc  $12,000

Bonsai Society of Western Australia Incorporated  $4,500

Brake The Psychol Inc.  $13,600

Bridgetown Historical Society Incorporated  $3,858

Bridgetown Repertory Club (Inc)  $15,000

Brighton Community Garden, Education and Resource Centre Inc.  $8,100

Broome Lotteries House Incorporated  $113,000

Broome Youth and Families Hub Incorporated  $162,823

Bruce Rock and Districts Agricultural Society (Inc.)  $5,500

Bunbury Men of Song Inc  $16,495

Bunbury Multicultural Group Incorporated  $20,000

Bush Heritage Australia  $775,762

Busselton Allsports Inc.  $20,000

Busselton Historical Society  $15,000

Canning Agricultural Horticultural and Recreational Society (Inc.)  $20,000

Canteen - The Australian Organisation for Young People Living with Cancer  $441,659

Carbon Neutral Charitable Fund Limited  $360,500

Carlisle Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated  $5,690

Catch Music Inc  $6,520

Catholic School Parents Western Australia Incorporated  $33,910

Centre for Thai Language and Culture of Western Australia Incorporated  $6,400

Centrecare Incorporated  $115,300

Centrepoint Church Incorporated  $20,000

Chapman Valley Agricultural Society Incorporated  $11,000

Chevrolet Club of Western Australia Inc.  $3,979

Children's Leukaemia and Cancer Research Foundation Inc  $10,000

Chittering Residents and Ratepayers Association Inc.  $3,888

Chorus Australia Limited  $500,000
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Chung Wah Association  $20,000

City of Albany  $134,060

City of Armadale  $35,000

City of Bayswater  $20,000

City of Belmont  $50,000

City of Bunbury  $30,000

City of Canning  $40,000

City of Cockburn  $50,000

City of Cockburn Pipe Band Incorporated  $6,548

City of Fremantle  $342,000

City of Fremantle - Fremantle Community Legal Centre  $12,000

City of Greater Geraldton  $30,000

City of Greater Geraldton  $530,000

City of Kwinana  $15,000

City of Mandurah  $20,000

City of Melville  $20,000

City of Nedlands  $20,000

City of Perth  $35,000

City of Perth  $685,000

City of Perth  $4,378,494

City of Rockingham  $985,000

City of Rockingham  $22,800

City of South Perth  $295,000

City of Stirling  $20,000

City of Stirling - Stirling Women's Centre  $22,000

City of Swan  $15,000

City of Swan  $1,320,429

City of Swan  $1,000,000

City of Wanneroo  $20,000

City of Wanneroo  $250,000

City of Wanneroo  $200,000

Classic Sounds Orchestra Association Inc  $14,922

Clontarf Foundation  $18,220

Cockburn Community Men's Shed Inc  $14,998

Collective Hope Inc.  $45,444

Combined Probus Club of Winthrop Inc  $3,000

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Community Trike for York  $10,000

Como Secondary College Parents and Citizens Association Inc  $9,789

ConnectGroups - Support Groups Association WA Inc  $21,968

Consular Corps of Western Australia Inc  $20,000

Coolgardie Day Celebrations Inc  $15,000

Council on the Ageing (Western Australia) Incorporated  $77,000

Country Music Club of Boyup Brook, WA Incorporated  $21,918

Cranbrook Tourist and Business Promotion Group  $9,728

Crossways Community Services Inc  $80,000

Curtin University Student Guild  $10,000

Dalyellup Beach Surf Life Saving Club Inc  $41,467

Dante Alighieri Society of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $5,373

Dardanup Bull and Barrel Festival Incorporated  $14,838

Darlington Arts Festival Association Inc  $20,030

Darlington Sports and Recreation Association (WA) Incorporated  $39,000

Deafness Council Western Australia Incorporated  $22,052

Denmark Men's Shed Inc.  $360,000

Dinosaur Coast Management Group Inc  $99,815

Donnybrook Apple Festival Inc.  $19,000

Donnybrook Community Resource Centre Inc.  $4,000

Dumbleyung Events Committee Inc  $9,398

Dunsborough and Districts Progress Association Incorporated  $15,000

Eastern Region Domestic Violence Services Network Inc  $28,750

Eaton Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated  $2,310

Edmund Rice Camps for Kids (WA) Incorporated  $42,512

Edmund Rice Centre WA Inc.  $10,973

Ellenbrook Community Collective Incorporated  $25,000

Esperance Crisis Accommodation Service Inc.  $10,000

Esperance Potter's Club (Inc)  $13,657

Ethnic Disability Advocacy Centre Inc.  $637,584

Exmouth Community Support Group Inc.  $30,000

Exmouth Playgroup Association Incorporated  $14,980

Fair Game Australia Limited  $6,928

Fairbridge Western Australia (Inc.)  $137,929

Family Planning Association of Western Australia (Inc.)  $53,054

Federation of Western Australian Police and Community Youth Centres (Inc)  $167,075
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Festival of Busselton Incorporated  $15,000

Filipino-Australian Club of Perth Inc  $9,649

Financial Counsellors Association of Western Australia  $65,000

Financial Toolbox Inc.  $126,100

FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc  $100,000

FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc - Spinifex Hill Artists  $1,217,172

Fremantle Park Sport and Community Centre Inc.  $284,987

Friends of the Cape to Cape Track Inc.  $14,760

Full Circle Therapies Inc  $155,116

Geegeelup Village Incorporated  $181,022

Geraldton Dog Rescue Inc.  $400,000

Geraldton Greenough Sunshine Festival (Inc.)  $15,000

Geraldton Pottery Club  $14,568

Gnowangerup Community Resource Centre (Inc.)  $3,500

Gosnells Community Legal Centre (Inc)  $80,000

Granny Glasgow Education and Care Inc  $140,259

Graylands Hospital Volunteer Service Inc.  $16,500

Green Skills Inc.  $25,000

Greenfields Family and Community Centre Inc  $19,665

Greening Australia Ltd  $577,940

Guildford Association Incorporated  $5,653

Haemophilia Foundation Australia Inc.  $18,080

Harvest Lakes Residents' Association Incorporated  $10,622

Harvey Community Resource Centre Inc.  $22,866

Harvey Mainstreet (Inc.)  $20,000

Health Communication Resources Inc.  $10,906

Hellenic Community of Western Australia  $30,000

Henri Nouwen House Incorporated  $105,587

Historic Heart of Perth Inc.  $204,210

Holyoake Australian Institute for Alcohol and Drug Addiction Resolutions Inc.  $693,500

Home Away from Home Inc  $85,000

Hopetoun Community Resource Centre Inc  $9,631

Hyden Community Resource Centre (Inc)  $3,000

In Town Centre Incorporated  $15,000

Indian Society of Western Australia  $200,000

Indian Society of Western Australia  $50,000

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Indigenous Remote Communications Association Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islanders Corporation

 $60,000

Indigo Junction Incorporated  $307,373

Investing In Our Youth Inc  $38,831

Investing In Our Youth Inc  $32,500

Iranian Association Inc  $8,500

Irrunytju Community Incorporated  $100,000

Jacaranda Community Centre Inc  $178,832

Jandakot Volunteer Bush Fire Brigade Inc.  $15,000

Japan Festival Inc.  $15,000

Jarrahdale Playgroup  $11,344

Jazz by the Bay Association Incorporated  $15,000

Joondalup Christmas Lunch  $14,894

Jurien Bay Community Men's Shed Inc  $145,454

Jurien Bay Community Resource Centre Inc.  $6,000

Kakwa Community of Western Australia Inc.  $14,810

Kalamunda and Districts Agricultural Society Incorporated  $10,000

Kalgoorlie-Boulder Community Fair Society  $31,550

Katanning Community Childcare Centre Inc  $28,804

Katanning Regional Business Association Incorporated  $12,000

Kimberley Land Council Aboriginal Corporation  $711,871

Kimberley Stolen Generation Aboriginal Corporation  $91,836

Kingsley Community Carols Festival  $9,500

Kurrawang Aboriginal Christian Community Inc.  $75,115

Lake Grace Community Resource Centre Inc.  $5,580

Law Society of Western Australia  $230,000

Leadership Western Australia  $124,500

Leadership Western Australia  $134,530

Leading Youth Forward Incorporated  $36,400

Leederville Toy Library Incorporated  $10,000

Leinster Community Day Care Centre Inc  $15,000

Leschenault Catchment Council (LCC) Incorporated  $29,340

Linear Clinical Research Ltd  $1,792,173

Lionheart Camp for Kids Incorporated  $120,195

Lions Club of Katanning  $7,000

Lions Club of Manjimup  $4,370
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Literature Centre Inc.  $12,552

Living Proud Incorporated  $8,000

Living Stone Foundation Inc  $196,804

Lockyer Community Kindergarten Inc  $53,200

Lower Blackwood Catchment Land Conservation District Committee  $16,971

Lucy Saw Centre Association  $50,000

Maccabi Bridge Club  $6,284

Maharashtra Mandal of Perth, Western Australia Inc.  $3,900

Mandurah Arts and Crafts Society Incorporated  $3,000

Mandurah Men's Shed Inc  $9,000

Mandurah Photography Club (Inc)  $3,858

Manjimup Cherry Harmony Festival Inc  $18,500

Margaret River Community Centre Inc.  $8,000

Margaret River Men's Shed Incorporated  $380,000

Marra Worra Worra Aboriginal Corporation  $89,793

McAuley Ministries Limited - St Catherine's House of Hospitality  $79,220

McDougall Park Community Kindergarten Inc.  $61,000

Meerilinga Young Children's Services Inc  $371,855

Mens Outreach Service Aboriginal Corporation  $932,338

Men's Sheds of WA Inc.  $232,000

Mercy Community Services Limited  $807,894

Merredin Museum and Historical Society (Incorporated)  $22,170

Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc.  $41,000

Midwest Multicultural Association (WA) Incorporated  $19,442

Mingenew Midwest Expo Inc.  $7,235

Mission Australia  $37,370

Mission Australia  $85,000

Moore Men's Shed Inc  $18,181

Mosaic Community Care Inc  $18,950

Mount Helena Residents and Ratepayers Progress AssociationIncorporated  $15,000

Mt Marshall & Districts Agricultural Society (Inc.)  $8,905

Multicultural Services Centre of Western Australia Incorporated  $217,250

Multiple Sclerosis Society of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $35,710

Mundaring Arts Centre Inc  $21,740

Mundaring in Transition Incorporated  $7,844

Mundaring Sharing  $45,788

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Murray Music and Drama Club (Inc.)  $15,000

Muscular Dystrophy Association of Western Australia (Incorporated)  $52,220

Nannup Men's Shed Inc  $38,720

Nannup Music Club Incorporated  $40,000

Narembeen Club Inc  $13,930

National Disability Services Limited - National DisabilityServices Western 
Australia

 $58,248

Nations Church Incorporated  $15,000

Native Animal Rescue Incorporated  $143,897

Newman Women's Shelter Inc.  $15,000

No Limits Perth Inc  $16,176

Nollamara Autumn Club Incorporated  $3,000

Noongar Mia Mia Pty Ltd  $88,577

Norseman Gold Fever Festival Inc  $15,000

North Perth Business and Community Association Inc.  $5,000

Nulsen Group Ltd.  $37,102

Ocean Heroes Limited  $26,149

Ocean Reef Senior High School Emergency Services Cadets  $4,586

Organisation of African Communities in Western Australia Inc.  $51,932

Over 55 Canoe Club Incorporated  $5,187

Parkerville Children and Youth Care Incorporated  $3,000,000

Pat Thomas House Inc  $30,000

Paupiyala Tjarutja Aboriginal Corporation  $397,400

PeelConnect Incorporated  $14,584

Perth Blues Club (W.A.) Incorporated  $15,000

Perth Indonesian Community Incorporated  $12,450

Perth Inner City Youth Service Inc  $23,000

Perth International Arts Festival Ltd  $7,000,000

Perth International Jazz Festival Inc.  $58,000

Perth Observatory Volunteer Group Incorporated  $107,000

PetRescue Ltd  $15,000

Pilbara Mesquite Management Committee Inc.  $61,000

Pivot Support Services Incorporated  $7,500

Probashi Bengali of Western Australia Incorporated  $5,000

Propel Youth Arts WA Incorporated  $35,000

Punmu Aboriginal Corporation  $50,034
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Quairading Agricultural Society Inc.  $5,000

Quairading Community Resource Centre (Inc.)  $4,840

RAAFA Meadow Springs Residents Branch  $14,265

Rainbow Coast Toy Library Incorporated  $14,000

Ravensthorpe Regional Arts Council  $20,578

Redmond Community Association Incorporated  $20,856

Regional Alliance West Incorporated  $15,231

Regional Early Education and Development Inc.  $202,800

Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $795,000

Robe River Kuruma Aboriginal Corporation RNTBC  $91,628

Roleystone Theatre Inc  $15,000

Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - St Joseph's Parish Northam  $10,000

Roman Catholic Bishop of Geraldton - Centacare Family Services  $55,000

Rotary Club of Esperance Bay (Inc)  $11,000

Rotary Club of Mandurah Districts Western Australia Incorporated  $4,854

Rotary Club of North Perth (Inc)  $25,000

Rotary Club of Palm Beach Western Australia Inc  $20,000

Roy's Retreat Inc.  $58,023

Russian Ethnic Community and Youth Development Association Rusichi 
Incorporated

 $7,254

Salvation Army (WA) Property Trust  $250,000

Sawyers Valley Primary School Parents and Citizens' Association Incorporated  $4,000

Scarborough Beach Association (Inc)  $19,950

Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $149,873

Screenwest (Australia) Limited  $7,000,000

Second Harvest Australia Inc  $100,000

Seniors' Recreation Council of WA (Inc)  $35,000

Shinju Matsuri Inc.  $80,000

Shire of Beverley  $426,000

Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes  $204,148

Shire of Capel  $522,200

Shire of Chapman Valley  $84,771

Shire of Chittering  $20,000

Shire of Collie  $209,154

Shire of Cuballing  $57,224

Shire of Cue  $350,000

Shire of Cunderdin - Meckering Men's Shed  $35,336

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Shire of Dandaragan  $1,127,654

Shire of Dandaragan  $7,500

Shire of Dardanup  $290,000

Shire of Donnybrook-Balingup  $11,500

Shire of Dowerin  $11,300

Shire of Esperance  $174,000

Shire of Gingin  $15,000

Shire of Goomalling - Pioneers' Pathway  $82,458

Shire of Halls Creek  $505,000

Shire of Halls Creek  $462,246

Shire of Harvey  $150,000

Shire of Irwin  $250,000

Shire of Katanning  $20,000

Shire of Katanning  $10,000

Shire of Kojonup  $449,657

Shire of Kondinin  $24,803

Shire of Kondinin  $10,804

Shire of Manjimup  $1,198,682

Shire of Merredin  $121,100

Shire of Moora - Moora Performing Arts Centre  $80,000

Shire of Mundaring  $16,000

Shire of Murray  $20,000

Shire of Northampton  $52,965

Shire of Tammin  $22,000

Shire of Wagin  $8,060

Shire of West Arthur  $33,778

Shire of West Arthur  $4,454

Shire of Wiluna  $392,500

Showgrounds Community Men's Shed Inc.  $120,000

Smiths Beach Surf Life Saving Club Inc.  $4,500

SolarisCare Foundation  $66,140

SongFest Inc.  $5,391

South Coast Natural Resource Management Inc  $2,694,367

South West Refuge Inc  $34,463

South West Women's Health and Information Centre Incorporated  $3,523

Southcare (Incorporated)  $80,000

Spiers Centre Inc  $280,000
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Spring Road Community Kindergarten Incorporated  $10,000

St Barbara's Festival Incorporated  $20,000

St Basil's Aged Care Services in Western Australia (Vasileias) Inc - Dianella  $402,323

St Patrick's Community Support Centre Limited  $264,000

St Patrick's Community Support Centre Limited  $280,898

St Patrick's Day WA Inc  $15,000

St Vincent De Paul Society (WA) Incorporated  $1,444,000

St. Bartholomew's House Inc  $638,879

Standing Shoulder to Shoulder Incorporated  $3,000

Starick Services Inc  $34,164

Stelle Nascenti Italo-Australian Theatre Group Incorporated  $3,073

Stephen Michael Foundation Ltd  $521,000

Stirling Carols by Candlelight Inc.  $10,000

Stopping Family Violence Inc.  $55,801

Subiaction Inc.  $20,000

Sudbury Community House Association  $36,531

Superfins WA Incorporated  $15,000

Swan Guildford Historical Society Incorporated  $3,413

Swan Valley Community Centre Inc  $10,295

SWIG (South West Indian Group) Inc  $5,000

Telethon Kids Institute  $997,705

Toodyay Fibre Festival Inc.  $6,914

Toodyay Herald (Inc)  $15,000

Toodyay Music Fest Inc.  $5,000

Torbay Catchment Group (Incorporated)  $280,576

Town of Bassendean  $25,000

Town of Cambridge  $28,825

Town of Cambridge  $200,000

Town of East Fremantle  $18,500

Town Team Movement Ltd  $6,365

Toy Libraries Australia Inc.  $116,662

Transplant Australia Limited - WA Branch  $44,790

Tura New Music Ltd  $108,832

Ukulele Dreamers Inc.  $3,000

Undalup Association Inc.  $21,947

Uni Camp For Kids Incorporated  $85,000

United Nations Association of Australia (W.A. Division) Inc.  $18,500

Grant Customer Amount Granted

United Way West Australia Inc.  $543,612

Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - All Saints Floreat Uniting 
Church Creative Living Centre

 $120,000

Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Aid  $135,000

UnitingCare West  $640,000

UnitingCare West  $1,763,981

University of Western Australia  $160,209

University of Western Australia  $2,500,000

Victoria Park Centre for the Arts Inc.  $3,000

Victoria Park Community Centre Inc.  $20,000

Victoria Park Youth Accommodation (Inc).  $35,778

Vietnamese Community in Australia / Western Australia Chapter Incorporated  $17,428

Volunteer Centre of Western Australia (Inc.)  $300,000

WA French Festival Inc  $15,000

WA Landcare Network Inc  $44,625

WA Women's Hall of Fame Inc.  $45,600

Wagin Historical Village Museum Incorporated  $21,100

Wamenusking Sports Club (Inc.)  $5,000

Wanneroo Repertory  $38,957

Wanslea Limited  $25,550

Waratah Community Village Residents Association (Inc)  $3,979

Warmun Community (Turkey Creek) Inc  $76,087

Welcome Lotteries House Incorporated  $21,148

West Australian Men's Gathering Inc.  $10,000

West Australian Music Industry Association Incorporated  $55,000

West Australian Symphony Orchestra Pty Ltd  $277,042

West Leederville Community Garden Incorporated  $3,807

Western Australia Kannada Sangha Inc  $5,004

Western Australian Adult Literacy Council Incorporated  $14,500

Western Australian AIDS Council (Inc.)  $21,000

Western Australian Association for Mental Health (Inc.)  $263,000

Western Australian Association of the Deaf Incorporated  $13,379

Western Australian Camera Club (Incorporated)  $15,000

Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $203,513

Western Australian Genealogical Society  $7,463

Western Australian Gould League  $847,106

Wheatbelt Agcare Community Support Services Inc.  $6,000
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Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $20,000

Whitford Church of Christ (Inc)  $30,000

Wickepin Community Resource Centre Inc.  $5,000

Wildflower Society of Western Australia (Inc) - York Branch  $9,000

Williams Gateway Expo (Inc)  $15,000

Women's Council for Domestic and Family Violence Services (WA) Inc.  $32,158

Women's Health Care Association  $345,910

Women's Health Care Association  $45,000

Workpower Incorporated  $9,865

Writing WA Incorporated  $40,000

Wyalkatchem Community Resource Centre Incorporated  $15,518

Wyndham Historical Society (Incorporated)  $28,000

Yaandina Community Services Limited  $17,250

Yabberup Community Association Incorporataed  $15,000

Yangebup Progress Association Inc.  $5,000

Yarloop Community Resource Centre Inc  $20,000

Yasana Ko Lau, Western Australia Inc.  $9,987

Yiyili Community Indigenous Corporation - Yiyili Aboriginal School Community  $254,670

York Arts and Events Incorporated  $33,900

Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $60,000

Youth Involvement Council Incorporated  $46,000

Zonta House Refuge Association Inc.  $71,556

"N" Class Destroyers Association Western Australian Branch (Inc)  $4,790

9 Lives Cat Rescue Incorporated  $4,596

 $80,707,477

Grant Customer Amount Granted

ABC Foundation Ltd.  $212,238

Ability Centre Australasia Ltd  $34,404

Acting Up! Academy of Performing Arts Inc.  $14,500

Advocacy South West (Inc)  $70,280

Albany Youth Support Association Incorporated  $25,460

Amana Living Incorporated  $50,000

Anglicare WA Inc.  $50,000

Armadale Community Family Centre Inc  $37,389

Artists' Foundation of Western Australia Limited  $50,000

Artrage Inc  $196,691

Arts Margaret River Incorporated  $33,605

Augusta Community Resource Centre (Inc.)  $5,497

Australian Anglo Indian Association Inc  $15,000

Australian Arab Association Incorporated  $39,000

Australian Model Railway Association WA Inc.  $20,000

Australian Red Cross Society - Western Australian Division  $716,645

Avon Community Employment Support Centre  $83,215

Balingup Progress Association  $15,000

Baptist Union Of Western Australia Incorporated - Mount Barker Community 
Resource Centre

 $46,000

Barking Gecko Theatre Company Ltd.  $221,338

Beananging Kwuurt Institute*  $53,500

Beverley Station Arts Incorporated  $15,000

Black Cockatoo Preservation Society of Australia Incorporated  $10,000

Black Cockatoo Preservation Society of Australia Incorporated  $100,000

Black Swan Health Limited  $20,000

Black Swan State Theatre Company Ltd  $448,139

Blackwood Basin Group Incorporated  $30,000

Blue True Project Incorporated  $15,000

Borden Pavilion Committee Incorporated  $5,000

Bridgetown Historical Society Incorporated  $4,521

Brookton and Districts Historical Society  $3,000

Broome Aboriginal Media Association (Aboriginal Corporation)  $55,902

Broome Community Information Resource Centre and Learning Exchange  $57,500

Broome Community Stallholders Association Incorporated  $22,000

COVID-19 grants
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Broome Historical Society Inc  $65,000

Broome Lotteries House Incorporated  $21,479

Broome Regional Aboriginal Medical Service (Aboriginal Corporation)  $45,000

Bunbury Dolphin Discovery Incorporated  $150,917

Bunbury Regional Theatre Incorporated  $206,000

Bunbury Regional Theatre Incorporated  $89,615

Bunbury Repertory Club Inc  $7,503

Busselton Toy Library Inc.  $5,647

Camp Quality Limited  $60,000

Cancer Council Western Australia (Inc)  $32,972

Cancer Council Western Australia (Inc)  $228,080

Cannery Arts Centre (Inc)  $22,700

Care for Hedland Environmental Association Incorporated  $12,960

Cat Welfare Society Inc  $24,960

Centre for Asylum Seekers, Refugees and Detainees Inc  $81,000

Centre for Stories  $29,915

Chamber of Arts and Culture WA Incorporated  $70,000

Chung Wah Association  $9,821

City of Melville - Citizens Relief Fund*  $20,000

Cockburn Toy Library Incorporated  $5,000

Collie Rail Heritage Group Inc.  $6,565

Community Group of Greenough (Inc)  $13,600

Conservation Council of Western Australia  $261,250

Contemporary Dance Company of Western Australia Limited  $96,980

Contemporary Dance Company of Western Australia Limited  $270,386

Cooby Cares Inc.  $27,500

Coolgardie Day Celebrations Inc  $3,712

Country Music Club of Boyup Brook, WA Incorporated  $40,634

Country Women's Association of Western Australia  $51,529

Cowards Punch Limited  $40,820

Curtin University Student Guild  $50,000

Cystic Fibrosis Western Australia (Inc)  $19,950

Darlington Sports and Recreation Association (WA) Incorporated  $23,500

Delta Society Australia Limited  $12,526

Denmark Arts Council  $30,000

Department of Local Government Sport and Cultural Industries  $554,236

Department of Local Government Sport and Cultural Industries  $6,330,236

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Derbarl Yerrigan Health Service Aboriginal Corporation  $300,000

Derbarl Yerrigan Health Service Aboriginal Corporation  $99,500

Desperate for Love Dog Pound Rescue Inc  $10,000

Dinosaur Coast Management Group Inc  $3,000

Disco Cantito Association Incorporated  $25,175

Disco Cantito Association Incorporated  $40,313

Djarindjin Aboriginal Corporation  $43,119

Djarindjin Aboriginal Corporation*  $70,566

Dongara Community Resource Centre Inc.  $14,500

Donnybrook - Balingup Community Radio Inc.  $8,000

Doors Wide Open Inc.  $26,824

Duyfken 1606 Replica Foundation Incorporated  $30,000

El Shaddai Kwinana Christian Fellowship Inc*  $23,000

Ellen-Brockman Integrated Catchment Group Incorporated  $26,953

Ellenbrook Community Radio (Inc)  $10,000

Environs Kimberley Incorporated  $37,300

Environs Kimberley Incorporated  $73,173

Epilepsy Association of Western Australia (Inc.)  $21,279

Esperance Care Services Inc.  $60,000

Esperance Community Arts (Inc)  $28,368

FAWNA Incorporated  $10,000

Feed the Little Children Inc.  $43,600

Flour Mill Emporium Incorporated  $14,580

FolkWorld Inc.  $100,000

FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc  $50,000

FORM Building a State of Creativity Inc  $47,494

Foster Share Shed Incorporated  $15,000

Freeze Frame Opera Incorporated  $15,000

Fremantle Biennale Inc  $65,000

Fremantle Foundation Ltd acting as Trustee for Fremantle Foundation Trust  $46,769

Friends of Kings Park (Inc.)  $73,850

Friends of the Porongurup Range Inc  $5,988

Friends With Dignity Limited  $15,000

Funtavia Inc.  $39,978

Funtavia Inc.  $123,590

Geographe French Australian Festivals Incorporated  $143,702

Geraldton Streetwork Aboriginal Corporation  $8,496
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Girls Without Limits Incorporated  $15,000

Give Write Incorporated  $12,755

Givit Listed Ltd  $86,000

Glyde-In Community Learning Centre Incorporated  $19,000

Goldfields Womens Refuge Association  $30,000

Good Samaritan Industries  $800,000

Gooda Judder Aboriginal Corporation  $11,902

Goolarabooloo / Millibinyarri Indigenous Corporation  $50,000

Gosnells Women's Health Service Incorporated  $60,736

Grace Care Inc  $10,000

Greenbushes Eco Cultural Discovery Centre (Inc)  $3,465

Greener Pastures Sanctuary Inc  $10,480

Halo Team Inc  $50,000

Haven Centre Inc.  $28,000

Home-Based Learning Network of WA (Incorporated)  $15,000

Hopetoun Progress Association (Inc)  $8,000

Hungarian Association of WA Inc  $6,800

Huntington's WA (Inc)  $12,500

Husky and Malamute Rescue Inc  $3,145

In Town Centre Incorporated  $10,000

Inclusion Solutions Limited  $49,943

Intelife Group Limited  $160,000

International Arts Space Pty Ltd  $14,489

Irrunytju Community Incorporated  $80,000

Irwin District Historical Society (Inc.)  $4,000

JDRF Australia  $50,000

Joongari House/Wyndham Family Support Incorporated  $5,200

Kalamunda and Districts Agricultural Society Incorporated  $16,040

Kalumburu Aboriginal Corporation  $24,247

Kambalda Culture and Arts Group  $5,400

Karnup Volunteer Fire and Emergency Services Inc.  $10,266

Kelmscott-Pinjarra 10th Light Horse Memorial Troop Inc.  $8,275

Keszkeno Hungarian Folk Dancing Association  $6,000

Kids' Camps Inc.  $114,543

Kimberley Aboriginal Law and Culture Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $287,000

Kimberley Aboriginal Medical Services Limited  $30,000

Kimberley Language Resource Centre (Aboriginal Corporation)  $70,000

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Koya Aboriginal Corporation  $81,222

Kurrawang Aboriginal Christian Community Inc.  $12,060

Kyle Andrews Foundation Incorporated  $20,000

L'Arche Perth Inc.  $5,000

Last Great Hunt Inc  $82,208

Last Great Hunt Inc  $212,161

Leadership Western Australia  $140,000

Leeuwin Ocean Adventure Foundation Limited  $98,640

Legacy Club of Western Australia Incorporated  $219,130

Legacy Club of Western Australia Incorporated  $52,525

Linkwest Incorporated  $40,000

Literature Centre Inc.  $162,910

Little Things for Tiny Tots Inc  $6,024

Live To Tell Your Story Inc  $36,000

Living Stone Foundation Inc  $150,000

Ludlow Tuart Forest Restoration Group Inc.  $5,907

Lynwood-Ferndale Playgroup  $5,000

Mandurah Performing Arts Incorporated  $100,000

Mandurah Performing Arts Incorporated  $50,000

Mandurah Wildlife Rescue Inc  $7,150

Mangkaja Arts Resource Agency Aboriginal Corporation  $124,000

Manji Men's Shed Inc  $10,396

Manjimup Repertory Club (Inc)  $6,581

Margaret River Region Open Studios Inc  $15,000

Marine Rescue Geraldton Incorporated  $22,730

Marrugeku Inc  $44,000

MATES in Construction WA Limited  $119,330

MATES in Construction WA Limited  $112,137

Melanoma Institute Australia  $49,471

Merredin Show Inc  $10,176

Merredin Show Inc  $4,824

Metropolitan Migrant Resource Centre Inc.  $80,000

Midland Information, Debt and Legal Advocacy Service Inc.  $60,000

Mosman Park Arts Foundation  $28,060

Mount Helena Residents and Ratepayers Progress AssociationIncorporated  $15,000

Movies By Burswood (Inc)  $35,000

Mullaloo Community Kindergarten Inc  $3,645
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Multicultural Communities Council of WA Inc  $52,275

Mundaring Arts Centre Inc  $40,000

Museum of Freedom and Tolerance - Western Australia Limited  $85,000

Museums Australia Incorporated  $49,000

Musica Viva Australia  $50,000

Musica Viva Australia  $44,000

National Exhibitions Touring Structure For Western Australia  $15,000

Native Animal Rescue Incorporated  $18,025

Native ARC Incorporated  $23,800

New Life Welfare (W.A.) Incorporated  $24,000

Ngaanyatjarra Pitjantjatjara Yankunytjatjara Women's Council Aboriginal 
Corporation

 $80,196

Ngaanyatjarra Pitjantjatjara Yankunytjatjara Women's Council Aboriginal 
Corporation

 $98,917

Ngunga Group Women's Aboriginal Corporation  $144,232

Nintirri Centre (Incorporated)  $38,000

No Limits Perth Inc  $61,450

No Limits Perth Inc  $17,256

Northam Church of Christ Incorporated  $12,000

Northampton Old School Community Initiative Incorporated  $16,000

Northampton Old School Community Initiative Incorporated  $20,000

Northampton Old School Community Initiative Incorporated  $57,760

Northcliffe Family Centre Incorporated  $9,895

Northcliffe Visitor Centre Inc.  $23,350

Northern Suburbs Men's Shed Inc  $10,000

Nulsen Group Ltd.  $254,900

On My Feet Ltd.  $15,000

Orana House (Inc)  $20,000

Orana House (Inc)  $8,500

Organisation of African Communities in Western Australia Inc.  $52,026

Papulankutja Artists Aboriginal Corporation  $20,000

Parents of Children with Special Needs Inc.  $29,379

Pat Thomas House Inc  $15,000

Patricia Giles Centre Inc.  $50,329

Peel Community Kitchen Incorporated  $30,000

Pemberton Community Resource Centre Inc  $8,307

People Place Busselton Incorporated  $33,030

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Performing Lines Limited  $309,336

Perth City Farm Incorporated  $30,606

Perth City Farm Incorporated  $41,201

Perth Inner City Youth Service Inc  $61,758

Perth Symphony Orchestra Limited  $31,177

Perth Symphony Orchestra Limited  $191,689

Pivot Support Services Incorporated  $581,442

Polish Club General W.Sikorski Western Australia  $24,850

Polish Dance Group - Kukuleczka Inc  $15,000

Polish School WA Incorporated  $6,465

Polonia WA Inc.  $7,250

PortCare Incorporated  $40,000

Possum Valley Animal Sanctuary Inc  $30,000

Pregnancy Assistance (Incorporated)*  $17,500

Prostate Cancer Foundation of Australia Limited - WA Division  $10,000

Radio Lollipop (Australia) Limited  $50,000

Ravensthorpe Historical Society (Inc.)  $3,000

Ravensthorpe Regional Arts Council  $12,570

Ravensthorpe Wildflower Show Inc  $5,000

Ready To Work Inc  $36,560

Reflections Through Reality Limited  $15,000

REmida Perth Inc  $12,900

Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated  $169,244

Returned and Services League of Australia WA Branch Incorporated -Riverton 
Branch

 $15,000

Revelation Perth International Film Festival Inc  $187,000

Riding for the Disabled Association Australia South West Centre Incorporated  $14,386

Riding for the Disabled Association of Western Australia: Carine Group 
Incorporated

 $60,000

Riverview Community Services Inc.  $120,000

Roman Catholic Archbishop of Perth - The Shopfront  $15,000

Rotary Club of Albany Port WA (Inc)  $15,000

Rotary Club of Busselton Geographe Bay Incorporated  $15,000

Rotary Club Of Byford and Districts, WA, Incorporated  $5,225

Rotary Club of Hillarys Incorporated  $15,000

Royal Agricultural Society of Western Australia  $450,000

Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals, Western Australia  $60,000
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Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals, Western Australia  $846,240

Royal Western Australian Historical Society Incorporated  $32,573

RTRFM 92.1 LTD  $72,770

RTRFM 92.1 LTD  $199,486

Ruah Community Services  $753,350

Rural Regional Remote Women's Network of Western AustraliaInc.  $103,800

Salvation Army (WA) Property Trust  $47,253

Saving Perth Animals From Euthanasia Incorporated  $20,000

Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $35,400

Scout Association of Australia, Western Australian Branch  $204,000

SecondBite  $363,911

Sensorium Theatre Incorporated  $53,600

Serbian Community Krajina Incorporated  $15,000

Share & Care Community Services Group Incorporated  $136,400

Shelter WA Inc  $43,190

Shelter WA Inc  $416,854

Shire of Capel  $20,000

Shire of Halls Creek  $60,000

Shire of Harvey  $66,000

Shire of Manjimup  $428,364

Shire of Waroona  $36,655

SolarisCare Foundation  $119,366

SolarisCare Foundation  $77,400

Soroptimist International Maylands Peninsula Incorporated  $6,000

Sorrento Surf Life Saving Club  $25,000

South Coastal Health and Community Services Incorporated  $48,000

South Sudan Community Association of W.A. (SSCAWA) Inc.  $11,500

South West Aboriginal Land & Sea Council Aboriginal Corporation  $615,537

South West Community Legal Centre Inc  $15,000

South West Counselling Inc.  $6,900

South West Counselling Inc.  $37,128

South West Refuge Inc  $13,000

South West Refuge Inc  $1,650

South West Women's Health and Information Centre Incorporated  $30,489

Southern Agcare Inc.*  $25,000

Southern Forest Arts (Inc )  $37,000

Sports Challenge Australia  $82,500

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Spring Road Community Kindergarten Incorporated  $15,000

St John of God Outreach Services  $151,209

St Patrick's Community Support Centre Limited  $214,343

St Vincent De Paul Society (WA) Incorporated  $702,899

Starick Services Inc  $7,941

Stopping Family Violence Inc.  $101,418

Strut Dance Incorporated  $99,182

Sun City Care Incorporated  $70,000

Sustain: The Australian Food Network Ltd  $12,847

Swan City Youth Service Incorporated  $10,000

Swanbourne-Nedlands Surf Life Saving Club Inc.  $17,258

Theatre Kimberley Incorporated  $40,923

Theatre Kimberley Incorporated  $46,749

Tjarlirli Art Indigenous Corporation  $103,571

Tjarlirli Art Indigenous Corporation  $64,240

Tjuma Pulka (Media) Aboriginal Corporation  $39,000

Tom Price Youth Support Association Inc.  $22,400

Toodyay Community Resource Centre (Inc)  $32,579

Tura New Music Ltd  $150,000

Two Rocks Yanchep Assisted Cancer Travels Inc  $24,000

Type 1 Diabetes Family Centre Limited  $98,000

United Nations Association of Australia (W.A. Division) Inc.  $7,450

Uniting Church in Australia Property Trust (WA) - Uniting Outreach Mandurah  $71,500

UnitingCare West  $1,134,664

Variety WA Incorporated  $297,444

Victoria Park Centre for the Arts Inc.  $20,481

Vocal Ensemble Voiceworks Inc.  $15,000

Volunteer South West Incorporated  $4,853

W.A. Brass Incorporated  $10,023

W.A. Italian Club Incorporated  $78,357

W.A. Youth Jazz Orchestra Association (Inc.)  $60,000

WA Circus School Incorporated  $50,713

WA Fairhaven Rebuilding Centre Inc  $2,250

WA Fairhaven Rebuilding Centre Inc  $3,950

WA French Festival Inc  $15,000

WA Grief Support Inc  $7,500

WA Mums Cottage Inc*  $13,050
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WA Venues and Events Pty Ltd  $286,470

WA Venues and Events Pty Ltd  $145,795

Wadjak Northside Aboriginal Community (Aboriginal Corporation)  $180,000

Waratah Support Centre (South West Region) Inc  $26,000

Waringarri Arts Aboriginal Corporation  $15,000

West Australian Ballet Company  $1,193,588

West Australian Music Industry Association Incorporated  $77,500

West Australian Music Industry Association Incorporated  $58,101

WestAus Crisis and Welfare Services Inc  $95,657

Western Australian Aboriginal Leadership Institute Limited  $25,000

Western Australian Association for Mental Health (Inc.)  $342,687

Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $200,000

Western Australian Council of Social Service Incorporated  $368,682

Western Australian Debating League Incorporated  $37,148

Western Australian Light Railway Preservation Association Incorporated  $46,798

Western Australian Opera Company Incorporated  $95,000

Western Australian Youth Theatre Company (Incorporated)  $81,592

Western Desert Lands Aboriginal Corporation (Jamukurnu-Yapalikunu)  $608,000

Westonia Community Resource Centre Inc  $5,685

Whitelion Youth Agency Ltd*  $40,000

William Langford Community House Incorporated  $32,000

Wirrimanu Aboriginal Corporation  $174,875

Wise Realities Institute for Healthcare Emerging Technologies Research Limited*  $4,472

Women and Infants Research Foundation Limited  $67,350

Women's Health Care Association  $20,000

Writing WA Incorporated  $48,640

Wunan Foundation Inc.  $330,230

Wungening Aboriginal Corporation  $950,000

Wyndham Early Learning Activity Centre (WELA) Incorporated*  $62,548

Yaandina Community Services Limited  $102,716

Yawoorroong Miriuwung Gajerrong Yirrgeb Noong Dawang Aboriginal 
Corporation

 $46,000

Yawuru Jarndu Aboriginal Corporation  $30,000

Yiyili Community Indigenous Corporation - Yiyili Aboriginal School Community  $21,172

Yiyili Community Indigenous Corporation - Yiyili Aboriginal School Community  $30,000

York Agricultural Society Incorporated  $4,103

Youth Affairs Council of Western Australia  $118,185

Grant Customer Amount Granted

Youth Futures WA (Inc).  $50,800

Youth Futures WA (Inc).  $100,000

Youth Involvement Council Incorporated  $78,700

Yugal Club of W.A. (Inc.)  $15,000

zero2hero Inc.  $40,000

Zonta Club of Dunsborough Incorporated  $4,355

Zonta House Refuge Association Inc.  $195,125

 $37,549,277

* These applications were received prior to COVID-19 but supported through the COVID-19 Relief Fund



Contact

Level 2, 38 Station Street, Subiaco WA 6008 
Locked bag 66, Subiaco WA 6904

Phone 133 777

Email hello@lotterywest.wa.gov.au

Web lotterywest.wa.gov.au

WA Government wa.gov.au

https://www.facebook.com/lotterywest
https://twitter.com/lotterywest
https://www.youtube.com/user/Lotterywest
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